Public Document Pack
SCOTTISH BORDERS
COMMUNITY PLANNING
STRATEGIC BOARD

MEETING
Date:

22 June 2017

Time:

12.30 p.m.

Location:

Council Chamber, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters,
Newtown St Boswells

Members of
Board:

Name
Councillor Mark Rowley*
(Chair)
Councillor Sandy
Aitchison*
Councillor Stuart Bell*
Mr David Davidson

Organisation
Scottish Borders Council

LSO David Farries

Scottish Fire and Rescue Service

Councillor Carol
Hamilton*
Mr Tony Jakimciw

Scottish Borders Council

Councillor Watson
McAteer*
Mr Alistair McKinnon
Mr Simon Mountford

Scottish Borders Council

Scottish Borders Council
Scottish Borders Council
NHS Borders

Borders College

Scottish Enterprise
Registered Social Landlords
representative (SBHA)
NHS Borders
Police Scotland

Mr John Raine
Superintendent Jim
Royan
Mr Brian Sweenie
Third Sector representative
* any 3 from the 5 named SBC Councillors
Copies also
sent
electronically
for information
to:

Name
Mr Andy Bruce
Mr Trevor Burrows
Mr Niall Corbet
Mr Peter Duncan
Councillor Gordon Edgar
Mr Grant McDougall
Mr John Paton-Day
Mrs Rita Stenhouse
TBC

Organisation
Scottish Government
Eildon Housing
Scottish Natural Heritage
Live Borders
SESTRAN
Skills Development Scotland
Community Council Network
representative
Waverley Housing
Scottish Environment Protection
Agency

Items

Lead

1.

Apologies

Chair

2.

Minutes of Meetings of the Community Planning Strategic Board
(Pages 1 - 10)
(a)
(b)

3.

24 November 2016; and
9 March 2017. (Copies attached.)

Action Tracker (Pages 11 - 12)

All

(Copy attached.)
4.

Local Outcomes Improvement

Jenni Craig

Presentation on:
(a)
Draft Local Outcome Improvement Plan (LOIP); and
(b)
Locality Plans.
5.

Integrated Children and Young People's Plan in the Scottish Borders
2017 - 2020 (Pages 13 - 56)

Donn
Manson

Consider Plan. (Copy attached.)
6.

Community Justice Outcomes Improvement Plan 2017 - 2020. (Pages
57 - 102)

Elaine
Torrance

Consider report by Chief Social Work Officer. (Copy report and Plan
attached.)
7.

Equally Safe 2016 - 21 (Pages 103 - 128)

Elaine
Torrance

Consider endorsement of the Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy 2016 –
21 for preventing and eradicating violence against women and girls. (Copy
report and Strategy attached.)
8.

AOCB

Note: Members are reminded that should they have a Declaration of Interest
to make on an item of business, they should do so at the appropriate time.
Please direct any enquiries to Jenny Wilkinson, Clerk to the Council Tel. (01835)
825004.
E-mail: jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2

SCOTTISH BORDERS
COMMUNITY
PLANNING
STRATEGIC BOARD
MEETING
Date:

24 November 2016 from 2.00 to 4.05 p.m.

Location:

Council Chamber, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters,
Newtown St Boswells

Attendees:

Councillor Jim Brown (SBC) [Chair]
Councillor Stuart Bell (SBC)
LSO David Farries (Scottish Fire and Rescue Service)
Mrs Marjorie Hume (Third Sector)
Mr Tony Jakimciw (Borders College)
Mr Alastair McKinnon (Scottish Enterprise)
Councillor Simon Mountford (SBHA – RSL representative)
Superintendent Bryan Rodgers (Police Scotland)
Mr John Raine (NHS Borders)
Councillor Frances Renton (SBC)
Dr Doreen Steele (NHS Borders).

Also in
attendance:

Colin Banks (SBC), Rob Dickson (SBC), Jeanette McDiarmid (SBC),
Tim Patterson (NHS/SBC), Shona Smith (SBC), Jenny Wilkinson
(SBC).

MINUTE AND ACTION POINTS
1.

Apologies
None.

2.

Minute of Meeting of Community Planning Strategic Board – 8
September 2016
The Minute of the previous meeting of the Joint Delivery Team had been
circulated.
APPROVED the Minute.

3.

Action Tracker
The Action Tracker had been circulated. With reference to the meeting held on
8 September 2016, members of the Board confirmed that they would ensure
that - if required - the new governance arrangements for the Community
Planning Partnership were approved within their own organisations.
Noted.

4.
4.1

Reducing Inequalities: Developing Our Young Workforce
Kevin McCall, SBC Education Lead Officer, gave a presentation on Developing
the Young Workforce, a programme of positive destinations for school leavers
which cut across schools, College, Skills Development Scotland, Job Centre Plus,
etc. An explanation was given of the various pathways linked to the
programme, which took account of new issues, policies and guidance to put in
place a structure to make this happen for young people. Key highlights for

Page 1

2016 included a grant for £450k in October 2016 to enhance industry leadership
and capacity for engagement with partners and this had enabled work with a
wide range of employers. In March 2016 there were 585 Modern
Apprenticeships offered by 99 companies in the Borders and work with
Registered Social Landlords had increased the range of these apprenticeships.
Borders College had a formalised permanent post for dedicated time and an
aligned timetable was in place with secondary schools, Borders College and the
Schools Academy. Better use had been made of data to design vocational
pathways over the next 10 years so different types of apprenticeships were
coming in and were being explored.
4.2

The Schools and Pathways Group had developed a regional action plan which
provided a whole range of opportunities within schools, although pupils were
sometimes still being channelled through traditional routes. With regard to
vulnerable groups activity, Stage 3 Employability Training had involved training
for 66 young people, with work experience opportunities and transport funding
support. Project SEARCH had involved 8 young people with learning disability
or autism being given employability support in conjunction with Borders College
and NHS Borders. Other support had been provided to looked after and
accommodated children and the most vulnerable young people. In terms of
outcomes, the system now produced live data about positive destinations. In
October 2016, 95.8% of school leavers were in a positive destination. That still
left 4% (about 60 young people) not accounted for within the system and the
challenge was to find and support those young people.

4.3

Members of the Board discussed the issues facing young people in seeking work
experience, including volunteering. Reference was made to the Inspire Awards,
run by young people and overseen by the Third Sector, which recognised and
rewarded young individuals or groups who have been outstandingly successful
in a particular field or had overcome considerable obstacles to make a
contribution to their local community. Jedburgh Grammar School had tracked
Inspire as a portfolio and had registered every S1 pupil with the Scheme.
Transport could be a challenge for young people but schools worked closely with
transport planners and on timing of courses with Borders College to try to
mitigate against the reality of the Borders being a rural area. With the focus on
local employer contact and work experience, it was hoped transport would
become less of an issue. The relevance and breadth of work experience
opportunities was still an issue at times but these were steadily improving by
matching pupils’ needs and aspirations, fitting better to the individual, and also
recording the learning experience better so there was evidence that skills had
improved. It would be helpful if more work experience opportunities were
available in the STEM sector (science, technology, engineering and
mathematics), in particular digital technology and connectivity. Alastair
McKinnon offered to provide details of ‘Women into Construction’ to assist with
getting females into work areas traditionally dominated by males.
Opportunities could also exist out-with the boundaries of the Borders but
transport could be an issue for these. Specific work had been undertaken over
the last year to support looked after and accommodated children; as an
example of partnership working, the College had created a role whereby
someone worked with individuals before and after college to provide advice and
practical assistance which would usually come from parents. The Employment
Support Service had brought in a Modern Apprenticeship scheme targeting
looked after children, but there was more to be done.
Action:
Details of Women into Construction be provided to
Alastair
Kevin McCall to assist with getting females into work
McKinnon

Page 2

areas traditionally dominated by males.
5.

Reducing Inequalities: Equally Safe Strategy 2016 – 2021
This item was withdrawn.

6.

Scottish Borders Community Justice Outcomes Improvement Plan 2017
– 2020
Jeanette McDiarmid, SBC Depute Chief Executive – People, explained that the
Plan was a requirement under the Community Justice (Scotland) Act 2016 and
had to be published by 31 March 2017. Scottish Government had provided a
national strategy and guidance which was reflected in the Plan. The existing
Community Justice Authority would cease on 31 March 2017 and Community
Justice Scotland would take the Plan forward from 1 April 2017. Key facts and
issues were detailed in the Plan along with outcome improvement actions. It
was confirmed that the Third Sector supported this work, although not
mentioned specifically as a partner. The Plan gave good opportunities for
partnership working to help offenders, their families and communities to stop or
reduce offending and avoid repeat offending. There was significant scope for
partner organisations to make a contribution and identify how offenders could
be rehabilitated. The College had offenders attending courses and there were
protocols in place. Members of the Board queried a couple of figures in the
Plan, which Jeanette McDiarmid undertook to check. Some concern was
expressed that the Plan and consultation document may be too technical for
members of the public to understand.
Action:
AGREED that the consultation on the Community
Jeanette
Justice Outcomes Improvement Plan be issued and a
McDiarmid
report of the outcome be brought back to the Strategic
Board in due course.

7.

Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 – Scottish Government
Guidance and Timescales
Shona Smith, SBC Communities and Partnership Manager, advised the Board
that the Community Planning part of the Community Empowerment legislation
was due to come into force on 20 December 2016, with the Asset Transfer
section coming into force on 23 January 2017. It was anticipated that final
guidance would be issued by the Scottish Government shortly, with ‘plain
english’ guidance coming out to communities and partners. A set of FAQs for
both staff and public had been developed, along with an e-learning module and
drop-in workshops. These resources were available for all partners to access.
Noted.

8.

Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 – LOIP and Locality
Plans
Jeanette McDiarmid, SBC Depute Chief Executive – People, advised of previous
work that the Council had been undertaking in the Cheviot Area, which had
included the Living Safely in the Home programme delivered with the Fire &
Rescue Service to elderly people in their homes to prevent fires and falls. There
were now draft economic development and locality property plans for Cheviot.
Councillor Brown explained that by having a Locality Plan, communities could
then be involved in prioritising actions for their own area. Colin Banks, SBC
Lead Officer for Localities, gave a presentation on the Community
Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 as it related to Community Planning,
focussing in particular on the Local Outcomes Improvement Plan (LOIP) and the
Locality Plans. These Plans were due to be published by 1 October 2017, with
all needing to show a clear, evidence-based and robust strong understanding of

8.1

Page 3

local needs, circumstances, and aspirations of their local communities. Details
were given of the proposed structure and content for both the LOIP and the
Locality Plans. The Board considered the proposed structure and content to be
a good start but this needed to be translated for communities so that they were
connected in from the start, as at the moment there was a big disconnect from
the centre to Area Forums and Community Councils. Partners would contribute
to Locality Plans with collaborative actions from existing plans and any plans
which were being refreshed to reflect the CPP priorities. The intention was that
these Plans would be concise, simple documents. However, it was vital that
communities were involved in their development and that communities’ own
ambitions were reflected otherwise these Plans may not succeed.
8.2

Colin Banks then advised of one issue with the legislation which placed a
maximum population figure of 30,000 on a locality, but Eildon area population
was 35,000. Further consideration would be given to this but it was likely the
Eildon Locality Plan would cover the whole area and not be split. The draft LOIP
and Locality Plan templates along with the timelines would be considered at a
development day for the CPP Joint Delivery Team being held in December. As
part of consultation the aim was to use the Scottish Government’s “Place
Standard – How Good is Our Place?” which was a tool to help evaluate the
quality of a place (14 aspects, such as housing & community, social interaction,
work & local economy, etc.) as well as helping to identify priorities. Local
community groups, the People’s Panel, Community Councils, etc. would all be
invited to participate, including using on-line surveys, and if there was enough
response from communities then they would be included in the Plans and would
be a strong baseline for the future. The value was about bringing communities
together to allow them to take forward their own work. While it was recognised
that the timelines were not ideal, there was also a need to be pragmatic about
getting the first iteration of Plans published by the October 2017 deadline;
many pieces of work were already within partners’ plans so just needed to be
brought together. IT and connectivity, health and social care, and transport
were likely common issues across all localities. The Plans would be living
documents and continually refreshed.
Action:
(a) a copy of the slides be issued to members of the
Jenny
CP Strategic Board;
Wilkinson
(b) any comments on the timelines for the
All
development of the Plans be sent to Colin Banks.

9.

Update from Economy and Low Carbon Delivery Team
Rob Dickson, SBC Transformation and Corporate Services Director, presented
the papers on the work of the Economy and Low Carbon Delivery Team. In
particular, reference was made to the recent Scottish Government publication of
the Phase 1 report for the Enterprise and Skills Review and the proposed new
vehicle for South of Scotland. This was a huge opportunity for the CP
Partnership to seize and to work together for the best outcome for the area.
This was not about having a local enterprise company back again, but
something new and different about innovation, skills, and enterprise, including
social enterprise. Tony Jakimciw advised that Borders College and Dumfries &
Galloway College Boards had recently held a meeting to work out their joint
purpose so that they did not end up in competition. While the 2 Councils,
Scottish Enterprise and the business sector worked together in the South of
Scotland Alliance, this currently did not include the college sector and
consideration should be given to widening out the stakeholder group or setting
up a new group. In response to a question about the Chancellor’s Autumn
Budget Statement, it was confirmed that the potential increase in Council Tax

Page 4

on higher end properties in Scotland and the difference in Stamp Duty rates
between Scotland and England should not have any greater impact on the
Borders than elsewhere in Scotland. It was further confirmed that the Borders
railway performance recently reported in the media was not as bad as had been
made out – at present punctuality was 89% within 5 minutes of the timetable,
and the aim was 92%. This meant 9 trains out of 10 arrived within 5 minutes
of timetable. The problem was to do with infrastructure and capacity and would
have affected the previous franchise holder in much the same way as it was
currently doing for Abellio. The Council Leader and Chief Executive had recently
met with the Chair of Network Rail.
Noted.
10.

Schedule and Format of Future Meetings
Board members discussed the format of future meetings of the Strategic Board
to ensure the Board’s work was focussed and engaged not only at Board
meetings but also members were ensuring community planning was embedded
within their own partner organisation. The key to community planning was that
the public and communities bought in to it. Historically it was recognised that
the Council had taken the lead on the work for community planning and this
needed to change so that partners were far more involved in development work
rather than at the end of the process for the decision. This should ensure that
Locality Plans had partner input and that the Board was kept updated with the
work of the Delivery Teams. A forward plan for agendas would be developed.
Members were in agreement that a workshop be held for the Strategic Board
sometime after Spring 2017.
Action:
(a) Board agendas would reflect Board responsibilities All
i.e. the Local Outcomes Improvement Plan, the 5
Locality Plans, and work of the Delivery Teams;
and
(b) a workshop would be organised for the members
All
of the CP Strategic Board.

11.

Community Planning – Current Issues
No issues were raised for discussion/consideration.

12.

AOCB – Conference for Community Planning Consultative Group
It was suggested that work on the content for the proposed
conference/workshop for the wider Community Planning Consultative Group in
August 2017 be started early in 2017.
Action:
Work on the content of the proposed conference/
Shona
workshop for the wider Community Planning
Smith/All
Consultative Group would begin in early 2017.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

SCOTTISH BORDERS
COMMUNITY
PLANNING
STRATEGIC BOARD
MEETING
Date:

9 March 2017 from 2.10 to 3.35 p.m.

Location:

Council Chamber, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters,
Newtown St Boswells

Attendees:

Councillor Jim Brown (SBC) [Chair]
Det. Superintendent Pat Campbell (Police Scotland)
Mr Tony Jakimciw (Borders College)
Mr Alistair McKinnon (Scottish Enterprise)
Mr Tim Patterson (NHS Borders)
Councillor Frances Renton (SBC) [from para.6]
Mrs Rita Stenhouse (RSL representative – Waverley Housing)
Mr Brian Sweenie (Third Sector).

Also in
attendance:

Philip Barr (SBC), Nile Istephan (Eildon Housing), Bryan McGrath
(SBC), Tracey Logan (SBC), Sarah Watters (SBC), Jenny Wilkinson
(SBC).

MINUTE AND ACTION POINTS
1.

Apologies
Apologies had been received from Councillor Stuart Bell, LSO David Farries, Mrs
Marjorie Hume, Superintendent Bryan Rodgers, Mr John Raine, Dr Doreen
Steele.

2.

Quorum
The Clerk advised the Chairman that the meeting was inquorate as Councillor
Renton had been delayed at a previous engagement. The Board agreed to
continue the meeting informally until Councillor Renton could join them.

3.

Minute of Meeting of Community Planning Strategic Board – 24
November 2016
The Minute of the previous meeting of the Community Planning Strategic Board
had been circulated.
AGREED to RECOMMEND the Minute for formal approval at the next
Strategic Board meeting to be held on 22 June 2017.

4.

Action Tracker
The Action Tracker had been circulated.
Noted.

5.

Economy and Low Carbon: Economic Performance and Performance
Indicators
Bryan McGrath, SBC Chief Officer - Economic Development, and Sarah Watters,
SBC Function Manager – Business Management, gave a presentation on
Economic Performance Indicators for the Borders. A paper was issued at the

Page 7

meeting giving details of quarterly and annual data on the Single Outcome
Agreement 2013: Priority One “Grow Our Economy”, indicating the current
position and commentary along with the short and long term trends. Members
of the Board commented on some of the measures including GVA, new business
start-up rates, and VAT registered business survival. In terms of the Town
Centre vacancy rate, Alistair McKinnon commented that it would be useful to
add in the vacancy rates for industrial property as well, and officers undertook
to include that data.
Noted the presentation.
Note: Councillor Renton joined the meeting during consideration of the
following item of business. The meeting was thus quorate from this point
onwards.
6.

Economy and Low Carbon: Economic Strategy Action Plan
A report had been circulated prior to the meeting, giving an update on progress
with the Scottish Borders Economic Strategy 2023 – Action Plan. Appendix 1 of
the report gave the status (red/amber/green) of each action. Bryan McGrath,
SBC Chief Officer – Economic Development, advised members that there were
currently no red actions; partners had delivered well on actions and good
progress was being made e.g. fibre cabinets for superfast broadband. The
action plan was in a positive place, although there were challenges with
resources for broadband coverage, with the last 5 – 6% of coverage for digital
connectivity being the most challenging technically. While there had been a
programme of publicity to say the fibre cabinets were live, and there was good
information on the website, further awareness-raising was required with the
public to increase the take up rate, and this would be fed back to the
programme. In response to a question about bus services, Tracey Logan
advised that the recent announcement about the transfer of bus services from
First Group to West Coast Motors could put services in a positive position. It
was necessary to maximise the opportunities brought by the railway and an
indication of early success was Rabbie’s Tours now being run commercially after
their pilot project the previous summer.
Noted.

7.
7.1

Economy and Low Carbon: South of Scotland Vehicle
Copies of a report to SBC Executive Committee on the “Scottish Government
Enterprise and Skills Review – Phase 2 Progress” had been circulated prior to
the meeting. Bryan McGrath, SBC Chief Officer Economic Development, gave a
presentation from the South of Scotland Alliance on the South of Scotland
Enterprise and Skills Vehicle, which was part of Phase 2 of the Enterprise and
Skills Review. The South of Scotland had a number of challenges to consider
including the lowest population density outside the Highlands and Islands; low
wealth creation; low average work-based weekly wages; out-migration of young
people and shrinking workforce; relatively high proportions of its workforce in
agriculture, manufacturing and services; and both transport and digital
connectivity issues. Further details were given of the strategic economic policy
context, along with the need to work closely with neighbouring areas such as
cross-border authorities (building on the Borderlands initiative) and the
Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal. The proposed South of
Scotland vehicle should cover the boundaries of Scottish Borders and Dumfries
& Galloway Council areas, a view that was supported by COSLA Leaders Group
and a South of Scotland Stakeholder session. Details were given of the
proposed guiding principles, role of the Vehicle, feedback on the role and remit
from the Stakeholder session held on 17 February 2017, priorities for the
Vehicle, preferred governance model, and resources required. In terms of next

Page 8

steps, both Councils were due to consider reports on the proposed approach to
the Vehicle. The agreed guiding principles and the agreed proposals gave a
framework for development of the Vehicle over the next few months with
partner engagement. Submissions would then be made to Scottish Government
and work would continue to progress the setting up of the new Vehicle as soon
as possible, including the establishment of a business stakeholder group and a
core stakeholder group.
7.2

Members of the Board discussed the Vehicle and asked a number of questions.
In terms of the number of jobs with the Vehicle, there could be some new jobs
but also some transferring from existing organisations. Much would depend on
whether further funding was available, but the sheer fact of bringing together
staff/work would produce cohesion. Alistair McKinnon commented that much
would depend on the detail of the Vehicle and strategy but it would need to do
something different and should not be about each partner continuing to do what
they had always done. Scottish Government would have expectations linked to
any additional funding. It would be important that the focus would be on towns
in the area catching up with Scotland as a whole, not simply one town catching
up with another town within the area. Tony Jakimciw offered congratulations to
the South of Scotland Alliance and officers for getting to this stage with the
project, but expressed some concern about the proposed governance model,
which, as a joint committee of both Councils could become very political and
cumbersome. An independent body could still have the same membership but
be autonomous. It had to be recognised that the South of Scotland was not a
region but 2 areas with different interests. Tracey Logan confirmed that a visit
had already been made to the Highlands and Islands Development Board to see
how it operated and a further visit was planned.
Noted.

8.

Economy and Low Carbon: City Deal
Bryan McGrath, SBC Chief Officer Economic Development, gave a presentation
on the proposed Edinburgh & South East Scotland City Region Deal, which
covered the Council areas in the Borders, East Lothian, Midlothian, West
Lothian, Edinburgh and Fife. While the region on the whole was successful responsible for over 30% of the Scottish economy – the wealth was not
distributed equally across the region. Potential for economic growth could be
unlocked through a new relationship between UK Government, Scottish
Government, local authorities, High and Further Education, and private sector
partners. Recent progress included refining the position with regard to the
details and phasing of projects submitted to both governments in early
November 2016; continuing series of workshops from December 2016 onwards;
ongoing discussions with both governments on innovation, infrastructure, skills,
culture/tourism, and housing/regeneration; ongoing stakeholder engagement;
and some challenging feedback received. The City Deal proposition was based
on innovation (driving economic growth), infrastructure (physical and digital)
and inclusion (growth for all), encompassing skills and housing/regeneration.
The next steps included ongoing negotiations with both governments and a
possible announcement by the end of April 2017. Tracey Logan confirmed that
the Tweedbank Business Park had been put forward for the Borders, and, if
agreed, resources could only be directed here. The intention was that City Deal
and the proposed South of Scotland Vehicle would work in tandem, with one not
superseding or obviating the other.
Noted.

9.

Reducing Inequalities Group: Highlight report
Sarah Watters presented the highlight report which covered progress with

Page 9

employment and income; attainment, achievement and inclusion; health and
wellbeing; housing and neighbourhoods; and keeping people safe.
Noted.
10.

Future Services Group: Highlight report
Nile Istephan, Eildon Housing Chief Executive, presented the highlight report
which covered progress with the work of the main Group and the Property &
Assets and Procurement & Community Benefit Sub-Groups. The Future
Services Group had a slightly different way of working to the other Themed
Groups to ensure there was no duplication. An example was given of the
intention of using CPP branding on generic recruitment material which could be
used by all partners to recruit from outside the Borders. In response to a
question, it was explained that health and social care integration was still
settling in and the provision of shared services was a challenge, with not many
examples of this happening elsewhere in the country.
Noted.

11.

Development Session for Community Planning Strategic Board
An update from Shona Smith, SBC Communities & Partnership Manager, on the
proposed development session for the Strategic Board was circulated at the
meeting. It was proposed that the next meeting of the Strategic Board on 22
June 2017 be allocated to a development session for the Board, focussing on an
overview of Community Planning, the Community Empowerment Act and the
sections of the Act in force and what that meant for the Strategic Board.
Alistair McKinnon asked that the potential impact of the proposed South of
Scotland Vehicle and Strategy on the Community Planning Partnership be
included in the session to ensure there was no duplication of effort; and Tony
Jakimciw asked for clarification of the pro-active role of the Strategic Board.
Action: AGREED (a) a development session for the Strategic
Shona
22 Jun 17
Board would be held on 22 June 2017
Smith
from 11am to 2.00 pm, with a working
lunch provided, followed by a brief
formal Board meeting if required; and
(b) details of the agenda be considered at
Shona
24 May 17
the next meeting of the Joint Delivery
Smith
Team and issued to the Strategic Board
for input.

12.

AOCB
No items were raised.

Page 10

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
ACTION SHEET
COMMUNITY PLANNING STRATEGIC BOARD - November 2012 onwards
Notes:1.
Paragraphs Marked with a * require full Council approval before action can be taken
2.
Items for which no actions are required are not included
NO.

MINUTE PARAGRAPH NUMBER, TITLE AND DECISION
REQUIRING ACTION

Page 11

24 November 2016
1.
Para 6 (Scottish Borders Community Justice Outcomes
Improvement Plan 2017 – 2020)
Action: Agreed that the consultation on the Community
Justice Outcomes Improvement Plan be issued and a report
of the outcome be brought back to the Strategic Board in due
course.
2.
Para 10 (Schedule and Format of Future Meetings)
Action:
(b)
a workshop would be organised for the members of
the CP Strategic Board.
3.

Para 11 (Development Session for Community Planning
Strategic Board)
Action: Agreed that
(a)
a development session for the Strategic Board would
be held on 22 June 2017 from 11am to 2pm, with a
working lunch provided, followed by a brief formal
Board meeting if required; and
(b)
details of the agenda be considered at the next
meeting of the Joint Delivery Team and issued to the
Strategic Board for input.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

SBC

Elaine Torrance

SBC

Shona Smith

All

Shone Smith

SBC

Shona Smith

SBC

Shona Smith

OUTCOME

On agenda 22/6/17

Arranged.
G

Agenda Item 3

9 March 2017
4.

Para 12 (AOCB – Conference for Community Planning
Consultative Group)
Action: Agreed that work on the content of the proposed
conference/ workshop for the wider Community Planning
Consultative Group would begin in early 2017.

ORGANISATION

NO.

KEY:
No symbol
R

A

G

MINUTE PARAGRAPH NUMBER, TITLE AND DECISION
REQUIRING ACTION

Deadline not reached
Overdue
<1 week to deadline
Complete – items removed from
tracker once noted as complete
at meeting.

ORGANISATION

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

OUTCOME

Page 12

Integrated
Children
and
Young
1. INTRODUCTION
People's Plan
INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN 2015-2018

IN THE SCOTTISH BORDERS 2017-2020

The Community Planning Partnership is committed to improving the well-being of all children
and young people across the Scottish Borders. We translate this commitment into action
through the work of the Children and Young People’s Leadership Group which brings together
partners from Scottish Borders Council, NHS Border

Page 13

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS
LEADERSHIP GROUP

Agenda Item 5

CONTENTS

INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S
PLAN 2017-2020
FOREWORD

3

1.

INTRODUCTION

5

2.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT

7

3.

ACHIEVEMENTS 2012-16

15

4.

OUR VISION AND PRIORITIES FOR INTEGRATED SERVICES 2017 - 2020

19

5.

WORKFORCE PLANNING

31

6.

RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING

33

7.

ENSURING PRIORITIES ARE ACHIEVED AND OUTCOMES ARE IMPROVED

35

8.

ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

36

APPENDICES
1.

INTEGRATED SERVICES FOR CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE AND RELATED SERVICES

37

2.

GLOSSARY

40

3.

REFERENCES

41

WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP WITH

14
2 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN |Page
2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S
PLAN 2017-2020

FOREWORD

The Scottish Borders Community Planning Partnership is committed to safeguarding, supporting
and promoting the well-being of all children and young people across the Scottish Borders. We
translate this commitment into action through the work of the Children and Young People’s
Leadership Group which brings together partners from Scottish Borders Council, NHS Borders,
Police Scotland, the Scottish Children’s Reporter Administration and the voluntary sector. The
Group focuses on shared priorities to deliver meaningful and sustainable improvements to the
lives of all our children and young people, particularly the most vulnerable.
The planning and delivery of our services are underpinned by the principles of the United Nations
Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and contribute to the Community Planning
Partnership (CPP) Single Outcome Agreement.
By embedding ‘Getting It Right For Every Child’ (GIRFEC) approach across our services, we will
continue to ensure that all our children and young people are safe, healthy, achieving, nurtured,
active, respected, responsible and included; achieving their unique potential and making a positive
contribution to society.
Scottish Borders offers rich opportunities for children and young people to thrive and go on to
be confident and successful adults. We want outcomes for all our children and young people
to improve whilst closing the gap between our most deprived and least deprived families and
communities, targeting resources at our most vulnerable children and young people.
A strong emphasis on developing Early Years Services and providing help and support at the
earliest possible stage will enable us to reduce the cycles of poverty, inequalities and poor
outcomes allowing us to provide all children and young people with the best start in life, helping
them to achieve their full potential within nurturing and supportive environments.
This plan which has been approved by the Community Planning Partnership builds on the
achievements of the previous Children and Young People’s Services Plan setting out a vision and
priorities for the future, highlighting our full commitment to work together in partnership to
pursue improved outcomes for all children, young people and families.
Jim Brown
Chair of Community Planning Partnership

Page
15 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 3
INTEGRATED

Page 16
4 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S
PLAN 2017-2020

1. INTRODUCTION

This Integrated Children and Young Peoples Plan (ICYPP) sets out the strategic direction for
Children & Young People’s Services in the Scottish Borders over the next 3 years 2017 – 2020,
with clear priorities to create opportunities and conditions so that children and young people in
the Scottish Borders have the best start in life.
The development of this plan is underpinned by the United Nations Convention on the Rights
of the Child (UNCRC), a significant range of legislation (the most recent of which has been the
Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014) and a range of national policy drivers such as
Curriculum for Excellence and `Getting it Right For Every Child (GIRFEC)’. It builds on previous
multi-agency planning and service developments in the Scottish Borders, recognising the
successes we have achieved in delivering the best outcomes for our children and young people,
whilst striving to make improvements across a number of key areas. The Plan aligns with the
Scottish Borders Community Planning Partnership (CPP) priorities as well as supporting those
set at the national level . In setting our current priorities, as partners we have made better
use of available data to drive improvement and we will continue to maximise the use of data,
indicators and other information so that we can clearly evidence improvements in outcomes
in life chances. In addition, the Plan expresses our commitment to understanding more fully
the totality of our resources and budgets for children and young people’s services across the
partnership and explore ways to use these more creatively and efficiently, making the best use
of available resources. Through the life of this Plan, we will continue to work to strengthen
relationships between the public and third sectors, ensuring that our service delivery becomes
even more integrated.
The Children and Young People’s Leadership Group (CYPLG) was established in 2014 to provide
strengthened cohesive strategic leadership across the CPP, building on the work of the Children
and Young People’s Planning Partnership. The CYPLG is a decision making group of senior
officers from the key stakeholders who deliver Children and Young People’s services in the
Scottish Borders including Scottish Borders Council, NHS Borders, Police Scotland, Scottish
Children’s Reporter Administration (SCRA) and the third sector (Youth Borders). Supporting
and promoting the wellbeing of children and young people across the Scottish Borders and
improving their live chances is the key aim of the Group and the views and experiences inform
the work that we do.
Figure 1 overleaf illustrates the governance structure of the CYPLG.

Page
17 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 5
INTEGRATED

SCOTTISH BORDERS COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP
JOINT DELIVERY TEAM

Critical Services
Oversight Group


SCOTTISH BORDERS COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP
STRATEGIC BOARD


Integrated Joint
Board Scottish
Borders Health &
Social Care Strategic
Plan 2016-2019


FIGURE 1
CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S LEADERSHIP GROUP



Child Protection
Committee

IJB Executive
Management Team





CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE'S LEADERSHIP GROUP



Scottish Borders Council
NHS Borders
Police Scotland
Scottish Children's Reporter Administrator
Third Sector






SCOTTISH BORDERS INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE'S PLAN 2017-2020

Strategic Corporate
Parenting Group

  

CYPLG
Executive Group

Commissioning
Sub Group

Early Years
Group

Children & Young
People's Planning
Group

Key



Direct oversight and report to
Reporting and consultatiom

The Children and Young People’s Leadership Group sets the strategic direction for the planning
and delivery of services for children and young people through the implementation of this
Plan. The Group is responsible for identifying challenges and mitigating risks associated with
implementing the Plan. Its work is supported by a set of sub groups:
The Children and Young People’s Executive Group is a sub set of the CYPLG who drive forward
the implementation of this plan and also oversee programmes of improvement work, an example
being the embedding of the GIRFEC approach across all services.
The Early Years Group is responsible for the Early Years Strategy and related actions to enable
children to have the best possible start in life. This includes support for families before birth up to
when the child is 8 years old.
The Children and Young People’s Planning Group is responsible for improving outcomes and
reducing inequalities for all young people aged 8-18 years (25 for looked after young people).
The Commissioning Group leads all multi-agency commissioning activities initiated to improve
outcomes for children and their families with targeted services to better support children and
young people. It seeks to ensure that GIRFEC and the UNCRC principles are firmly embedded
within all commissions and to work in partnership and collaboratively with service providers.

18
6 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN |Page
2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S
PLAN 2017-2020

2. STRATEGIC CONTEXT

KEY LEGISLATION AND NATIONAL POLICY
This Plan ensures that the planning and delivery of our services complies with policies,
legislation and guidance across the Scottish Government. The requirements of the Children and
Young People’s (Scotland) Act 2014 has been particularly influential in formulating this plan but
the legislation, strategies and policies listed in Appendix 2 provide an indication of the range
of areas which have been considered in planning future services for children, young people
and families. The priorities set out within the plan directly support the Scottish Government’s
National Outcomes, specifically:
04

Our young people are successful learners, confident individuals, effective contributors
and responsible citizens

05

Our children have the best start in life and are ready to succeed

07

We have tackled the significant inequalities in Scottish society

08

We have improved the life chances for young people and families at risk

SCOTTISH COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP
PRIORITIES
In 2013, the Community Planning Strategic Board considered the Scottish Borders Strategic
Assessment and agreed its vision for the Scottish Borders.

By 2023, quality of life will have improved for those
who are currently living within our most deprived
communities, through a stronger economy and
through targeted partnership action

Page
19 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 7
INTEGRATED

The Board chose three strategic priorities which will help drive progress towards its vision.
1.
2.
3.

Grow our economy and maximise the impact from the low carbon agenda
Reduce inequalities
Reform future services

All three strategic priorities are applicable to the Children and Young People’s Plan but the theme of
reducing inequalities is central to supporting our aim of improving the wellbeing of all our children,
young people and families.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN THE SCOTTISH BORDERS
The estimated 2015 population for Scottish Borders was 114,030: an increase of 0.1 per cent from
2013. The table below shows the total number of children and young people living in the Scottish
Borders. The age group with the largest number of children and young people is 10-15 year old group.

TABLE 1: POPULATION OF CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE,
SCOTTISH BORDERS
LOCALITY

AGE GROUPS

TOTAL AGE
TOTAL
GROUP
POPULATION
0-24
(ALL AGES)

0-4

5-9

10-15

16-19

20-24

1,016

1,025

1,291

857

918

5,107

20,827

Cheviot

930

934

1,123

836

882

4,705

19,514

Eildon

1,835

1,909

2,224

1,649

1,879

9,496

35,035

Teviot and
Liddesdale

928

829

1,067

739

837

4,400

17,806

Tweeddale

1,069

1,281

1,514

896

837

5,597

20,848

Scottish Borders

5,778

5,978

7,219

4,977

5,353

29,305

114,030

Berwickshire

		

Source: NRS 2015 SAPE				

The table overleaf shows how the age groups compare across localities in the Scottish Borders
and with the total population as a whole.

TABLE 3: POPULATION OF CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE AS A
PERCENTAGE
LOCALITY

AGE GROUPS

TOTAL AGE
TOTAL
GROUP
POPULATION
0-24
(ALL AGES)

0-4

5-9

10-15

16-19

20-24

Berwickshire

17.6%

17.1%

17.9%

17.2%

17.1%

17.4%

18.3%

Cheviot

16.1%

15.6%

15.6%

16.8%

16.5%

16.1%

17.1%

Eildon

31.8%

31.9%

30.8%

33.1%

35.1%

32.4%

30.7%

Teviot and
Liddesdale

16.1%

13.9%

14.8%

14.8%

15.6%

15.0%

15.6%

Tweeddale

18.5%

21.4%

21.0%

18.0%

15.6%

19.1%

18.3%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

Scottish Borders

100.0% 100.0%

Source: NRS 2015 SAPE				

		

20
8 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN |Page
2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

The chart below shows the projected population forecasting a slight growth in the population
of 10 – 15 year olds and 5-9 year olds over the coming years with a longer term reduction. This
contrasts with a predicted decrease in the 16 – 24 year age group over the coming years.

FIGURE 3: PROJECTED POPULATION, CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE 2012 - 2037
8,000
7,500
7,000
6,500
6,000
5,500
5,000
4,500
4,000
3,500

Age 0-4

Age 5-9

Age 10-15

Age 16-19

Source: NRScotland Population Projections 2012-2037				

2037

2036

2035

2034

2033

2032

2031

2030

2029

2028

2027

2026

2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

3,000

Age 20-24

		

The number of young people under the age of 25 accounts for 24.4% of the Scottish Borders
population. The latest projections from the National Records of Scotland (NRS) show that over
the next 25 years, Scottish Borders will see no net change in population. This is due to decreased
net migration and fewer births. The number of people aged under the age of 65 is expected to
decrease. Working age population (16-64) is projected to decline by over 13,500 or 20%. The
number of people aged 25 and under is expected to decrease by 9.8%.

Page
21 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 9
INTEGRATED

INEQUALITIES IN THE SCOTTISH BORDERS
The Scottish Borders is a safe and healthy place to live when compared to other local authority and
NHS Board areas. However, data indicates that there are a number of areas and key groups where
significant inequalities exist and where there is a negative impact on children and young people.
The Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation (SIMD) is the Scottish Government's official tool for
identifying those places in Scotland suffering from deprivation. Of the 130 datazones in the
Scottish Borders, 5 are found in the 15% of the most deprived datazones in Scotland. These
deprived datazones are in Galashiels and Hawick and account for 3.5% of the population of the
Scottish Borders.

AREAS OF DEPRIVATION
FIGURE 4: AREAS OF DEPRIVATION

Living in a deprived area impacts on the lives of children and young people in a variety of ways:
• Between 2009 and 2013 the proportion of children living in poverty in the Scottish Borders and
Scotland has decreased. The Scottish Borders consistently has a lower proportion of children
living in poverty compared to Scotland (10.9% compared to 15.3% in Scotland, 2012), the
proportion of children living in poverty is as high as 28% in our most deprived areas
• Household incomes in Scottish Borders are well below the Scottish average
• Educational attainment and achievement is lower in areas of deprivation.
The SIMD ranks small areas (called datazones) from most deprived (ranked 1) to least deprived (ranked 6,505). People using
the SIMD will often focus on the datazones below a certain rank, for example, the 5%, 10%, 15% or 20% most deprived datazones
in Scotland.

1

22
10 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

KEY FACTS

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
SAFETY
KEY FACTS
• In 2015-16, 248 children were referred to the Scottish Children’s Reporter, 13.1 children
per 1000 compared with the Scottish average of 16.8. The most common ground for
referral was ‘lack of parental care’ and the most common age bracket for referrals was
12-15 years
• On 31st July 2015 there were 28 children in the Scottish Borders on the Child Protection
Register. This an increase of 12 children from the previous year
• Over the period July 2015 – March 2016, there was an average of 47 referrals per month
to the Scottish Children’s Reporter Administrator
• There was an average of 28 children on the Child Protection Register over the same time
period. The most common reasons for being on the register were domestic abuse and
emotional abuse.

WELLBEING AND LIFE CHANCES
KEY FACTS
• The most recent SALSUS data shows a reduction in the percentage of 15 year olds drinking
on a weekly basis
• In 2013, 16% of 15 year olds reported drug use in the previous year, an apparent increase
on previous years. This rate is above the Scottish average although is similar to the rate
for comparable local authority areas. 16% equates to 106 young people.
• There has been a large drop in the proportion of pupils reporting smoking in recent years.
In the 2013 SALSUS study, the proportion of S4 pupils in the Borders reporting regular
smoking – 9% - is the lowest since the survey began.
• An increasing number of Young Carers are being identified and supported. The Young
Carers Service supports 70 Young Carers each year and more Young Carers are being
identified at a younger age, supported through universal services
• In 2015 there were 227 children in the Scottish Borders affected by disability and or
complex health needs requiring a high level of support in order to access education. A
small number attend specialist provision outwith the Borders but the majority attend
mainstream schools and / or support centres attached to mainstream schools
• Scottish Borders has a lower level of Looked After Children (1.0%) as a percentage of the
child population (Age 0-17) in comparison to the National Scottish Figure (1.5%)
• There is an increasing trend of Looked After Children being cared for by a family member
(32 in July 2012, 48 in July 2015 and 57 in July 2016) and a decreasing trend of these
children being placed outwith the Scottish Borders area
• Looked After Children have improved inclusion within Primary and Secondary Schools and
a higher number are going on to a positive destination.

Page
23 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 11
INTEGRATED

HEALTH
KEY FACTS
• The general health of children and young people across the Scottish Borders is good but
there are some noticeable differences in a small number of deprived areas
• 80% of pregnant women register for ante-natal care by 12 weeks of pregnancy and this is
consistent across areas of highest and lowest deprivation
• 97% of clients offered Family Nurse Partnership take up the programme
• Smoking in pregnancy rates appear to be higher in the Scottish Borders than the Scottish
average. Smoking rates tend to be closely associated with deprivation
• 99% of women were offered CO monitoring at booking and those with a reading above the
threshold recommended are offered smoking cessation support
• Breastfeeding rates in the Scottish Borders are higher than the average for Scotland. In
2015-16, 34.1% of babies were exclusively breastfed at 6-8 weeks compared to 28% for
Scotland. Rates within the Scottish Borders are higher in the least deprived areas.
• Registration and uptake of Healthy Start vitamins is slowly increasing through projects
within the Early Years Centres
• Uptake rates for immunisations at 24 months and for the first dose of MMR at 5 years
is 95%. NHS Borders is in the top three Boards for uptake of flu vaccine in primary and
school aged children
• In 2014/15, 91% of children offered a health and development review at 27-30 months had
an assessment completed
• The majority of children (70.2%) are within the healthy weight range at the 27-30 month
review (2015/16). A range of healthy weight advice and support is provided in Early Years
settings through groups and through training for the Early Year’s workforce
• 15% of the children assessed at 27-30 months in 2015/16 had at least one development
concern. Speech, language and communication was the most common concern (10%)
• In 2015/16 78.3% of children in primary 1 were classified as being within a healthy weight,
which was higher than the Scottish average
• A total of 4116 children took part in the Fit4Fun child healthy weight programme in schools
between 2011 and 2017, providing sessions on health food choices, cooking skills and
active living
• In 2016, 76.2% of P1 children showed no obvious signs of dental decay compared with
69.4% nationally
• The latest National Dental Improvement Programme report 2015 shows that Scottish
Borders has the highest percentage rate with no obvious decay experience in permanent
teeth (83.6%) for P7 children in Scotland, 9% which is significantly lower than the average

24
12 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

ATTAINMENT, ACHIEVEMENT AND INCLUSION
KEY FACTS
• The number of children and young people at school at the start of the school term in
academic year 2016/2017 was 8171 in primary school and 6392 in secondary school
• In 2015, 94% of school leavers had a positive destination compared to 92% for Scotland.
• Primary school and secondary school attendance is higher in the Scottish Borders
compared to the Scottish average
• There is a 4 year trend of improved attainment levels for children leaving the school
system. More young people are attaining higher levels of qualification and more are being
presented for formal qualifications. The range and breadth of qualification have also
increased
• Scottish Borders identifies more pupils with Additional Support Needs (25%) than the
national average (21%) (Scottish Parliament Report, April 2015)
• Exclusions from school, both primary and secondary, have fallen compared with 2014/15
• Achievement levels are increasing with more young people gaining recognition for Duke of
Edinburgh, Sports Leadership and Saltire Awards than ever before
• Achievement levels are more diverse with young people able to gain Youth Achievement
Awards, working with our third sector partners and the informal learning environment
• Scottish Borders opens more CSPs for SBC pupils (2.9%) than the national average (2.2%)
(Scottish Parliament Report, April 2015).

Page
25 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 13
INTEGRATED

Page 26
14 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S
PLAN 2017-2020

3. ACHIEVEMENTS 2012-16

The CYPLG is committed to recognising and celebrating good practice, seeking to build on the
progress made in implementing the previous plan as we move ahead with our ambitions for 2017
– 20. The previous plan focused on a series of priority themes. The section below highlights key
achievements that the CYPLG has delivered across these themes.

GETTING IT RIGHT FOR EVERY CHILD
We have developed a robust set of tools and processes that underpin our work with individual
children and their families. These include:
•
•
•

Multi-agency guidance ensuring a consistent approach to assessment, planning and
reviewing outcomes for individual children who require enhanced support across our agencies
supported by multi-agency training
The introduction of the Well-being Web tool to obtain the views of children and parents/carers
contributing to the measurement of progress for a child
Strengthening of quality assurance within the planning process to ensure that children and
young people are being considered within the appropriate processes.

PROMOTING CHILDREN’S RIGHTS
We have created a range of opportunities for young people to have their voice heard, crucial
information for the work of the CYPLG through the following:
•
•
•
•
•

Scottish Borders Council’s CLD Service delivers Youth Voice and Youth Chex which supports
children and young people across Scottish Borders to influence decision-makers and shape
services
Establishing pupil representatives on the SBC Education Executive to ensure the voices of
young people are heard at the highest level decision making forum
A number of schools have achieved Rights Respecting Schools awards
The achievement of the European Association Hospital Charter status by the Children’s Ward
at Borders General Hospital
Supporting the Scottish Borders three Members of the Scottish Youth Parliament (MSYPs)
who represent the constituent views of young people and hosting a sitting for the MSYPs from
across Scotland in 2016.

Page
27 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 15
INTEGRATED

KEEPING CHILDREN SAFE
We have taken a variety of steps to keep children and young people safe:
•
•
•
•
•

•

The wellbeing web tool has been rolled out to ensure the delivery of improved outcomes for children
and young people on the child protection register
The Keeping Children Safe and Well tool has been further developed and refined and further embedded
across services to ensure effective assessment of risks
The views of parents who have been involved in the child protection process continues to be gathered
with findings informing service improvements and developments
An innovative set of integrated services have been established to provide support for children and young
people affected by domestic abuse. We have also improved information sharing and care planning by
introducing Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conferences to protect high risk victims of domestic abuse.
Following a review of drug and alcohol services, a new family oriented service was commissioned to
support children and young people affected by the drug and/or alcohol use of their parents, carers,
children and young people with their own substance use concerns and parents who need to address the
impact of their own use on their family.
An established Partnership model of youth work delivery ensures local youth clubs are available in all
of our major settlements. This model was recognised as best practice and unique in Scotland.

EARLY YEARS
There has been significant improvement activity across Early Years settings:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

There has been significant extension and improvement in Early Years provision, with the successful
implementation of free early learning and childcare for eligible 2 year olds with an uptake from 57% to
78% in the first 2 years
Early Years Centres have been established in 4 target areas by the CYPLG as a strong joint commitment
to providing families with early support in an open and welcome environment. They have been
welcomed by the communities with higher than anticipated attendance
A Welfare Benefits Officer post has been created to address child poverty through income
maximisation. Advice has been offered to families in a range of venues including the Early Years
Centres and this contributed to a total gain of £585,000 for families in 2015
There has been improving standards in SBC nursery settings which has been evidenced within
inspection findings
The Family Nurse Partnership has been introduced in the Borders to provide intensive support to
teenage mothers.
We have strengthened our partnerships to deliver a more integrated range of programmes and
activities that support parent-child relationships and build confidence and knowledge of parents to
promote child health and wellbeing
Hospital and community services including the Early Years Centres have been reaccredited under the
UNICEF Baby Friendly Initiative.

LOOKED AFTER AND ACCOMMODATED CHILDREN
Achievements for our looked after and accommodated children include:
•
•
•
•

Free access to sports and leisure opportunities through LIVE Borders has been expanded to include
those in kinship care, kinship carers and care leavers.
Multi-agency training focusing on meeting the needs of Looked after Children (“We Can and Must Do
Better”) has been offered to a range of staff including newly qualified teachers, LAC Co-ordinators and
Additional Needs Assistants as well as Foster Carers, Police Officers and Educational Psychologists.
Regular Corporate Parenting Seminars have been held to highlight the needs of looked after children
and the role that we all have to play in ensuring that we provide the best possible support for these
children.
A new Health Needs Assessment process has been implemented for looked after children

28
16 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

•
•

There has been a 33% increase in the number of foster carers from 2011 to 2015 (48 in July 2012 and
64 in July 2015)
Our residential service achieved excellent gradings in all quality indicators in the Care Inspectorate
inspection in 2015.

PARENTING
Support for parents have been enhanced:
•
•

We have successfully introduced the Psychology of Parenting in Scottish Borders, using a multiagency
delivery team
The Early Years Centres offer a wide and varied range of parenting supports, programmes, benefits advice
family activities as well as more informal opporunties, with a range of services working together from
statutory to third sector.

IMPROVED ATTAINMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT FOR ALL
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
We continue to deliver strong performance in attainment and achievement across schools:
•

•

•
•

•

There is a positive trend of improved attainment levels for children leaving our school system. In 2015 the
highest levels of achievement in literacy and numeracy were achieved particularly in literacy in numeracy
and the attainment of young people living in areas of deprivation improved. In 2016, with the publication
of the National Improvement Framework data, pupils from Scottish Borders achieved higher than the
Scottish average at all levels
During the implementation of Curriculum for Excellence, schools have improved the quality of their
curriculum to ensure that there are greater opportunities for children and young people to experience
skills for learning, life and work. As a result, our positive and sustained destinations are in the top
quartile nationally and demonstrate a significantly improving picture with an upward trend over the last 4
years
There has been a reduction in exclusion rates and attendance has improved. Schools are developing
more inclusive cultures and climate supported by structures and systems which build capacity to be
more responsive to the needs of our most vulnerable learners.
Our systems for our most vulnerable learners have improved. The Additional Needs Multi-agency Team
(ANMaT) meets fortnightly and undertakes a quality assurance role in relation to the requirements of
the Additional Support for Learning Act and wider issues with regard to children with additional support
needs. Over the last 3 years, the group has tightened up the multi-agency Co-ordinated Support Planning
process, provided detailed guidance packs for professional staff and promoted improved approaches for
ensuring the views of children and parents are fully embedded in planning and decision-making.
Our partnership working to reduce inequalities has improved through the introduction of Learning
Community Partnerships with the development of our Community Learning and Development Strategic
Plan. These involve Public and Third Sector organisations in the joint analysis of local need and
collaborative planning of programmes of work. It has also enabled some learners to be reintroduced
to formal education through informal learning settings, woking together to find the best way to support
those who may become disengaged and who might fall through the gap.

PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT
Working in partnership with parents has continued with:
•
•
•
•

The views of parents and carers being central to the design and implementation of the Early Years Centres.
Regular engagement sessions by senior officers and the Parent Council Chairs Forum regarding
developments across Education as well as consultation and engagement on policy
Extensive engagement consultation with parents and carers to inform planning around the development of
the school estate and this is ongoing within specific communities in the Scottish Borders
Consultation on early learning and childcare provision has informed service developments.

Page
29 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 17
INTEGRATED

IMPROVED HEALTH AND WELL-BEING FOR CHILDREN
AND YOUNG PEOPLE
There have been a range of developments in health and wellbeing:
•
•
•
•
•

A school and community-based Fit4Fun Programme on healthy eating and active living has
been delivered to meet identified needs
Midwives in the multi-agency Early Years Assessment Team provide a range of support on
healthy lifestyles for pregnant women
A tobacco prevention programme has been rolled out in partnership with Community Learning
and Development with active engagement with young people
7,911 children and young people (54% of the Borders P1-S6 population) took part in at least one
extra-curricular physical activity programme in the last year
Registration and delivery of Healthy Start vitamins has been implemented within the Early
Years Centres.

TRANSITIONS 16+
Differences have been made in supporting young people to transition to adult services and move
into a positive destination:
•
•
•
•
•
•
-

We have established an Activity Agreements programme to successfully support some of our
most vulnerable young people into further education
The Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service now provides support to young people up to
the age of 18
Improvements have been made to the Vulnerable Young Person Protocol and this is now
included in the Child Protection Procedures in order to ensure staff implement this as
appropriate
Improvements in multi-agency working are supporting more vulnerable young people into
positive and sustained destinations, through developing the Young Workforce initiative
Dedicated resources are now in each High School to deliver our Senior Phase Strategy.
This will support positive destinations, create local employer partnerships agreements and
establish new standards for work based learning
A strategic partnership structure is now in place to work on
Piloting foundation apprenticeships and
Build on the success of our School College Academy to increase learner pathways in the senior
phase.

WORKFORCE PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
Improvements have been delivered through further developing an appropriately skilled
workforce:
•
•
•

•

As a result of inspection findings in 2016, immediate action has been taken to implement
a multi agency training programme to improve the practice in developing and formulating
chronologies and immediate benefits have been delivered
There has been a significant programme of multi-agency training and awareness raising
sessions to embed the GIRFEC approach across Scottish Borders
The Child Protection Committee has continued to provide a range of multi-agency and single
agency training and awareness raising events including specific sessions for taxi drivers,
6th year pupils, ambulance drivers and staff from housing providers. We have continued to
develop and deliver multi-agency training on a wide range of topics such as domestic violence,
substance misuse, suicide prevention and self-harm and child nutrition.
Multi-agency training in the Solihull approach continues to prepare our early years
practitioners to support children and their families.

30
18 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S
PLAN 2017-2020

4. OUR VISION & PRIORITIES
FOR INTEGRATED SERVICES
2017 – 2020
To define the strategic priorities for 2017-2020 and be clear where outcomes need to be
improved and where resources should be targeted, the CYPLG have taken a methodical
approach completing a number of steps including:
•

•

•
•

Undertaking a mapping exercise to determine the range of services for children and young
people which are integral to this plan whilst identifying the further range of related services
which have a role in supporting the wellbeing of families. A full list of these services is
found at appendix 1
Completing an analysis of service performance data and statistics which has included
information on the population of our children and young people across the communities
. A needs assessment has been concluded through the development of the new Children
& Young People’s Services Commissioning Strategy 2017 – 2022 along with a mapping of
spend across partners agencies in the Scottish Borders
Combining this analysis with the findings of the joint inspection of integrated children and
young people’s inspection completed by the Care Inspectorate in 2016
Consulting with service users including specific communities, families, young people and
members of the wider public on the proposed priorities over the last 12 months.

Through completing these steps and reviewing the findings, the CYPLG has developed its vision
and defined 5 key priorities which will be progressed over the next 3 years and beyond. These
priorities set out the areas in which we will focus our work and provide the strategic direction for
our integrated services.

Page
31 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 19
INTEGRATED

OUR VISION
FIGURE 5: VISION – CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S LEADERSHIP
GROUP

safe
included

respected

healthy

All children and
young people in the
Scottish Borders
will achieve their
unique potential

responsible

active

nurtured
achieving

In pursuit of our vision, we will strive to improve the well-being and life chances of all our
children, young people and families through the provision of high quality, integrated services. We
are committed to ensuring that all our children and young people living in the Scottish Borders
have a good childhood and are prepared for adulthood. We will maintain a strong focus on early
intervention and prevention, building resilience and supporting children, young people and families
to develop the skills and capabilities that enable them to navigate the challenges of modern life. LIn
delivering on these priorities we will ensure that the GIRFEC approach and the UNCRC is embedded
within the work required to achieve our aims. We are strong advocates of partnership working, and
are committed to wkring collaboratively, ensuring services are joined up and we strive to meet the
needs of children and young people where they are.

32
20 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

Our planning is underpinned by a set of principles in respect to how we intend to deliver services:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Focusing on early intervention and prevention; ensuring we target families early enough
Ensuring that children and families’ needs are at the centre of service design and delivery
Ensuring reducing inequalities is a priority across all services but that we get an appropriate
balance between resourcing targeted and universal services
Improving integrated working and focusing on combined resources
Working with and empowering communities
Improving outcomes for every child and their families highest achievers.

GIRFEC and the Wellbeing Indicators
We have utilised the GIRFEC approach in Scottish Borders for several years. Improving wellbeing
for every child and their families is a key pillar in developing and improving our services for children
and young people and we will aim to deliver improvements in outcomes in safety, healthy, achieving,
nutured, active, respected, responsible and included. More detail on the indicators is found below.
Where work supports the wellbeing indicators, this has been detailed under each of our strategic
priorities.

UNCRC
We aim to further embed the UNCRC throughout our work. Our services will put the child at the
centre and will take account of their views when making decisions about their lives . With the
actions which are included to deliver on the priorities, it has been indicated when this supports the
UNCRC.

FIGURE 6: THE WELLBEING INDICATORS

Page
33 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 21
INTEGRATED

Furthermore our planning has been underpinned by a set of principles in respect to how we
intend to deliver services:
•
•
•
•
•

Focusing on early intervention and prevention; ensuring we target families early enough
Ensuring that children and families’ needs are at the centre of service design and delivery
Ensuring reducing inequalities is a priority across all services and that we have appropriate
balance between resourcing targeted and universal services
Improving integrated working and focusing on combined resources
Working with and empowering communities.

Children and young people can expect that;

we will provide them with high quality services to help give them the best possible start in life and
support them to succeed as they develop into adulthood. For those children and young people who
face specific challenges in their lives, we will provide targeted support.

For families this means that;

we will work in partnership with parents and carers because we believe that they know their
children best and our services will be more effective if we listen to their views and include them in
decisions that affect their children. We will aim to get the right targeted support for parents at the
earliest possible opportunity in order to provide their children with a safe and nurturing upbringing.

For everyone providing services for children and young people, this means
that;

we recognise and value the knowledge, skills and commitment of our workforce. We will listen to
the views of our workforce and will equip them with the development opportunities and tools to
support the delivery of high quality services. We will work with our partners to support them in
achieving joint goals and we will ensure that our services can become even more integrated.

For communities in the Scottish Borders, this means that;

it’s everyone’s business to look out for our children and young people and make them feel included
and valued within their communities. We want to work with communities towards these aims.

For the Community Planning Partnership, this means that;

we need their ongoing support and involvement of the wider membership to ensure the delivery of
this Plan and a commitment to keeping the needs of children, young people and their families at the
centre of strategic planning in the Scottish Borders.

34
22 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

Our Five Key Priorities:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Keeping children and young people safe
Promoting the health and well-being of all children and young people and reducing health
inequalities
Improving the well-being and life chances for our most vulnerable children and young people
Raising attainment and achievement for all learners Increasing participation and engagement
Increasing participation and enagement.

The diagram below demonstrates the links between the national outcomes, the local strategic
priorities of the Community Planning Partnership, our key priorities and how we aim to translate
these into improved outcomes for children and young people.

SCOTTISH BORDERS CPP STRATEGIC PRIORITIES



Grow our economy
and maximise the
impact from the low
carbon agenda

Reduce inequalities



ICYPP Key Priorities

ICYPP Key Outcomes

Raising attainment
and achievement for
all and closing the gap
between the lowest
and highest achievers



Inequalities in educational
outcomes and attainment
between the most and least
deprived children across the
Borders are reduced



More children and young
people are equipped with
the knowledge and skills to
proceed to adult working live

Improving health and
reducing inequalities



Inequalities in the health
and wellbeing of young
people are reduced



Keeping children and
young people safe



More children and young
people will be protected from
abuse, harm or neglect and
will be living in a supportive
environment feeling secure
and cared for



Improving the
wellbeing and life
chances for our most
vulnerable children
and young people



The life chances of the
most vulnerable children in
the Borders are improved



All of our children and young
people will be encouraged to
be involved in the planning
provision and delivery of
services and their rights are
proactively considered

Future services
reform



Increasing
participation and
engagement

Page
35 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 23
INTEGRATED

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S LEADERSHIP GROUP

FIGURE 7: THE GOLDEN THREAD

DELIVERING ON THE PRIORITIES
This section outlines the strategic outcomes that we aim to achieve over the lifetime of this Plan and
the high level actions that are planned in order to support our ambitions for our children and young
people.

PRIORITY 1

Keeping children and young people safe

OUTCOME

More children and young people will be protected from abuse, harm or neglect and will be
living in a supportive environment, feeling secure and cared for
The strategic overview of the inter-agency approach to keeping children and young people safe is
undertaken by the Scottish Borders Child Protection Committee (CPC). The work of the CPC has
many strands including ensuring that the Child Protection procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated, providing training and awareness-raising programmes to a range of staff who directly
or indirectly have a role in keeping children and young people safe, rigorously monitoring and
evaluating child protection services and ensuring that areas for improvement are addressed; and
ensuring that the views of children, young people and parents about our services are listened to
and, where appropriate, acted upon as part of our improvement planning.
However, responsibility for keeping children and young people safe does not just lie with the CPC,
the Child Protection Unit or Social Work. For all staff who work with children and young people,
this is a fundamental part of their role. The protection of children is also the responsibility of all
members of the public. Embedding the GIRFEC approach has enabled staff to be better able to
identify risk at an earlier stage and to intervene appropriately and proportionately.

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2017-20
ACTION

LEAD

TIMESCALE

SUPPORTS
WELLBEING
INDICATOR

SUPPORTS
UNCRC

Child
Protection
Committee

October 2016

safe

✓

CYPLG

December
2020

safe

✓

Continue the development of the CPC
range of training programmes

Child
Protection
Committee

December
2020

safe

✓

Implement the Neglect Tool across
partner agencies

Child
Protection
Committee

March 2018

safe

✓

Publish the Child Sexual Exploitation
(CSE) Strategy and implement with
a development programme for staff,
parents, children and young people
Ensure staff are supported to develop
and maintain the skills, knowledge and
confidence to deliver high quality and
effective child protection services

36
24 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

ACTION

LEAD

TIMESCALE

SUPPORTS
WELLBEING
INDICATOR

SUPPORTS
UNCRC

Develop and implement a digital safety
strategy for young people across the
Borders

CYPLG

March 2018

safe

✓

Collect and review more outcome
focussed data to ensure children and
young people feel safe as a result of child
protection interventions

CYPLG

December
2017

safe

✓

PRIORITY 2

Promoting the Health and Wellbeing of all Children and Young People and Reducing
Inequalities

OUTCOME

5. STRATEGIC OUTCOMES
AND HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS

Inequalities in the health and wellbeing of young people are reduced

Health inequalities are unfair differences in health across different social groups and between
different groups of the population. The CYPLG recognise that these inequalities are not random or
inevitable and we aim to address these through partnership commitment, using evidence based
approaches.
Evidence shows that the first 3 years of a child’s life strongly influence health and wellbeing
throughout childhood and into adulthood. Circumstances and experiences in these early years can
impact on risks of long term ill health associated with obesity, conditions such as heart disease,
substance misuse and poor mental health. We aim to ensure that all children have the best start in
life and have health childhoods.
We aim to build more resilient communities, enabling children, young people, parents, families and
services to feel more confident and supported, and better able to help each other.

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2017-20
ACTION

LEAD

TIMESCALE

SUPPORTS
WELLBEING
INDICATOR

SUPPORTS
UNCRC

Improve universal programmes and
approaches to promote health and
wellbeing to ensure they meet the
needs of those at risk of poorer health
outcomes

CYPLG

December
2020

healthy

✓

March 2018

healthy

✓

Education
Implement the Growing in Confidence
Service
programme across services to build
the capacity of staff across universal Commissioning
services to promote emotional health
Group
and wellbeing for children and young
people and provide better access
to timely mental health support for
children and young people who need
this

Page
37 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 25
INTEGRATED

ACTION

LEAD

TIMESCALE

SUPPORTS
WELLBEING
INDICATOR

Provide targeted support and
interventions for families who are more
likely to experience poor health outcomes
by sustaining the Psychology of Parenting
Programme

CYPLG

December
2020

healthy

Strengthen integrated planning
within localities through Early Year’s
Partnerships and develop hub and spoke
model in each through capacity building
and self evaluation

Early Years
Group

December
2020

healthy
nurtured

Work proactively with Community
Planning Partners to maximise income
and resources for households with
children and to promote access to
employment opportunities prioritising
the uptake of ELC provision for eligible
2’s and providing targeted support to
families

CYPLG
Reducing
Inequalities
Delivery
Team

December
2020

healthy

Page 38

SUPPORTS
UNCRC

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

PRIORITY 3

Improving the wellbeing and life chances for our most vulnerable children and young people

OUTCOME

The life chances of the most vulnerable children in the Borders are improved

In addition to focussing our attention on those children and young people in our more deprived
communities, we are also committed to improving outcomes for particular groups whose
circumstances places them at significant disadvantage unless specific arrangements and services
are put in place for them. Examples are looked after children, children with disabilities or complex
needs, young carers, young people who have offended and children with drug/alcohol problems
or who are affected by parental substance misuse, domestic violence and parental mental health
difficulties.
In recognition of the particular needs of these children and young people, we have specific
strategies in place such as the Corporate Parenting Strategy (Looked After Children), Young Carers
Strategy and Drug & Alcohol Strategy. This ensures that the particular needs of these children and
young people have a consistently high profile with senior officers and arrangements and services for
addressing their particular needs are subject to on-going review and revision in our drive to improve
outcomes.

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2017-20
ACTION

LEAD

TIMESCALE

SUPPORTS
WELLBEING
INDICATOR

SUPPORTS
UNCRC

Improve outcomes for all Looked After
Children through the implementation of
the Corporate Parenting Strategy and
Action Plan 2014-18

Strategic
Corporate
Parenting
Group

December
2020

All indicators

✓

Align the Young Carer’s Strategy with the
Carer’s (Scotland) Act 2016 and ensure
young carers are supported across
services

CYPLG

March 2018

All indicators

✓

Implement the elements of the Drug &
Alcohol Strategy relevant to children and
young people

Alcohol
& Drugs
Partnership

December
2020

safe
healthy
responsible

✓

Develop a Parenting Strategy with a
recommended programme of support for
parents and a workforce development
plan

CYPLG

October 2017

safe
nurtured

✓

Increase the number of children and their
families who benefit from a self–directed
support approach will be increased

Children &
Families
Social Work

December
2010

safe

✓

Ensure Looked After Children have their
initial health assessment within 6 weeks
of becoming looked after

Children &
Women’s
Health
Services

June 2017

healthy

✓

Page
39 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 27
INTEGRATED

ACTION

LEAD

TIMESCALE

SUPPORTS
WELLBEING
INDICATOR

Increase supported tenancy
options for young people who have
experienced care, providing relevant
& flexible options

Children &
Families Social
Work
Housing Service

March 2018

safe
responsible
included

Identify ways to provide independent
advocacy for vulnerable children and
young people

Commissioning
Group

March 2018

Included
responsible

✓

Ensure that children with complex
needs have opportunities to be
included in activities

Children &
Young People’s
Planning Group

December
2018

included
respected
active

✓

CYPLG

December
2020

safe
nurtured
achieving

✓

Children &
Families Social
Work

March 2018

safe
nurtured
included

✓

Through an improvement approach,
ensuring services provide early
intervention to targeted families
particularly where children are at
risk of becoming looked after and
reduce number of looked after
children and young people
Develop an ‘Alternatives to Care’
service for children and young
people

SUPPORTS
UNCRC

PRIORITY 4

Raising attainment and achievement for all learners

OUTCOME

Inequalities in educational outcomes and attainment between the most and the least deprived
children across the Borders are reduced
More children and young people are equipped with the knowledge and skills to proceed to
adult working life

A number of disadvantaged children in the Scottish Borders grow up without the skills needed to
thrive in the long term and it is vital we do more to “close the gap” and provide all our young people
with the best possible life chances as they leave school and move into the world of work or further
study. We have begun to address these challenging issues and over the last 2 years there has been
an improvement in terms of attainment for young people living in the most deprived areas and we
have begun to use data to be better informed about the challenges. However closing the gap is a
priority for all our schools and we are beginning an ambitious programme of work which will see
this being the key aim for all staff working across the Education Service.

40
28 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2017-20
ACTION

LEAD

TIMESCALE

SUPPORTS
WELLBEING
INDICATOR

SUPPORTS
UNCRC

Continue to implement the Senior
Phase Strategy and enable every
young person leaving school in the
Scottish Borders to progress on to
a positive destination (employment,
further/higher education etc)

Education
Service
CPP

December
2020

achieving
responsible
included

✓

Further develop Curriculum for
Excellence in all our schools

Education
Service

March 2018

achieving
responsible
active

✓

Provide more creative and positive
local opportunities for training and
employment for young people in the
Scottish Borders

Education
Service

December
2018

achieving
responsible
included

✓

Community
Learning &
Development

December
2020

achieving
responsible
included
respected

✓

Increase parental involvement
in all aspects of children’s
learning, including family learning
opportunities

Education
Service

December
2020

nurtured
achieving
included

✓

Develop and implement an Inclusion
Strategy across Universal Services

Education
Service

December
2018

achieving
responsible
included

✓

CYPLG

December
2020

achieving
responsible
included
respected

✓

Continue to implement the
Community Learning and
Development (CLD) Strategy
and strengthen CLD Learning
Community Partnerships

Work with the third sector to
build skills through volunteering,
enhancing the self confidence and
life chances of young people

Page
41 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 29
INTEGRATED

PRIORITY 5

Increasing participation and engagement

OUTCOME

All of children and Young People will be encouraged to be involved in the planning, provision
and delivery of services and their rights are proactively considered
To make the necessary changes to our services, it is vital that the voices of our service users are at
the heart of everything we do and the CYPLG will ensure these views influence service development
and design. In the Scottish Borders we have consulted with children, young people and their
families regarding the services we provide, but we want to build on this and enable service users to
work in partnership with us to help shape our services and how they are delivered in a more joined
up way.
If we are to recognise and understand the needs of children and young people, particularly those
facing a range of challenges, then we need to know what these are; and this will require effective
dialogue. Through utilisation of the GIRFEC approach, we will listen to children and young people
and ensure they are included as key stakeholders within service delivery and their views are valued.
Partners need to reinforce the positive contribution that young people can and should make to their
local communities and to the wider society in which they live.

HIGH LEVEL ACTIONS FOR 2017-20
ACTION

LEAD

TIMESCALE

SUPPORTS
WELLBEING
INDICATOR

SUPPORTS
UNCRC

Develop a Child Rights Strategy to
support the UNCRC principles and
embed these principles across all
services

Children &
Young People’s
Planning Group

October 2017

achieving
responsible
included

✓

Develop an engagement strategy
for Children and Young People’s
services in the Borders targeted
at all age ranges and groups of
children and young people

Children &
Young People’s
Planning Group

June 2017

achieving
responsible
included

✓

Community
Learning &
Development

December
2017

achieving
responsible
included

✓

Increase the collection of outcome
focused information from children,
young people and families and
ensure this information is reviewed
regularly, influencing service
improvements and developments

CYPLG

December
2020

respected
included

✓

Continue to produce an easy read
version of the plan and easy read
progress reports annually

CYPLG

December
2020

respected
included

✓

Complete a review of the Youth Voice
provision ensuring that accessibility
for young people is improved and the
programme meets the needs of a
range of young people

42
30 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES
PLAN 2015-2018

5. WORKFORCE PLANNING

The organisations providing support to children, young people and families have a highly experienced,
committed and caring workforce who provide a variety of services across the Scottish Borders. As
a Leadership Group, we value the workforce and we will continue to invest and support staff at all
levels through training, information sharing and briefing to increase skill levels and knowledge and
support delivery of our priorities. We will work with the third sector and other partners, supporting
their training and skills delivery on the ground to build capacity across all sectors, thereby developing
stronger and more robust support to children and young people at a local level.
Over the last 3 years, we have developed high quality examples of multi agency training programmes
and opportunities in areas such as Child Protection, Early Years, GIRFEC and children affected by
parental substance misuse. In the last 12 months, in response to findings during the Care Inspectorate
inspection, peer led training has been delivered to a significant number of staff from across the partner
agencies, to implement a revised chronology format to ensure better recording within case files.
We will continue to develop programmes where appropriate to enhance capability and ensure that we
have a flexible workforce who can meet changing needs. In delivering on the Integrated Plan 2017 –
2020 the CYPLG commits to:
•
•
•

ensuring all our staff experience high quality professional learning and training tailored to their
individual and the service needs
consider the development of a leadership programme to enhance the skills of staff, reflecting the
values and culture required to be able to support families effectively
continue to develop multi agency training programmes bringing together staff from a range of
services, providing opportunities for sharing of practice and experiences.

Our workforce has worked in partnership across agencies to deliver services for children and young
people for some time, we are committed to ensure there is even greater integration to improve access
to all services. We will work more closely with the related services to ensure that services who work
with adults who are also parents consider the needs of children, young people and the family. Within
adult services, GIRFEC Champions have been identified who have received additional training to embed
this approach and way of working in adult service teams. A number of our Leadership Group members
are also members of the Integrated Joint Board and these links are in place to ensure that Adult
Services safeguard, promote and support the wellbeing of children and young people in their work.
As decision makers, we will continue to invest and participate in national training programmes
and initiatives such as the Psychology of Parenting programme and the Children & Young People’s
Collaborative and our multi agency approach will maximise attendance, commitment and learning.

Page
43 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 31
INTEGRATED

Page 44
32 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S
PLAN 2017-2020

6. RESOUCING AND
COMMISSIONING CHILDREN &
YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES
We want to ensure that the best possible services are provided for children and young people.
To complement our universal services and provide additional support, a range of targeted
services for children and young people are commissioned and delivered through statutory
and voluntary services. Over the last 18 months, we have completed a significant review of
all commissioned services across the partnership and approach is set out in the Integrated
Children & Young People’s Services Commissioning Strategy 2017 – 2022. The Strategy shows
our commitment to delivering the best possible outcomes for children and young people,
maximising resources to achieve this. A number of principles are set out which will be applied
when commissioning and developing services going forward where we commit to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Focus on early intervention and prevention; ensuring we target families early enough
Ensure that children and families’ needs are at the centre of service design and delivery
Ensure reducing inequalities is a priority across all services but that we get an appropriate
balance between resourcing targeted and universal services
Improve integrated working and focusing on combined resources
Work with and empowering communities
Improve outcomes for every child and their families.

In developing the Strategy, a needs assessment identified a number of areas to be addressed
through targeted commissioned services which are:
•
•
•
•
•

Positive Emotional & Mental Health Wellbeing of Children and Young People
Availability, Access and Support for Young Carers
Consistency of access to Quality Youth Work Services
Supporting choices:
Equality & Inclusion
Positive life choices
Availability and Access of Advocacy Services

A revised model of commissioned services is under development which will focus on the these
areas, making best use of statutory, independent and third sector provision. Alternative and
additional sources of funding to commission services are also being explored in areas to develop
additional capacity where required.

Page
45 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 33
INTEGRATED

In completing the Commissioning Strategy, we have developed a better understanding of the
totality of spend on Children & Young People’s Services as a whole and with an analysis of how this
supports the delivery of the Integrated Plan. We have also made progress in terms of examining
commissions across all areas, not just those which are commissioned through CYPLG funding
to ensure that resources are maximised, services are integrated and duplication is avoided. The
CYPLG commits to continuing to develop further as a partnership by considering how budgets can
become aligned and ensure further integration.
We will continue to develop partnership models of service delivery to ensure the best use of
resources, knowledge and expertise is utilised in meeting the needs of our children and young
people

Page 46
34 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S
PLAN 2017-2020

7. ENSURING PRIORITIES ARE
ACHIEVED AND OUTCOMES
ARE IMPROVED
The CYPLG will strive to ensure that the needs of children and young people are embedded
across the CPP. To this end, the Group will take actions to increase awareness and
understanding of young people’s needs and raise the profile of services available, so that
partners are able to consider these needs in their service planning.
Children and young people’s services require a strong evidence base to inform the planning and
delivery of services. The CYPLG has developed a performance framework which will be reviewed
regularly to support implementation of the Plan and to ensure that effective use is made of
data to drive improvement. The performance framework and dashboard of key performance
indicators is supported by outcome focused data which enables the CYPLG to consider what
difference services are making for children and young people across the Scottish Borders. We
will consider and include the newly introduced National Improvement Framework to ensure
that decision making is informed by the widest range of intelligence. A Self Evaluation Strategy
has been developed to ensure a consistent approach to self evaluation for Children & Young
People’s Services and progress on performance, outcomes, self evaluation activity and progress
on implementing the plan will be reported annually through the CYPLG and onto the CPP in line
with the requirements of the Children & Young People’s (Scotland) Act 2014. The strategy sets
out how services will be evaluated against the Care Inspectorate Quality Indicators.

Page
47 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 35
INTEGRATED

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S
PLAN 2017-2020

8. ENGAGEMENT AND
CONSULTATION

As partners we recognise the need to put into place more systematic and inclusive engagement
and consultation processes with our children and young people across the Borders. Throughout
this planning period in developing this plan, there has been a range of consultation with children,
young people and their families and below is a summary of the activity:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Joint approach to consultation with attendance at Health and Social Care events held at
transport interchange, supermarkets and libraries where the views of 167 people were
gathered
Consultation events in all 9 Secondary Schools gathering views of a mixed group of young
people form S1 – S6
Opportunities to feedback on the draft plan were provided at a range of parent’s evenings
across primary and secondary schools
Extensive consultation exercise on development of school estate has been undertaken
Feedback opportunities at events held in the Early Years Centres
Presentation on draft plan at Parent Council Chair’s Forum meeting
Online feedback received on draft plan via SBC website.

With the range of consultation undertaken, it has been confirmed that children, young people
and their families are supportive of the priorities that have been identified within the plan.
We have actions within the plan to reflect some views, for example in the consultation events
with young people they highlighted that they felt they were not listened to by partners. We are
committed to finding meaningful ways of listening and gathering views on a number of themes
as we implement the plan and we will agree ways of doing this through the development of the
Children & Young People’s Engagement Strategy. As part of this, we will undertake a review
of the Youth Voice provision which is in place to support young people to become involved in
decision making activities and youth led campaigns. Families also felt that there should be more
recognition of the support required for children with complex needs and related actions have
been strengthened within the final version of the plan.
During the consultation, users indicated a shorter, easy read version of the plan would be
welcomed and a short version has been produced to sit alongside the main plan and we will use
this approach to feedback to our communities on progress in implementing the plan and hope
this will be more informative and meaningful.

48
36 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

APPENDIX 1

INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S SERVICES
SOCIAL WORK
Multi-agency Child Protection Unit
Statutory Children & Families Social Work Services
Services for Looked after Children (including services provided outwith Scottish Borders eg
specialist residential services)
Adoption and Fostering Services
Through and Aftercare Services (for young people who have experienced care)
Services for Children and Young People with Complex Needs and Disabilities
Youth Justice Services (is this the right term)
Community Safety (including Domestic Abuse Service)

EDUCATION
Universal Early Learning and Childcare Services (statutory, private and voluntary)
Targeted Early learning and Childcare Services
Early Years Assessment Team
Out of School Care Services
Universal Education to age 18
Additional Support for Learning Services
Community Learning & Development Service
Targeted Parenting Support

HEALTH
Inpatient Universal Health Care for Children and Young People (local and tertiary provision)
Specialist Paediatric inpatient, outpatient and ambulatory led Health Care
Neonatal Health Care Services
Health Service for Looked After Children
Primary and Community Based Health Care for Children and Young People including GP
provision
AHP Provision for Children and Young People (Physiotherapy, Occupational Therapy, Speech &
Language Therapy)
Children’s & Adolescent Mental Health Services
Health Visitor Service
School Nurse Service
Sexual Health Service
Family Nurse Partnership
Dental Service
Public Health Programmes for Children and Young People (Immunizations, Health Improvement)
Alcohol and Drugs Partnership

Page
49 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 37
INTEGRATED

POLICE
Local Police Scotland provision
National programmes relating to Children and Young People
Youth Justice services

OTHER
School Facility Services (catering, cleaning, transport)
Health Facility Services (catering, cleaning, transport)
Business Support Services

THIRD SECTOR SERVICES
Targeted commissioned services delivered by Third Sector providers
Local Services and Organisations for Children and Young People
Generic Youth Work Providers
Third Sector Interface

BORDERS COLLEGE
SCOTTISH CHILDREN’S REPORTER ADMINISTRATOR
CHILDREN’S PANEL AND HEARINGS

RELATED SERVICES WHERE THERE MAY
BE IMPACT ON WELLBEING OF CHILDREN
AND YOUNG PEOPLE
HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE
Adult Social Work Services
Adult Social Care Services
Maternity Care Services
Adult inpatient healthcare services (local and tertiary provision)
Adult specialist outpatient healthcare services (local and tertiary provision)
Primary and Community Based Adult Healthcare Services including GP Provision
Adult Mental Health Services
AHP Provision for Adults (Physiotherapy, Occupational Therapy, Speech & Language Therapy)
Adult Substance Misuse Services
Public Health Programmes for adults

50
38 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

SOCIAL WORK
Criminal Justice Services
Community Safety

HOUSING STRATEGY TEAM
POLICE SCOTLAND
YOUTH BORDERS
LIVE BORDERS
EMPLOYABILITY SERVICES
SCOTTISH FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE
SCOTTISH AMBULANCE SERVICE
REGISTERED SOCIAL LANDLORDS
SCOTTISH COURTS & TRIBUNAL SERVICE
SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND
TRANSPORT SERVICE OPERATORS
SCOTTISH MINISTERS
SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT

Page
51 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 39
INTEGRATED

APPENDIX 2

GLOSSARY
ADP

Alcohol and Drugs Partnership

A&E

Accident and Emergency

CHS

Children's Hearings Scotland

CLD

Community Learning and Development

COSLA

Convention of Scottish Local Authorities

CPP

Scottish Borders Community Planning Partnership’s

CRWIA

Child Rights and Wellbeing Impact Assessment

CYPLG

Children & Young People’s Leadership Group

EEI

Early and Effective Intervention

EQIA

Equality Impact Assessment

GES

Government Economic Strategy

GIRFEC

Getting It Right for Every Child

ICYPP

The Integrated Children & Young People’s Plan

LA

Local Authority

LAC

Looked After Children

LGBF

Local Government Benchmarking Framework

MARACs

Multi-agency risk assessment conferences (MARACs)

NHS

National Health Service

NRS

National Records of Scotland

PDSA

Plan, Do, Study, Act

PRS

Children’s Reporter via pre-referral screening

RAFA

Raising Attainment for All

SBC

Scottish Borders Council

SCQF

Scottish Credit and Qualifications Framework

SCRA

Scottish Children's Reporter Administration

SG

Scottish Government

SIMD

Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation

WSA

Whole Systems Approach

UNCRC

United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child

Page 52
40 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

APPENDIX 3

STRATEGIES & PLANS
LOCAL STRATEGIES & PLANS
Scottish Borders Children & Young People’s Commissioning Strategy 2017 -2022
Scottish Borders Children & Young People’s Self Evaluation Strategy 2017-2020
Quality Improvement Framework – Education 2016
Senior Phase Strategy 2016
Alcohol and Drug Strategy 2015–20
Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership (ADP) Delivery Plan 2015-2018
NHS Borders CEL 16 Plan 2014-15 (Health of Looked after Children)
Children and Young People Business Plan 2015/16 – 2017/18
Child Protection Business Plan 2014-2015
Children and Young People’s Health Strategy for the Scottish Borders 2013 – 2018
Children and Young People’s Service Plan 2012-2015 (CYPPP)
Commissioning Annual Report 2014-2015 (Children and Young People’s Leadership Group)
Community Learning and Development BUSINESS PLAN 2014/15 – 2016/17
Community Learning and Development Strategic Plan 2015-2018
Corporate Parenting Strategy 2014 – 2018
Early Year Strategy 2012-2015
Economic Strategy 2013-2023
Employment Support Strategy
Framework for Positive Destinations
Scottish Borders GIRFEC Implementation Plan
Involved: The Participation of Children & Young People in the Scottish Borders 2012–2015
Homelessness Services Delivery Plan 2012-2016
Maternity Frameworks Action Plan
Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) Annual Report 2014/15
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care Strategic Plan 2016 - 2019
Physical Activity, Sport and Physical Education Strategy
Scottish Borders Parenting Strategy
Reducing Inequalities Strategy Draft 2015-2018
Senior Phase Strategy 2015
Tackling Poverty and Achieving Social Justice Strategy 2013-2018
Young Carers Strategy 2015-2018
Scottish Borders Suicide Prevention Action Plan 2014
Tobacco Control Action Plan 2015 (in draft)

PROCEDURES
Scottish Borders Child Protection Procedures
Information Sharing Guidance 2015
Parenting Framework (currently recommended Core of Programmes)
Supporting Children and Young People at Risk of Self Harm and Suicide-Scottish Borders Good
Practice Guidance
NHS Borders Unseen Child Policy 2015

Page
53 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN | 2017-2020 | 41
INTEGRATED

LEGISLATION
Carers (Scotland) Act 2016
Education (Scotland) Act 2016
Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015
Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014
Community Learning & Development (Scotland) Regulations 2013
Police and Fire Reform (Scotland) Act 2012
Social Care (Self Directed Support) (Scotland) Act 2013
Children’s Hearings (Scotland) Act 2011
Adoption and Children (Scotland) Act 2007
Scottish Schools (Parental Involvement) Act 2006
Additional Support for Learning Act (Scotland) 2004
Regulation of Care (Scotland) Act 2001
Children (Scotland) Act 1995
Education Act (1980)
United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child

NATIONAL
Mental Health Strategy: 2017 – 2020Children & Young People (Scotland) Act 2014: Statutory Guidance on
Part 1: Duties on Public Authorities in Relation to the UNCRC
Children & Young People (Scotland) Act 2014: Statutory Guidance on Part 1: Children’s Services Planning
16+ Learning Choices: Policy and Practice Framework: supporting all young people into positive and
sustained destinations
A Guide to Youth Justice in Scotland: Policy, Practice and Legislation: Centre for Youth and Criminal
Justice
A Refreshed Framework for Maternity Care in Scotland (2011)
Achieving Our Potential
Better relationships, better learning, better behaviour
Better Eating Better Learning COSLA / SG 2014
Breaking the link between disadvantage and low achievement in the early years
Building the Ambition: National Practice Guidance on Early Learning and Childcare Children and Young
People (Scotland) Act 2014
Changing Lives (Scottish Executive 2006)
Child Poverty Strategy for Scotland - Our Approach 2014 – 2017
Children & Young People’s Improvement Collaborative
Closing the Attainment Gap in Scottish Education – Joseph Roundtree Foundation
Consultation on Pregnancy and Parenthood in Young People Strategy (currently out for consultation
2015)
Creating a Tobacco Free Generation (SG 2013)
Curriculum for Excellence
Developing the Young Workforce (2014)
Early Years Framework
The Early Years: Good Health for Every Child (2011)
Early Years Taskforce Shared Vision and Priorities paper (March 2012)
Equally Well
Extraordinary Lives (SWIA 2006)
Framework for Risk Assessment, Management and Evaluation (FRAME) 2011 and Care and Risk
Management appendix to FRAME 2014
Getting it Right for Every Child (Scottish Executive, 2007)
Getting Our Priorities Right (Scottish Executive 2013)

54
42 | INTEGRATED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLANPage
| 2017-2020

INTRODUCTION | STRATEGIC CONTEXT | ACHIEVEMENTS | VISION AND PRIORITIES | WORKFORCE PLANNING
RESOURCING AND COMMISSIONING | PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES | ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

Good Mental Health for All (Health Scotland 2015)
GUS, Growing up in Scotland
Health Inequalities Framework and Action Plan
Health Inequalities Policy Review (2013)
Health Inequalities Policy Review for the Scottish Ministerial Task Force on Health Inequalities:
Health Scotland 2013
Looked After Children: we can and must do better (Scottish Executive 2007)
Maternal and Infant Nutrition Framework for Action
More Choices, More Chances
National Action Plan to Tackle Child Sexual Exploitation
National CLD Strategic Guidance
National Guidance for Child Protection in Scotland 2014
National Parenting Strategy
Opportunities for All: Supporting all young people to participate in post-16 learning, training or work
Preventing Offending – Getting it Right for Children and Young People
Preventing offending by young people 2015
Proposal for the development of guidance to support the GIRFEC provisions in the Children and
Young People (Scotland) Act 2014
Scotland’s Commissioner for Children and Young People: Poverty, educational attainment and
achievement in Scotland: a critical review of the literature
Setting the Table Health Scotland 2014 (nutritional guidance and food standards in early years)
The Right of Every Child to Good Health: Health Scotland 2015
These are Our Bairns (Scottish Government, 2008)

Page
55 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN | 2017-2020 | 43
INTEGRATED

You can get this document on audio CD, in large print, and various other formats
by contacting us at the address below. In addition, contact the address below for
information on language translations, additional copies, or to arrange for an officer to
meet with you to explain any areas of the publication that you would like clarified.
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
Scottish Borders Council | Headquarters | Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE | TD6 0SA
tel: 0300 100 1800 | email: strategy@scotborders.gov.uk

Printed in the Scottish Borders. Designed by Scottish Borders Council Graphic Design Section. KG/04/17.

Page 56

Agenda Item 6

Community Justice (Scotland) Act 2016
Scottish Borders Community Justice Outcomes Improvement
Plan 2017 - 2020
Report by Chief Social Work Officer

SCOTTISH BORDERS COMMUNITY PLANNING STRATEGIC
BOARD
22 June 2017

1

2

PURPOSE AND SUMMARY
1.1

This report seeks endorsement of the Scottish Borders Community
Justice Outcomes Improvement Plan 2017 – 2020 by members of
the Community Planning Partnership Strategic Board.

1.2

Each local authority area is required to publish a plan under the Community
Justice (Scotland) Act 2016. This Act is intended to prevent and reduce re
offending by addressing those factors that influence criminal behaviour.
There are a number of statutory partners who have collaborated in the
production of this plan (specified on page 8 of the plan).

1.3

Governance of Community Justice sits under the Community Planning
Partnership. The plan has already been considered and supported by the
Community Planning Partnership Reducing Inequalities Delivery Team and
the Joint Delivery Team.

1.4

The plan will be reported upon annually to the Scottish Government via
Community Justice Scotland. It is expected that the report will have been
agreed by members of the Community Planning Partnership.

RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1
It is recommended that the Strategic Board endorse the plan in
order that it can move to implementation.

CPP Strategic Board 22 June 2017

Page 57

3

BACKGROUND AND PROGRESS UPDATE
3.1
The Community Justice (Scotland) Act 2016 sets out the requirement to
produce a Community Justice outcomes improvement plan. The legislation
specifies several statutory partners who will work together to deliver
community justice. These partners are required to produce a plan outlining
how they intend to support achievement of seven common national
outcomes agreed by the Scottish Government. Additional local outcome/s
can also be included in the plan if deemed relevant. The seven national
outcomes are:








4

Communities improve their understanding and participation in
community justice
Partners plan and deliver services in a more strategic and
collaborative way
People have better access to the services they require, including
welfare, health and wellbeing, housing and employability
Effective interventions should be delivered to prevent and reduce the
risk of further offending
Life chances are improved through needs, including health, financial
inclusion, housing and safety being addressed
People develop positive relationships and more opportunities to
participate and contribute through education, employment and
leisure activities
Individual’s resilience and capacity for change and self-management
are enhanced.

3.2

To support delivery, the Scottish Government have published a national
strategy for community justice, an outcomes, performance and
improvement framework and guidance for local partners. The Care
Commission have developed a self-evaluation guide. Community Justice
Scotland has been established with effect from 31st March 2017.
Community Justice Authorities have been dismantled.

3.3

This plan has a direct relationship to the Community Planning Partnership
through the Reducing Inequalities theme and work of the Safer
Communities Team.

3.4

The plan has reached a stage it is ready for implementation.

IMPLICATIONS
4.1

Financial
The Scottish Government have provided three years of annual funding of
£50,000 up to 2017/18. Specific costs associated with activity contained
within the plan will initially be met by transition monies. Partners are
expected to collaborate and share resources in their delivery against the
common outcomes.

4.2

Risk and Mitigations
The legislation sets out the requirements on community justice partners to
produce their plan by 31st March 2017.

4.3

Equalities
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out on this proposal and
it is anticipated that there are no adverse equality implications.

CPP Strategic Board 22 June 2017

Page 58

4.4

Acting Sustainably
N/A

4.5

Carbon Management
N/A

5

4.6

Rural Proofing
N/A

4.7

Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation
N/A

CONSULTATION
5.1
Partners have supported development of the Scottish Borders plan through
a Community Justice Board chaired by the Chief Social Work Officer.
Further information has been gathered through a literature review, two
stakeholder events, an eight week engagement exercise, and 12 week
consultation period. Presentations have and continue to be delivered to
specific groups who have an influence upon reducing reoffending. Service
users participated in a focus group supported by the Scottish Prison
Service.
5.2

Others who have been consulted are:
 The report has been discussed at the Reducing Inequalities Delivery
Team and Joint Delivery Team.
 Corporate Equalities and Diversity Officer in relation to the Equality
Impact Assessment.
 Corporate Communications in relation to media launch and graphics.
 The Information Manager regarding information sharing.
Approved by

Name Elaine Torrance
Title Chief Social Work Officer
Author(s)
Name
Graham Jones

Signature …………………………………..

Designation and Contact Number
Safer Communities & Community Justice Manager Ex 8094

Background Papers: Copy of Scottish Borders Community Justice Outcomes
Improvement Plan 2017 - 2020
Previous Minute Reference:
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various
computer formats by contacting the address below. Graham Jones can also give
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.
Contact us at Graham Jones, Safer Communities & Community Justice Manager,
Social Work Services, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells. Tel: 01835
824000 ext 8094, Email: graham.jones@scotborders.gcsx.gov.uk
CPP Strategic Board 22 June 2017

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

community justice
(scotland) act 2016
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT
PLAN 2017 - 2020
COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP
Working in Partnership to Tackle Inequality, Prevent, and Reduce Reoffending
in the Scottish Borders

Page 61

CONTENTS
		
Page		
				
Foreword

3		

The Scottish Borders: a summary of justice demand 		4		
The Scottish Governments National Strategy for Community Justice		5
Community Justice as Defined in the National Strategy		7
Community Justice Outcomes Improvement Plan 2017 - 2020 		8
Alignment of Community Justice to Scottish National Outcomes and Community

10

Planning within the Scottish Borders
Governance

11

Introduction to the Scottish Borders

13

Our Understanding of the Key Issues in the Scottish Borders

15		

Achievement Against the Community Justice Common Outcomes

21

Community Justice (Scotland) Act 2016 Outcome Improvements

25		

Outcomes, Performance and Improvement Framework Baseline Quantitative Indicators

31		

Participation Statement: Engagement and Consultation

36		

The Justice Journey

37		

Informing the Scottish Borders Context

38			

							
						
		
			
					
				
				
		

62 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
2 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLANPage
2017 - 2020

FOREWORD

All Scottish local authorities are required to produce a Community Justice Outcomes Improvement
Plan under the Community Justice (Scotland) Act 2016. This legislation is designed to prevent and
reduce reoffending through partnership working.
Individuals, families and communities are harmed by criminal behaviour and this plan sets out how
community justice partners intend to work together to fulfil their responsibilities in achieving the
seven common Community Justice Outcomes.
While crime in the Scottish Borders is relatively low in comparison to other parts of Scotland we
have an opportunity to work within and across organisational boundaries to positively influence
the behaviour of individuals’ within our communities who have an offending history. Importantly
reducing instances of offending behaviour will also result in fewer victims of crime.
The connection between inequality and offending is complicated, not every person who has a history
of offending behaviour has experienced disadvantage, and most disadvantaged people do not
offend. Achieving a reduction in criminal behaviour is difficult and challenging though, the likelihood
of success increases when stability exists across a range of needs common to most of us: suitable
accommodation, healthcare, financial security, family relationships and community inclusion.
Community based sentences as an alternative to short term prison sentences are recognised
to be more effective in addressing offending behaviour. These sentences have the advantage
of maintaining access to services so that preventative factors are not unnecessarily disrupted.
Communities can also derive benefit through unpaid work projects undertaken as part of this
sentencing option.
We have a strong tradition of partnership working across all sectors. This Community Justice
Outcomes Improvement Plan sets out what we are already doing and arrangements that we want to
introduce and develop to reduce reoffending.
Engagement and consultation exercises have already used to shape this plan. The content will
continue to be reviewed enabling new opportunities to be identified.

Chair of the Scottish Borders Community Planning Partnership

Page 63IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 3
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES

THE SCOTTISH BORDERS: a summary
of justice demand

2916 crimes (Groups 1 – 5) recorded by Police Scotland which is 1.18% of recorded crime in
Scotland 246,243 (2015/16)
255.7 crimes per 10,000 of the population compared to 460.5 nationally (2015/16)

55.7% of crimes detected compared to 51.6% in Scotland (2015/16)

0.68% of the prison population in Scotland from the Scottish Borders (September 2016)
208 individuals sentenced to a Community Payback Order which is 1.27% of the total in
Scotland
30 young people referred to The Scottish Children’s Reporters Administration for an offence
which is 1.0% of the total in Scotland 2761 (2015/16)
A reoffending rate of 28.4% compared to 28.3% in Scotland (2013/14)

64 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
4 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLANPage
2017 - 2020

THE SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT’S
NATIONAL STRATEGY FOR
COMMUNITY JUSTICE

The following Scottish Government publications have been used in the development of this Community
Justice Outcomes Improvement Plan:
• National Strategy for Community Justice
• Community Justice Outcomes, Performance and Improvement Framework
• Guidance for local partners in the new model for Community Justice
• A guide to self-evaluation for community justice in Scotland.
National Strategy for
Community Justice

Community
Justice
Outcomes,
Performance
and
Improvement
Framework

Guidance for
Local Partners
in the
New Model
for Community
Justice

A guide to self-evaluation
for community justice in
Scotland
How well are we improving the life chances and outcomes of
those with lived experience of community justice in Scotland?

Regard has also been taken of the Scottish Borders Community Planning Partnership 2016 Strategic
Assessment.

Page 65
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 5

The Scottish Governments vision, mission, priorities and principals for community justice
underpin this plan and are listed below.

Vision
Scotland is a safer, fairer and more inclusive nation where we:• prevent and reduce further offending by addressing its underlying causes; and
• safely and effectively manage and support those who have committed offences to help them
reintegrate into the community and realise their potential for the benefit of all citizens.

Mission Statement
We will achieve this vision by effectively implementing the Scottish Government’s plans for penal
policy to:
• Deliver a decisive shift in the balance between community and custodial sentences by:
a) increasing the use of community-based interventions; and
b) reducing the use of short term custodial sentences;
• Improve the reintegration from custody to community.
The new model for community justice, with its focus on strong partnerships working to ensure
effective intervention from the point of arrest onwards, provides the delivery framework for
achieving both this mission and the wider vision.

Priorities
Extensive consultation with stakeholders has made clear that the Scottish Government’s vision
and mission will be delivered by prioritising action in the following areas:• Improve Community Understanding and Participation.
• Strategic Planning and Partnership Working.
• Effective use of Evidence-Based Interventions.
• Equal access to Services.

Principles
The Scottish Government’s vision for community justice is underpinned by the following principles:• People must be held to account for their offences, in a way that recognises the impact on 			
victims of crime and is mindful of risks to the public, while being proportionate and effective in 		
preventing and reducing further offending.
• Re-integrating those who have committed offences into the community and helping them to 		
realise their potential will create a safer and fairer society for all.
• Every intervention should maximise opportunities for prevention and reducing offending as 		
early as possible, before problems escalate.
• Community justice outcomes cannot be improved by one stakeholder alone. We must work in 		
partnership to address these complex issues.
• Informed communities who participate in community justice will lead to more effective services 		
and policies with greater legitimacy.
• High quality, person-centred and collaborative services should be available to address the 		
needs of those who have committed offences, their families, and victims of crime.

66 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
6 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLANPage
2017 - 2020

COMMUNITY JUSTICE AS DEFINED IN
THE NATIONAL STRATEGY

By community justice we mean: ”the collection of individuals, agencies and services that work
together to support, manage and supervise people who have committed offences, from the point
of arrest, through prosecution, community disposal or custody and alternatives to these, until they
are reintegrated into the community. Local communities and the third sector are a vital part of this
process which aims to prevent and reduce further offending and the harm that it causes, to promote
desistance, social inclusion and citizenship.”

Figure 1: Our focus on prevention

Preventing Crime

Reduce Crime

Preventing Reoffending

Page 67IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 7
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES

COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020

INTRODUCTION
Scottish Borders Council has a legal duty to provide a Criminal Justice Social Work Service. This
service provides the justice system with a range of community disposals, including alternatives
to prison. Social work staff supervise individuals within the community and work to address past
behaviour. They assist people who have left prison and help them to overcome the problems that
contributed to their offending behaviour. Community Justice builds upon the range of social work
services already established within the justice system.
The Community Justice (Scotland) Act 2016 places a legal duty on a range of statutory partners to
plan and decide on how services are delivered within the Scottish Borders to support prevention
and a reduction in the number of people re offending following a previous conviction. This approach
aims to address the underlying causes of offending behaviour. Partners will work with a range of
individuals and organisations who have a role to play in community justice. Statutory partners for
community justice as outlined in the Act are:
Police Scotland 					
Scottish Fire & Rescue Service
Health Boards						
Skills Development Scotland			
Integrated Joint Boards for Health & Social Care
Crown Office & Procurator Fiscal Service
Local Authorities					
Scottish Prison Service
Scottish Courts and Tribunals Service		
		
A national organisation has been established called Community Justice Scotland which will
monitor performance across each local authority area in the achievement of seven common
Community Justice Outcomes. A national strategy, performance indicators and a reporting
framework set the strategic direction for partners and support delivery within the Scottish Borders
and more broadly across Scotland. Common outcomes are split between those that are either
structural or person-centric and progress will be reported upon annually. All seven common
outcomes form part of this plan:
Structural Outcomes – What we deliver as partners
• Communities improve their understanding and participation in community justice
• Partners plan and deliver services in a more strategic and collaborative way
• People have better access to the services they require, including welfare, health and wellbeing, 		
housing and employability
• Effective interventions should be delivered to prevent and reduce the risk of further offending.

68 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
8 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLANPage
2017 - 2020

Person-centric Outcomes – Changes to users
• Life chances are improved through needs, including health, financial inclusion, housing and 		
safety being addressed
• People develop positive relationships and more opportunities to participate and contribute 		
through education, employment and leisure activities
• Individual’s resilience and capacity for change and self-management are enhanced.
A number of the activities undertaken by the partnership address more than one outcome but will
not be mentioned multiple times.
There is a strong evidence base that identifies the underlying causes of offending behaviour and
those factors that can have a positive effect upon attitudes and prevalence of future offending
known as criminogenic needs. Complex needs that services support have been identified as:
Figure 2: Factors affecting criminal behaviour

Availability of
suitable housing

Mental Health

Health

Education &
Training

Employment

Relationships with
friends and family

Attitudes to
offending

Financial
difficulties

Alcohol and
drug use

This Community Justice Outcomes Improvement Plan sets out the improvement actions identified
as being necessary to support achievement of the common outcomes.
An equality impact assessment accompanies this plan.

Page 69IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 9
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES

ALIGNMENT OF COMMUNITY JUSTICE
TO SCOTTISH NATIONAL OUTCOMES
AND COMMUNITY PLANNING WITHIN
THE SCOTTISH BORDERS

The positioning of community justice within the Scottish Borders has been strengthened through
the synergy created between the Scottish National Outcomes and the three Scottish Borders
community planning strategic priorities in particular reducing inequalities. The three local
strategic priorities are:
• Grow our economy and maximise the impact from the low carbon agenda
• Reducing inequalities
• Reform future services
Table 1: Relevance of Community Justice to Reduce Inequality Themes, National Strategic
Objectives and Outcomes
Scottish Borders Community National Strategic
Planning Partnership
Objectives
Reducing Inequalities Themes

National Outcomes

Housing and Neighbourhood

Greener

10. We live in well designed, sustainable places where we
are able to access the amenities and services we need

Employment and Income

Wealthier and Fairer

2. We realise our economic potential with more and better
employment opportunities for our people
15. Our public services are high quality, continually
improving, efficient and responsive to people’s needs

Healthier

6. We live longer, healthier lives
7. We have tackled the significant inequalities in Scottish
society
8. We have improved the life chances for children, young
people and families at risk

Safer and Stronger

9. We live our lives free from crime, disorder and danger
11. We have strong, resilient and supportive communities
where people take responsibility for their own actions and
how they affect others

Community
Justice
Health & Wellbeing

Keeping People Safe

Attainment, Achievement and Smarter
Inclusion

4. Our young people are successful learners, confident
individuals, effective contributors and responsible citizens
5. Our children have the best start in life and are ready to
succeed

Page
70 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
10 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

GOVERNANCE

A Community Justice Board chaired by the Chief Social Work Officer has been established
to coordinate and oversee community justice transition in the Scottish Borders. The Board
has responsibility for the implementation of the improvement actions contained within this
plan and content of the national strategy. Members will report annually on the indicators
contained within the national Outcomes, Performance and Improvement Framework.
The Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 creates the legislative framework
for community planning in Scotland. It places a duty on specific statutory partners to
contribute towards improving outcomes through community planning. In identifying areas for
improvement in the Scottish Borders a local outcomes improvement plan is being developed.
Relevant information sources have been included within this plan creating the necessary
relationship with community planning.
One of the strategic priorities within community planning is reducing inequalities; this
includes all of the services that support the reduction of reoffending.
A Reducing Inequalities Delivery Team has been established to monitor and evaluate
progress. The relationship with community justice is demonstrated at Figure 3.
In addition to developing this plan Community Justice Partners have agreed the associated
equality impact assessment. The plan was endorsed by the Community Planning Strategic
Board before undergoing its final public consultation.
The intended lifetime of the plan will be three years with progress reported annually to
Community Justice Scotland.
The statutory partners are required to review this plan throughout the three year period, and
in the following circumstances, to determine when a new plan is required:
•
•
•

When a revised National Performance Framework for Community Justice is published
When a revised National Strategy for Community Justice is published
When a revised (Community Planning Partnership) Local Outcomes Improvement Plan for
the local authority area is published.

Page 71
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 11

Page
72 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
12 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

Housing &
Neighbourhood
Theme

Economy & Income
Theme

Health & Wellbeing
Theme

Community Justice
Board

Keeping People Safe
Theme

Reducing Inequalities
Delivery Team
(Reducing Inequalities
Strategy with
5 Themes)

Joint Delivery Team

Community Planning
Strategic Board

FIGURE 3: RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP AND KEY
DELIVERY THEMES

Attainment &
Inclusion Theme

INTRODUCTION TO THE SCOTTISH
BORDERS

PROFILE
The Scottish Borders area covers 473,614 hectares (1,827 square miles) and is located in the
South East of Scotland.
This is a rural authority with 30% of the population resident in areas with fewer than 500
inhabitants. Hawick has the largest population size of 14,003 followed by Galashiels with
12,670. Three other towns have a population exceeding 5,000. The Scottish Borders is the
fourth most sparsely populated local authority in Scotland.
The estimated population of the Scottish Borders is 114,030 of which 13.5% are aged between
16 to 29 years (below the Scottish average of 18.3%) and 30.2% aged 60 and over (higher than
the Scottish average of 24.0%).
By 2037 the population in the Scottish Borders is projected to show an increase in the
number of retired residents and a fall in the number of children and working age people.
Across 29 intermediate data zone ranges in the Scottish Borders life expectancy reduces in
those areas classified as most deprived1.
The Scottish Government’s, Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation is the official tool for
identifying areas of deprivation in Scotland. Of the 130 data zones in the Scottish Borders,
five are found in 15% of the most deprived datazones in Scotland. These deprived data zones
are located in Hawick and Galashiels accounting for 3.5% of the Scottish Borders population.
Datazones are assessed against a series of measures i.e. employment, income, health and
education, geographic access to services, crime and housing all of which are relevant to
community justice and factors that influence the prevalence of offending behaviour2.
The Scottish Borders population has a lower proportion of people who are considered income
deprived compared to Scotland (10.1% -v- 13.2%) though there are areas that experience a
high level of income or employment deprivation3.

1 Life Expectancy in Scottish Council areas split by deprivation 2009 – 2013, National Records of Scotland
2 The Public Health Observatory, Public Health Information for Scotland
3 Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation 2016

Page 73
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 13

There are five localities in the Scottish Borders based upon existing Area Forum footprints –
Berwickshire, Cheviot, Eildon, Teviot & Liddesdale, and Tweeddale. These localities form the geographic
footprint within which services are being prioritised through community planning.

Page
74 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
14 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

OUR UNDERSTANDING OF THE KEY
ISSUES IN THE SCOTTISH BORDERS

For each key issue relevant key facts have been identified enabling gaps in service provision to form the
basis of outcome improvement actions.

CRIME
Key Facts Number of Crimes Occurring and Detected

Crime Group

Number recorded

Rate per 10,000 population

Groups 1 – 5
Total Crimes SCOTTISH BORDERS

2014/15
3169

2015/16
2916

2014/15
277.9

2015/16
255.7

Group 1: crimes of violence
Group 2; sexual crimes
Group 3: crimes of dishonesty
Group 4: fire-raising, malicious
mischief, etc.
Group 5: other crimes

64
125
1506
777

102
134
1205
798

5.6
11.0
132.1
68.1

8.9
11.8
105.7
70.0

697

677

61.1

59.4

Total Crime Rates SCOTLAND

256,350

246,243

475.5

460.5

Crime Group

Number of detections

Groups 1 – 5
2014/15
Total Detections SCOTTISH BORDERS 1619

Detection rate (%)

2015/16
1625

2014/15
51.1%

2015/16
55.7%

Group 1: crimes of violence
Group 2; sexual crimes
Group 3: crimes of dishonesty
Group 4: fire-raising, malicious
mischief, etc.
Group 5: other crimes

55
111
582
183

83
99
516
264

85.9
88.8
38.6
23.6

81.4
73.9
42.8
33.1

688

563

98.7

97.9

Total Detection Rates SCOTLAND

129,217

127,126

50.6%

51.6%

Source: Police Scotland Management Information Council Area Report: Quarter 4 2015/16

Page 75
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 15

SENTENCING
Key Facts

• The number of crimes occurring and detected in the Scottish Borders compare favourably 		
with national figures. Of those crimes detected a range of options are available to the police 		
and Procurator Fiscal prior to a formal prosecution in court e.g. fixed penalties, a formal police 		
warning, Fiscal Work Order or Diversion (from prosecution). An overview of the justice journey 		
can be found on page 37.
• There is a presumption against short term prison sentences of three months and under. Recent
consultation sought to extend this period in favour of community based sentences which is 		
likely to result in increased demand for Criminal Justice Social Work Services. Imprisonment, 		
community payback orders and fines are the main disposals available when a case is
successfully prosecuted in court.
• The prison population includes between 50 and 60 people from the Scottish Borders at any 		
given time. In September 2016 43% are serving a sentence of four years or over. There are very 		
few young people or women in custody.
• Community payback orders provide a community sentencing option. In 2014/15 there were 247 		
orders started relating to 208 individuals, the majority of orders included unpaid work and 		
almost half had a supervision requirement.
• Within the Scottish Borders there were 31.4 orders and 26.5 individuals subject to a community 		
payback order per 10,000 of the population compared to 49.7 and 42.6 across Scotland. This is 		
comparable with crime rates.
• A victim’s right to receive information concerning the release of an offender is contained within 		
Section 16 of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003.
• In 2015, the Scottish Government introduced the Victims Code for Scotland focussing on help, 		
information and support to improve experience of the Scottish justice system. Named partners4
are required to publish standards of service for victims and witnesses and report annually. The 		
requirement to publish and report on standards is underpinned by legislation.

HOUSING AND NEIGHBOURHOOD
Key Facts

• The Scottish Borders has one of the highest private rented sectors in Scotland (17% compared 		
to 13%).
• In the most deprived areas, almost two-thirds of households rent from a social landlord 			
(sometimes also known as a housing association).
• In 2015/16, 618 homeless applications were made to Scottish Borders Council for a variety of 		
reasons, a reduction on the previous year.
• Relationship breakdown is the major cause of homelessness, but homelessness can occur for 		
reasons including: eviction due to mortgage or rent arrears; fleeing domestic violence or
abuse; discharge from the armed forces or from hospital; mental health issues; or addiction 		
problems.
• The partnership approach taken in the Scottish Borders, to support victims of domestic abuse, 		
has seen a 17% drop in the number of people reporting as homeless due to a violent/abusive 		
dispute at home.
• The true figure of homelessness as a consequence of prison release may be masked by 			
an alternative reason being given at the point of registering as homeless, for example family 		
breakdown. In 2015/16 34 homeless applications were made with prison release being given as 		
the reason.
4 Police Scotland, Crown Office and Procurator Fiscal Service, Scottish Courts and Tribunal Service, Scottish Prison Service, Parole
Board for Scotland

Page
76 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
16 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

• In 2013, the Risk Management Authority reported that 28% of cases subject to a full Criminal 		
Justice Social Work Level of Service / Case Management Inventory across Scotland cite a problem
with housing among those with an offending history. The level highlighted in the Scottish Borders 		
is slightly higher.
• In 2013, Shelter Scotland commented on a study that “the reoffending rate within the first year 		
after release of those with problems with housing and employment was 74% compared to 43% of 		
those with no similar problems.”
• Rurality may create difficulties with availability of housing in particular areas leading to isolation 		
and a loss of family support. A history of failed tenancies or rent arrears may compound this 		
situation.
• 47% of households in the social rented sector have someone in the household with a long-		
standing illness, health problem or disability.

HEALTH INCLUDING MENTAL HEALTH
Key Facts

• A Scottish Borders health needs assessment of people with an offending history identified a 		
higher prevalence of chronic medical conditions among this group, a similar situation to those 		
people resident in areas experiencing deprivation.
• The HM Chief Inspector of Prisons for Scotland report, Out of sight: Severe and Enduring Mental 		
Health Problems in Scotland’s Prisons, 2008 identified that problems with mental health are more
prevalent in prison than among the general population. Whilst women’s mental health is affected 		
by issues affecting both male and female prisoners the significance and prominence among 		
women is almost always greater.
• Within the Scottish Borders people subject to a full Criminal Justice Social Work Level of Service /
Case Management Inventory showed the following levels of health problems:
		
		
		
		

Physical Health Problems
Suicide Attempts
Self-Harm

Males
16%
16%
13%

Females
22%
24%
30%

• A higher prevalence of co-morbidity with alcohol, drugs and mental health was reported among 		
those with a history of offending.
• There are higher rates of emergency hospital admissions for people within more deprived areas of
the Scottish Borders.
• The health and wellbeing of people with an offending history is one of the priority areas identified 		
in the health inequalities action planning that underpins the Community Planning Partnership 		
Reducing Inequalities Strategy.
• In 2011, prison healthcare moved from the Scottish Prison Service to the NHS.

EDUCATION AND TRAINING
Key Facts

• In 2015/16 The Scottish Children’s Reporters Administration reported that 30 young people in the 		
Scottish Borders accounted for 78 referrals for an offence.
• 6% of those aged 16 - 64 years in the Scottish Borders have no qualifications; in Scotland the
figure is 9%.
• Within the Scottish Borders there are eight areas where 60% or more of the population aged 16
and over have no or low qualifications.

Page 77
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 17

• Young people living within areas of deprivation have the lowest level of attainment across primary 		
and secondary education.
• The Scottish Borders has 92.1% of school leavers in a positive destination after six months 		
compared to 90.0% nationally.
• In 2014/15 there were 410 modern apprentice starts in the Scottish Borders supported by Skills 		
Development Scotland an increase on the previous year.
• The Employability Fund supported 215 starts in the Scottish Borders during 2014/15.
• 70% of those convicted and subject to a full Criminal Justice Social Work Level of Service / Case 		
Management Inventory in 2013 left school at the minimum age.
• Prisoners who completed the Scottish Prison Service Prisoner Survey in 2015 reported they had 		
difficulty with writing (14%), reading (12%) and / or numbers (11%).
• The Scottish Borders: Developing the Young Workforce Programme has been established to 		
broaden educational opportunity and extend experience within the workplace.
• An individualised Activity Agreement exists for young people aged 16 – 24 who are experiencing 		
barriers to entering formal training or employment.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH FRIENDS AND FAMILY
Key Facts

• 25% of prisoners who completed the Scottish Prison Service Prisoner Survey in 2015 indicated 		
they had been in care during their upbringing and a fifth had been in care aged 16.
• Nationally the charity Families Outside received 1789 calls to their helpline during 2015/16 of 		
which 59% came from a relative, parent or partner. The highest proportion of calls were for 		
emotional support, concern for the prisoner, children or travel and transport.
• The Scottish Prison Service has an agreed set of Standards for Encouraging Family Contact.
• 9% of prisoners who completed the Scottish Prison Service Prisoner Survey in 2015 indicated they
had no contact with friends or family. Of those that did the most common contact was by telephone
(83%), followed by letter (68%) and visits (62%).
• Prisoners who completed the Scottish Prison Service Prisoner Survey in 2015 indicated that the 		
most common difficulties for visitors visiting the prison was cost of travel and distance from their 		
home.
• 40% of those subject to a full Criminal Justice Social Work assessment (across Scotland) using the
Level of Service / Case Management Inventory in 2013 identified an unsatisfactory parental or 		
marital relationship, the figure was higher in the Scottish Borders.

ALCOHOL AND DRUG USE
Key Facts

• Nationally two thirds of prisoners who completed the Scottish Prison Service Prisoner Survey in 		
2015 reported being under the influence of alcohol/drugs at the time of their offence.
• Nationally a high proportion of persons convicted and subject to a full Criminal Justice Social 		
Work Level of Service / Case Management Inventory report problematic alcohol use at some point.
The proportion fell in relation to drug misuse and is consistent with the Scottish Borders.
• Within the Scottish Borders 72% of males reported a problem with alcohol and 51% drugs. For 		
females this fell to 61% and 44% respectively both among those subject to a Level of Service / 		
Case Management Inventory by Criminal Justice Social Work.
• Within the Scottish Borders drug offences accounted for 67 drug supply and production, and 277 		
possession cases during 2015/16.
• 22% of domestic abuse incidents recorded alcohol as a contributing factor.
• 18% of antisocial behaviour incidents recorded by the police were alcohol related.

Page
78 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
18 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

• The Scottish Borders Local Licensing Forum Alcohol Profile 2014/15 identified Langlee and 		
Galashiels North and West as the areas most affected by alcohol related harm.
• In 2014 Galashiels West, Galashiels North, Hawick (West End, Burnfoot, Langlee), Eyemouth and 		
Peebles North all had a higher rate of alcohol related hospital stays.
• During 2014/15 there were 365 patients being prescribed medication for problem alcohol use.
• Alcohol brief interventions in priority settings (to encourage a reduction in hazardous or harmful 		
drinking) are well established, in 2015/16 97% of referrals to NHS Borders are seen within the 		
NHS HEAT target of three weeks.
• There were 16 alcohol related deaths during 2015 compared to 25 the previous year.
• In July 2016 there were 261 persons receiving Opioid Replacement Therapy as a treatment for 		
drug misuse.
• Drug deaths in the Scottish Borders rose from 11 in 2014 to 13 in 2015.

FINANCIAL DIFFICULTIES
Key Facts

• The main benefit claimed is Employment Support Allowance and Incapacity Benefit.
• The highest percentage of key benefit claimants are in Hawick (22%), Eyemouth (21%) and 		
Galashiels (19%).
• Universal credit is being rolled out nationally and will require applicants to claim on line and 		
thereafter use a telephone helpline for assistance.
• Devolved powers to the Scottish Government have led to A New Future for Social Security in 		
Scotland consultation, which may bring about future change in the way benefits are administered 		
and assessed.
• The Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation identifies five data zones within the Scottish Borders as 		
being among the most deprived in Scotland.
• 1.6% of the population (16 – 64 years) in the Scottish Borders is receiving out-of-work benefit 		
(Jobseekers Allowance / Universal Credit) compared to 2.3% in Scotland. Of this proportion 		
approximately two-thirds are male.
• 6.4% of the working age client group in the Scottish Borders are claiming Employment and 		
Support Allowance / Incapacity Benefits compared to 7.9% in Scotland.
• 2754 people received advice and advocacy on benefit and tax credit matters from Scottish Borders
Council Welfare Benefits Service in 2015/16 compared to 2364 the previous year.
• A further reduction in the benefit cap is likely to impact on around 80 families in the Scottish 		
Borders.
• Changes through welfare reform are most likely to impact upon working age families with two or 		
more children.

ATTITUDES TO OFFENDING
Key Facts

• The reconviction rate in the Scottish Borders (2013/14) is 28.4% compared with 28.3% in Scotland 		
although this is affected by a range of factors.
• The most common age for young offenders to commit offences in the Scottish Borders is 15 years 		
of age.
• The Edinburgh Study of Youth Transitions and Crime identified that serious offending was linked to
a range of vulnerabilities and social adversity.
• Although the Scottish Borders has a relatively low level of crime an offender profile identified a 		
disproportionate number of crimes committed by a relatively small number of individuals. A 		
number of these individuals began to offend at an early age and have persisted into adulthood.

Page 79
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 19

EMPLOYMENT
Key Facts

• The Office for National Statistics, Labour Market Profile to September 2016 reports that 74.9% of 		
the working age population in the Scottish Borders are employed, compared to a national figure of
72.8%.
• The top four business sectors in the Scottish Borders are agriculture, forestry and fishing, 			
construction and retail. The top employing sector is health.
• Over half of people convicted and subject to a full Criminal Justice Social Work Level of Service / 		
Case Management Inventory in the Scottish Borders are unemployed or experience periods of 		
unemployment.
• The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 specifies rehabilitation periods under the law in Scotland,
a period of time after which a conviction is classed as spent. Certain occupations require a full 		
disclosure of convictions whether spent or not for example working with vulnerable people.
• Unemployed claimants are supported to find work by a Department of Work and Pensions Work 		
Coach. Disclosure of previous convictions is discretionary though failure to disclose can be a 		
barrier at the point of applying for work when disclosure of a past conviction becomes mandatory.
• Self-deselection may occur where disclosure is required prior to making an employment 			
application.
• Average workplace earnings (2015) for full time workers were £455.10 per week in the Scottish 		
Borders compared to £527.00 across Scotland.

Page
80 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
20 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

ACHIEVEMENT AGAINST THE
COMMUNITY JUSTICE COMMON
OUTCOMES

Structural Outcomes – What we are delivering as partners
1. Communities improve their understanding and participation in community justice
•
•
•
•

Community Justice stakeholder events have been held in 2014 and 2015 to raise 		
awareness and develop ideas.
A communications plan has been developed to improve knowledge and understanding
around community justice.
Engagement and consultation exercises supported by a range of media activity were 		
undertaken during 2016/17.
The Scottish Fire and Rescue Service and Police Scotland have consulted over local 		
priorities and participate in the Community Planning Partnership agenda.

2. Partners plan and deliver services in a more strategic and collaborative way
•
•

•
•
•

Multi-agency public protection arrangements (MAPPA) are well established in the 		
Scottish Borders.
The Scottish Borders has an integrated Safer Communities Team incorporating 		
representatives from Police Scotland, the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service, Domestic
Abuse Service, Anti-Social Behaviour officers and other council employees who deliver a
crime prevention and safety function.
Social workers provide throughcare and aftercare for young people during the transition
into independent living through support with employment, housing, and, health and 		
wellbeing.
Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership sponsored a place on the Addiction Worker 		
Trainee Programme. This was successfully completed and a further trainee has been
appointed.
The Lothian and Borders Community Justice Authority commissioned an assessment of
the current health reintegration needs of prisoners and those with a non-custodial
sentence in the Scottish Borders. Recommendations focus on the association with 		
substance misuse and offending behaviour, meeting the needs of those in custody and
community based support. Addressing these needs prevents mal-adjustment and social
isolation, leading to re-offending, and stigma as a barrier to accessing services.

Page 81IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 21
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES

•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Community Planning Partnership Reducing Inequalities Strategy looks to assist 			
those who are disadvantaged through socio economic circumstances and is driving forward 		
actions to improve outcomes for a range of groups, including people with convictions in 		
relation to housing, employment, education and health.
A Mental Health Needs Assessment was commissioned by Scottish Borders Council and 		
NHS Borders to inform the development of a local strategy and service design. Community 		
justice is an important component given the link to inequality and wellbeing, co-occurring 		
mental health and substance misuse.
An independent review is underway to identify improvements in the way welfare benefits and
associated services for vulnerable people are provided by Scottish Borders Council.
Police Scotland is introducing a dedicated community planning officer to support 			
collaboration across the partnership.
Welfare Benefits staff regularly attend the Early Years Centres in Hawick, Eyemouth, 			
Galashiels and Selkirk supporting the parents of young children.
The Criminal Justice Social Work structure has been reviewed and changes made to build on
the service currently provided.
ReConnect is a multi-agency approach established in the Scottish Borders which addresses 		
the needs of women at risk of offending.
Drug Treatment Testing Orders are delivered in partnership with the Borders Addiction 		
Service.
The Community Intervention for Sexual Offenders service is based in Edinburgh but is 		
available to Scottish Borders clients.
Employability services are enhanced by five independent training providers through the 		
employability fund. An offending history is not a barrier to access. A Provider Forum has 		
been established to coordinate activity within the Scottish Borders.
There is a Scottish Borders Supported Employment Network, established by the Council’s 		
Employment Support Service, which brings together a range of disciplines involved in 		
employability. The service is available to those with an offending history.
Criminal Justice Social Work, Youth Justice, and Alcohol and Drug services staff now attend 		
Safer Communities Anti-social Behaviour Core Group meetings to offer advice and support 		
to mitigate against the difficulties experienced by young people adjusting to independent
living.

3. People have better access to the services they require, including welfare, health and
wellbeing, housing and employability
•

•
•
•

The Learning and Skills Partnership consisting of Skills Development Scotland, Borders 		
College, Department of Work and Pensions and Scottish Borders Council oversees how 		
the recommendations within the Developing our Young Workforce, Scotland’s
Youth Employment Strategy, are delivered. This makes clear their commitment to improving
youth employment in the Scottish Borders. Within the recommendations there is an
increased emphasis on vocational qualifications, improved approach to work placements and
a focus upon achieving positive destinations for young people.
Skills Development Scotland provides support for young men and women released from 		
prison.
A Scottish Borders Youth Employment Activity Plan shows local delivery arrangements that 		
support young people into employment in a way that reflects individual need including those
with an offending history.
An employability worker within addiction services takes referrals from a range of sources to 		
help people gain employability skills and secure employment.

Page
82 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
22 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

•
•

•

•
•
•
•

Reducing inequalities is a service priority for Community Learning and Development.
Co-ordinators are located across the Scottish Borders offering free learning opportunities to
any adult learner who is interested in personal development.
A criminal justice worker from within Criminal Justice Social Work provides a link between 		
local services, the Scottish Prison Service Throughcare Support Officer and the individual to 		
make sure that their needs are met prior to and following release from
prison. Appointments are made with the Homelessness Service upon release for an 			
assessment and housing support with a view to creating a smooth transition back into the 		
community.
Skills Development Scotland Work Coaches engage with those young people most at risk 		
of not progressing to a positive destination whilst they are still at school. They support them 		
in the transition to post school opportunities in employment, education or training. Work
coaches assist the most vulnerable young people including those who have offended and 		
help them to develop their employability and career management skills.
An integrated customer service model is being considered by Scottish Borders Council. This
will include accessibility by those with an offending history.
An Integrated Homelessness and Wellbeing Strategic Plan 2017/2018 is being developed.
A mental health welfare benefits officer is based within the Welfare Benefits Service. They 		
have strong links to mental health professionals.
There are locality based integrated health and social care community mental health teams.

4. Effective interventions are delivered to prevent and reduce the risk of further offending
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Getting it Right for Every Child principles addressing the needs of young people are well 		
embedded within the Scottish Borders.
A Vulnerable Young Persons Protocol creates a network of support and mitigates risk among
young people who are vulnerable and not subject to any other intervention. Vulnerability can 		
be caused by the young person or the actions or inaction of another.
Strategic and operational groups have been established around the corporate parenting 		
agenda to deliver positive outcomes for looked after children thus promoting the Scottish 		
Care Leavers Covenant.
A Developing Our Young Workforce Industry Group has been established to offer employment
opportunities to disadvantaged groups including young people with convictions.
Police Scotland and Scottish Borders Council contribute towards the provision of Youth 		
Community Officers who support delivery of the Integrated Children and Young People’s 		
Plan.
The Scottish Fire and Rescue Service have committed to delivering safety and employability 		
skills training within HM Young Offenders Institution Polmont. Candidates from the Scottish 		
Borders and other parts of Scotland will participate.
The Scottish Fire and Rescue Service are active referral partners in relation to home safety 		
and take part in joint agency visits.
A Violence Against Women Partnership has been established to deliver Scotland’s Equally 		
Safe Strategy. There is participation in police led meetings to support risk reduction for 		
victims and de-escalation of perpetrator behaviour. A range of partners including 			
the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service participate in delivering this strategy which has a 		
strong prevention theme.
Police Scotland and the Crown Office and Procurator Fiscal Service work to a joint protocol 		
when investigating domestic abuse. This creates consistency, speeds up justice and, in 		
particular supports victims and vulnerable witnesses.
Criminal Justice Social Work uses a variety of settings to carry out alcohol screening and 		
alcohol brief interventions. Anti-social Behaviour Unit staff also carryout this intervention.

Page 83
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 23

Person-centric Outcomes – Changes to users
5. Life chances are improved through needs, including health, financial inclusion, housing
and safety being addressed
•
•
•
•
•

A multi-agency Strategic Corporate Parenting Group and a Corporate Parenting Operations 		
Group work to ensure the needs of looked after children are met.
Pre-sentencing court reports completed by Criminal Justice Social Work provide information 		
to support sentencing options that maximise opportunities to address underlying need /risk.
Criminal Justice Social Work services work through a questionnaire with clients at the end 		
of their order or licence requirements. Questions relate to how specific needs have been met 		
and whether circumstances have improved.
Alcohol and drug treatment services use an outcomes tool to assess progress at the start of 		
treatment and at three monthly intervals thereafter. There are 10 domains which 			
link directly to needs identified within community justice.
Criminal Justice Social Work use the recognised risk and need assessment tool statutory 			
support and case management known as the Level of Service / Case Management Inventory 		
which provides evidence of improvement among those individuals subject to a full assessment.

6. People develop positive relationships and more opportunities to participate and
contribute through education, employment and leisure activities
•
•
•
•

•

Developing Our Young Workforce provides a range of opportunities to develop a person 			
centred approach to education and learning.
The Scottish Fire and Rescue Service have developed and piloted an approach to engage with 		
young people through fire safety and personal development. Delivered in partnership with the 		
Scottish Ambulance Service the programme provides positive role models, training and life skills.
Further education provision in the Borders recognises the barrier that a conviction can 			
create. Arrangements have been introduced to support individuals who may have a conviction 		
balanced against the needs of the wider learning community.
Skills Development Scotland Career Coaches support young people to develop their employability 		
and career management skills thereby increasing their potential to secure a positive destination. 		
Work Coaches continue to support and mentor young people post school to further develop 		
employability skills and help to sustain their work / training placement or college place.
Individuals seeking employment are supported by a Department of Work and Pensions Work 		
Coach to help them into employment.

7. Individual’s resilience and capacity for change and self-management should be enhanced
•
•
•
•
•

A Whole Systems Approach has been adopted to deliver early and effective intervention in 			
tackling the offending behaviour of young people.
The Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership funded two clients in recovery on the Scottish Drug’s 		
forum self-assessment coaching course enabling individuals to manage their own recovery while 		
supporting others.
Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership, Borders Addiction Service and Addaction provide a 		
range of group recovery activities across the Scottish Borders. Most are weekly and family 			
members are welcome. In addition a weekly group has been set up independently.
The Caledonian System is a court mandated programme for male perpetrators convicted of 		
domestic abuse. It is only as a result of the perpetrator being subject to the programme that 		
women and children can access the service.
Mental health awareness and literacy is promoted through community based activities and 		
capacity building through the Joint Health Improvement Team, Healthy Living Network, and 		
Community Learning and Development.

Page
84 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
24 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

COMMUNITY JUSTICE (SCOTLAND)
ACT 2016 OUTCOME IMPROVEMENT
ACTIONS

Community Justice Outcome
1. Communities improve their understanding and participation in community justice
Community Justice Indicator
•
•
•
•
•
•

Activities carried out to engage with ‘communities’ as well as other relevant constituencies
Consultation with communities as part of community justice planning and service provision
Participation in community justice, such as co-production and joint delivery
Level of community awareness of/satisfaction with work undertaken as part of a CPO
Evidence from questions to be used in local surveys/citizens panels, etc.
Perception of the local crime rate

Outcome Improvement Action in Scottish Borders
Number Improvement Action						

Lead

Completion

1.1

Develop a communications plan to raise the profile of community justice which will maximise Community
use of all available communication channels, including Scottish Borders Council and partners Justice Lead
websites, and social media.

2017/20

1.2

Develop an Unpaid Work Strategy, to include:

Criminal
Justice Social
Work/Skills
Development
Scotland

2018/19

• Review the unpaid work request for service form and its accessibility to improve 		
opportunities to contribute ideas.
• Reconcile the proportion of unpaid work with the volume of crime in particular areas.
• Develop a co-production approach to the delivery of unpaid work and consider the role
partners such as the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service can play in developing life skills.
• Develop an employability assessment which recognises the local employment market,
unpaid work to be undertaken and availability of other activity to increase work readiness.
1.3

Develop a series of partnership questions on community justice for inclusion in appropriate
Community Planning consultation exercises.

Community
Justice Lead

2017/18

1.4

Reduce barriers to employment for people with convictions.

Community
Justice
Lead/Skills
Development
Scotland

2019/20

Hold a programme of specific events relating to recruiting people with a conviction/s.
Skills Development Scotland work with the business community to reduce perception and
stigma associated with an offending history.
Create linkages between Skills Development Scotland and the business community in
relation to national training programmes and employer engagement services.

Page 85
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 25

Community Justice Outcome
2. Partners plan and deliver services in a more strategic and collaborative way
Community Justice Indicator
•
•
•
		
•
		

Services are planned for and delivered in a strategic and collaborative way
Partners have leveraged resource for community justice
Development of community justice workforce to work effectively across organisational /		
professional /geographic boundaries
Partners illustrate effective engagement and collaborative partnership working with the 		
authorities responsible for the delivery of MAPPA

Outcome Improvement Action
Number

Improvement Action						

Lead

Completion

2.1

Explore the options and milestones necessary to introduce a Domestic Abuse Court
within the Scottish Borders.

Scottish Courts and
Tribunals Service/
Violence Against
Women Partnership

2018/19

2.2

Review information sharing arrangements based upon preventing crime to facilitate a
through the gate process.

Community Justice
Lead & Partners

2017/18

2.3

Use tasking and coordination in a way that is proportionate to local circumstances, to
include:

Police Scotland/Safer 2018/19
Communities Team

Developing the analytical picture in relation to crime and identify additional data sets that
enhance understanding.
Use analysis to support the partnership in targeted crime prevention activity.
2.4

The Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership will develop ‘future model’ options for
alcohol and drugs services to match budget settlements post 2016/17.

Borders Alcohol and
Drugs Partnership

2018/19

2.5

Develop actions for inclusion within the Local Housing Strategy 2017-22 in particular
appropriateness of accommodation and homelessness prevention.

Group Manager
Housing

2019/20
(review)

2.6

Work with partners to strengthen arrangements in relation to pre-release housing
assessments and tenancy sustainment to prevent rent arrears or abandoned
tenancies, and:

Homelessness
Service/Scottish
Prison Service/
Criminal Justice
Social Work

2018/19

Explore options for strengthening arrangements that help mitigate against rent arrears
and abandoned tenancies.
2.7

Scottish Fire and Rescue Service build upon and develop arrangements in collaboration Scottish Fire and
2018/19
with youth justice services that support young people at risk of offending behaviour or
Rescue Service/Youth
who have committed an offence and consider ways to extend the approach to adults who Justice
might also benefit.

2.8

Development of ReConnent focussing on prevention and (early as possible) multi-agency Criminal Justice
trauma-informed interventions for women at risk of offending and with multiple and
Social Work / NHS
complex needs, incorporated within a sustainable delivery model:
Borders
Provision of clinical supervision for the ReConnect Survive and Thrive women’s
programme.

Page
86 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
26 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

2018/19

Community Justice Outcome

3. People have better access to the services they require, including welfare, health and
wellbeing, housing and employability

Community Justice Indicator

• Partners have identified and are overcoming structural barriers for people accessing services
• Existence of joint-working such as processes/protocols to ensure access to services to address 		
underlying needs
• Initiatives to facilitate access to services
• Speed of access to mental health services
• Speed of access to drug and alcohol services
• % of people released from custodial sentences, registered with a GP, have suitable

Outcome Improvement Action
Number

Improvement Action						

Lead

Completion

3.1

Use technological solutions to build capacity, reduce cost and improve outcomes, for
example video conferencing & link between Criminal Justice Social Work, the Prison
estate or between campuses.

Criminal Justice
2018/19
Social Work / Scottish
Prison Service

3.2

Review referral mechanisms and the significant points when information is available
from service users about criminogenic needs to ensure the breadth and manner in
which questions are asked identifies barriers and improves access to services.

Community Justice
Partners

3.3

Less than a third of Scottish Borders prisoners are subject to statutory throughcare upon Scottish Prison
release from prison, for the remainder it is voluntary. Work to improve the number of
Service/ Criminal
prisoners accepting voluntary throughcare.
Justice Social Work

2019/2020

3.4

Explore options with Registered Social Landlords that remove the need for a homeless
assessment for people leaving custody enabling direct access to housing.

Homelessness
Service

2018/19

3.5

Engage in dialogue with the private rented housing sector and letting agents to consider
and breakdown any barriers to access that may exist.

Homelessness
Service

2018/19

3. 6

Develop a proportionate approach to target vulnerable groups at risk of poor mental
health as part of wider health inequalities work. This includes building capacity of
frontline services to engage effectively and promote health in routine contacts with
clients / service users.

NHS Public Health

2019/20

3.7

Promote mental health and wellbeing and reduce inequalities by building capacity for
improved mental health and wellbeing within communities. This will include a new
wellbeing training programme that can be tailored for and targeted to specific groups
and improved signposting to sources of support, including group support.

NHS Public Health

2019/20

3.8

Reduce risk of preventable disease in vulnerable groups by improving engagement and
access to health screening and care services (including screening / assessment of alcohol
and drug problems and mental health issues; risk-taking behaviours around Blood Borne
Viruses and broader health concerns e.g. dental, health issues and health literacy.

NHS Public Health

2019/20

3.9

Develop the Right Track Employability Support Project (2 year European Structural Fund).

Economic
2017/19
Development/Criminal
Justice Social Work

3.10

Promote employment support services, information and funding sources to community
justice partners, the business community, service and perspective service users.

Skills Development
Scotland

2018/19

2018/19

Develop referral mechanisms, building on existing access points and help service users
to secure person centred support.

Page 87
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 27

Community Justice Outcome

4. Effective interventions are delivered to prevent and reduce the risk of further offending

Community Justice Indicator

• Targeted interventions have been tailored for and with an individual and had a successful impact 		
on their risk of future offending
• Use of “other activities” in Community Payback Orders
• Effective risk management for public protection
• Quality of Community Payback Orders and Drug Treatment Testing Orders
• Reduce use of custodial sentences and remand, balance between community sentences relative
to short custodial sentences under 1 year, proportion of people appearing from custody who are 		
remanded
• The delivery of interventions targeted at problem drug and alcohol use
• Number of police recorded warnings, police diversion, fiscal measures, fiscal diversion, 			
supervised bail, community sentences (CPO, DTTO and RLOs)
• Number of short-term sentences under one year

Outcome Improvement Action
Number

Improvement Action						

Lead

Completion

4.1

Explore opportunities to develop injury surveillance to create a more informed picture of
where and when violence occurs.

NHS Borders /Police
Scotland

2018/19

4.2

Extend Mentors in Violence Prevention programme to all 9 secondary schools to support Education
prevention.

2017/18

4.3

Ensure individuals considered to be persistent or prolific in their offending behaviour
have contact with statutory and/or other appropriate services. This may include
assessment and signposting based upon identified need.

Community Justice
Lead/Community
Justice Partners

2017/18

4.4

Consider options to develop the antecedent information on those individuals who are
committing a disproportionate level of crime in the Scottish Borders to support case
disposal and sentencing decisions.

Crown Office and
Procurator Fiscals
Service/ Police
Scotland

2018/19

4.5

Ensure service delivery of the Wise Group, New Routes Public Social Partnership
mentoring service (a nationally commissioned service) is linked to agreed common
outcomes and performance monitoring. In particular, persistent/prolific offenders are
being supported to re-integrate into their communities.

Criminal Justice
Social Work

2018/19

4.6

Scottish Fire and Rescue Service will explore opportunities to extend the HM Young
Offenders Institution Polmont programme to include options post release.

Scottish Fire and
Rescue Service/
Scottish Prison
Service

2018/19

4.7

Re invigorate Restorative Justice as an intervention.

Police Scotland

2017/18

4.8

Develop Whole Systems Approach with a focus on early and effective intervention,
Youth Justice
diversion from prosecution, alternatives to secure care and custody. Ensure that support
is given to those young people appearing before the court and leaving secure care and
custody.

Page
88 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
28 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

2018/19

Community Justice Outcome

5. Life chances are improved through needs, including health, financial inclusion, housing and
safety being addressed

Community Justice Indicator

• Individual have made progress against the outcome

Outcome Improvement Action
Number

Improvement Action						

Lead

Completion

5.1

Scope the potential for developing a range of alternatives to remand/custody in order to
support women within community settings and which address the risk/needs.

Criminal Justice
Social Work/
Community Justice
Lead

2019/2020

5.2

Ensure a benefits check upon release from prison for the client and their family if
appropriate.

SBC Welfare
Benefits/Scottish
Prison Service

2018/19

Ideally this would be undertaken in advance of being released.
5.3

Improve access to information and clarify pathways to sources of help across a range
of support options for mental health, including support programmes for men and for
women.

Integrated Joint
Board/NHS Mental
Health

2017/18

5.4

Deliver a care programme approach to ensure people with complex needs including
mental health, addictions and criminal justice have their needs met.

Integrated Joint
Board/NHS Mental
Health

2018/19

5.5

Explore options to extend community mental health triage distress brief interventions.

Police Scotland/
Integrated Joint
Board/NHS Mental
Health

2019/20

5.6

Improve social outcomes through implementation of the Local Housing Strategy
2017/22, which seeks to address house condition, affordability, independent living and
homelessness.

Homelessness
Service

2018/19

Page 89
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 29

Community Justice Outcome

6. People develop positive relationships and more opportunities to participate and contribute through education,
employment and leisure activities,

Community Justice Indicator
•

Individuals have made progress against the outcome

Outcome Improvement Action
Number

Improvement Action						

Lead

Completion

6.1

Develop opportunities to further utilise Level of Service / Case Management Inventory used Criminal Justice
to assess risk and need factors to influence the provision of services and evaluate impact. Social Work

6.2

Make better use of the information contained within the Criminal Justice Social Work
Order and Licence Completion Questionnaire to assess whether needs have been met
and meaningful progress made.

Criminal Justice Social 2017/18
Work/ Community
Justice Lead

6.3

Scottish Fire and Rescue Service explore opportunities to work with Live Borders to
share facilities and resource to promote safety and wellbeing.

Scottish Fire and
Rescue Service/Live
Borders

2018/19

6.4

Develop a role that individuals on unpaid work can play within communities to support
the contingency arrangements for severe weather.

SBC Emergency
Planning/Criminal
Justice Social Work

2018/19

6.5

Promote the completed projects undertaken by the unpaid work teams within
communities.

SBC Unpaid Work
Supervisor

2018/19

2017/18

Community Justice Outcome
7. Individual’s resilience and capacity for change and self-management are enhanced

Community Justice Indicator
•

Individuals have made progress against the outcome

Outcome Improvement Action
Number
7.1

Improvement Action						

Lead

Completion

Develop a ‘through the gate’ approach for people being released from custody to improve Criminal Justice
2018/19
access to key services before and following release to minimise vulnerability and support Social Work/Scottish
re integration back into the community, to include:
Prison Service/Group
Manager Housing/
Improve the pre and post release arrangements between the individual in custody,
NHS Public Health
prison Throughcare Support Officer and Criminal Justice Social Work.
Work with the Scottish Prison Service to ensure all Scottish Borders prisoners have a
bank account or ability to receive direct payments to establish and maintain financial
inclusion.
Review pathways to accessing health and health care support services to ensure equity
and continuity of care.

7.2

Work with the Scottish Prison Service and other local agencies to raise awareness of
budgeting and digital inclusion in relation to Universal Credit upon release.

SBC Welfare
Benefits

2018/19

7.3

Monitor the use of Drug Treatment Testing Orders in the Scottish Borders.

Criminal Justice
Social Work

2017/18

7.4

Increase the number of referrals to the SHINE mentoring service for women.

Criminal Justice
Social Work

2018/19

7.5

Improve access to information and clarify pathways to sources of help for mental health
needs which promotes a wide range of support options.

SBC/NHS Mental
Health

2018/19

Page
90 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
30 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

OUTCOMES, PERFORMANCE AND
IMPROVEMENT FRAMEWORK
BASELINE QUANTITATIVE INDICATORS

Indicators within community justice traverse both quantitative and qualitative measurement and
will be reported on annually to Community Justice Scotland. Outcome improvement actions will
demonstrate activity that produces results. Qualitative indicators represent an opportunity for
community justice partners to report on improvement, progress and impact.
Baseline indicators below relate to quantitative indicators and available baseline information. It is
likely that these indicators will be added to or refined as community justice arrangements develop
and mature.

Page 91
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 31

Page
92 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
32 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

Common	
  Outcome	
  
Quantitative	
  Indicator	
  	
  
1.	
  	
  Communities	
  improve	
  their	
  understanding	
  and	
  participation	
  	
  	
  	
   Social	
  Media	
  Activity:	
  
in	
  community	
  justice	
  
• Followers	
  
	
  
• Tweets	
  
• Number	
  of	
  Likes	
  
• Number	
  of	
  Retweets	
  
	
  
%	
  of	
  respondents	
  who	
  stated	
  they	
  had	
  
previously	
  been	
  aware	
  of	
  community	
  justice	
  	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
Number	
  of	
  Community	
  Payback	
  Order	
  
opportunities	
  for	
  unpaid	
  work	
  identified	
  by	
  
the	
  community	
  (2015/16)	
  
2.	
  	
  Partners	
  plan	
  and	
  deliver	
  services	
  in	
  a	
  more	
  strategic	
  and	
  
	
  
collaborative	
  way	
  
	
  
3.	
  	
  People	
  have	
  better	
  access	
  to	
  the	
  services	
  they	
  require,	
  
• Employability	
  Skills,	
  literacy	
  and	
  
including	
  welfare,	
  health	
  and	
  wellbeing,	
  housing	
  and	
  
numeracy	
  
employability	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
• Employability	
  fund	
  programme	
  2,	
  3,	
  4	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
90%	
  of	
  patients	
  (whole	
  community)	
  to	
  
commence	
  psychological	
  therapy	
  treatment	
  
	
  
within	
  18	
  weeks	
  
	
  
90%	
  of	
  clients	
  will	
  wait	
  no	
  longer	
  than	
  three	
  
weeks	
  from	
  referral	
  to	
  receiving	
  appropriate	
  
drug	
  or	
  alcohol	
  treatment	
  
	
  
Arrest	
  referral	
  scheme	
  (only	
  available	
  for	
  
legacy	
  Lothian	
  and	
  Borders	
  Police	
  area)	
  	
  
	
  
Homeless	
  applications	
  on	
  release	
  from	
  prison	
  
	
  
Effective	
  interventions	
  are	
  delivered	
  to	
  prevent	
  and	
  reduce	
  the	
   Balance	
  between	
  community	
  sentences	
  
risk	
  of	
  further	
  offending	
  
relative	
  to	
  short	
  custodial	
  sentences	
  under	
  
	
  
one	
  year.	
  
Criminal	
  Justice	
  
Social	
  Work	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
NHS	
  HEAT	
  
standard	
  (end	
   37	
  
March	
  2016)	
  
	
  
NHS	
  Heat	
  
standard	
  
(End	
  March	
  2016)	
  
	
  
Police	
  Scotland	
  	
  
2015/16	
  
	
  
SG	
  HL1	
  2015/16	
  

	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
79.9%	
  current	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
97.9%	
  current	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
34	
  
	
  
247	
  CPO	
  Orders	
  	
  
	
  
208	
  Individuals	
  on	
  

Scottish	
  
Government	
  
Social	
  work	
  

Source	
  
Scottish	
  Borders	
  
Council	
  Corporate	
  
Communications	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
Engagement	
  
exercise	
  July	
  -‐	
  Aug	
  
2016	
  
	
  
Criminal	
  Justice	
  
Social	
  Work	
  	
  
	
  
	
  

Baseline	
  
	
  
0	
  
0	
  
0	
  
0	
  
	
  
52%	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
42	
  
	
  
Qualitative	
  
measure	
  

Baseline	
  indicators	
  below	
  relate	
  to	
  quantitative	
  indicators	
  and	
  available	
  baseline	
  information.	
  It	
  is	
  likely	
  that	
  these	
  indicators	
  will	
  be	
  added	
  to	
  or	
  refined	
  as	
  
community	
  justice	
  arrangements	
  develop	
  and	
  mature.	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

Page 93
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 33

	
  

	
  

4.	
  	
  Effective	
  interventions	
  are	
  delivered	
  to	
  prevent	
  and	
  reduce	
  
the	
  risk	
  of	
  further	
  offending	
  
	
  

CJSW	
  
ASBU	
  
Custody	
  Suite	
  

	
  
	
  
Number	
  of	
  referrals	
  from	
  criminal	
  justice	
  
sources	
  to	
  drug	
  and	
  alcohol	
  specialist	
  
treatment	
  (including	
  Addaction	
  and	
  Borders	
  
addiction	
  Service)	
  
	
  
Police	
  disposals:	
  
• Formal	
  adult	
  warning	
  	
  
• Recorded	
  police	
  warning	
  	
  
• ASB	
  	
  fixed	
  penalty	
  	
  
• Police	
  diversion	
  Early	
  and	
  Effective	
  
Intervention	
  	
  	
  
Procurator	
  Fiscal	
  action:	
  
• Fiscal	
  fines	
  
• Fiscal	
  work	
  orders	
  
• Fiscal	
  compensation	
  order	
  

•
•
•

	
  
Homeless	
  applications	
  on	
  release	
  from	
  prison	
  
	
  
Balance	
  between	
  community	
  sentences	
  
relative	
  to	
  short	
  custodial	
  sentences	
  under	
  
one	
  year.	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
Community	
  Payback	
  Order	
  supervision	
  
requirement.	
  
	
  
CPO,	
  number	
  of	
  hours	
  of	
  other	
  activity	
  
undertaken.	
  	
  
	
  Number	
  of	
  hours	
  of	
  unpaid	
  work	
  undertaken.	
  
Drug	
  
Treatment	
  Testing	
  Orders	
  	
  
	
  
Restriction	
  
of	
  interventions	
  
Liberty	
  Order	
  d	
  elivered	
  in	
  
Alcohol	
  Brief	
  
	
  criminal	
  justice	
  healthcare	
  settings:	
  
Scottish	
  
Government	
  
Social	
  work	
  
Statistics	
  2014/15	
  
	
  
	
  
Scottish	
  
Government	
  
prison	
  statistics	
  
2013/14	
  
	
  
Social	
  work	
  
Statistics	
  2014/15	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
2015/16	
  
	
   Social	
  work	
  
	
   Statistics	
  2014/15	
  
	
  
Alcohol	
  
and	
  Drugs	
  
Partnership	
  
38	
  
2015/16	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
Alcohol	
  and	
  Drugs	
  
Partnership	
  
2015/16	
  
	
  
	
  
Scottish	
  
Government,	
  
Criminal	
  
Proceedings	
  in	
  
Scotland	
  2015-‐16	
  
Experimental	
  
Statistics	
  Local	
  
Authority	
  Level	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

39	
  
2	
  
223	
  
	
  
	
  
41	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
64	
  
65	
  
209	
  
N/A	
  
	
  
	
  
269	
  
N/A	
  
9	
  
127	
  

	
  
SG	
  HL1	
  2015/16	
  

	
  
34	
  
	
  
247	
  CPO	
  Orders	
  	
  
	
  
208	
  Individuals	
  on	
  
Community	
  
Payback	
  Order	
  
	
  
81	
  Liberations	
  from	
  
Custody	
  	
  for	
  
sentences	
  less	
  than	
  
1	
  year	
  	
  
	
  
112	
  supervision	
  
requirements	
  
	
  
	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
12,991	
  
	
  16	
  
	
  10	
  
	
  	
  

Page
94 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
34 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

6.	
  	
  People	
  develop	
  positive	
  relationships	
  and	
  more	
  
opportunities	
  to	
  participate	
  and	
  contribute	
  through	
  education,	
  
employment	
  and	
  leisure	
  activities	
  
	
  
7.	
  	
  Individual’s	
  resilience	
  and	
  capacity	
  for	
  change	
  and	
  self-‐
management	
  enhanced	
  
	
  

	
  	
  

Life	
  
chances	
  
are	
  aire	
  
mproved	
  
through	
  
needs,	
  
including	
  
health,	
  
5.	
  	
  Life	
  
chances	
  
improved	
  
through	
  
needs,	
  
including	
  
health,	
  
financial	
  
i
nclusion,	
  
h
ousing	
  
a
nd	
  
s
afety	
  
b
eing	
  
a
ddressed	
  
	
  financial	
  inclusion,	
  housing	
  and	
  safety	
  being	
  addressed	
  
	
  	
  

Formal	
  
Formal	
  aadult	
  
dult	
  w
warning	
  
arning	
  	
  	
  
Recorded	
  
p
olice	
  
Recorded	
  police	
  w
warning	
  
arning	
  	
  	
  
ASB	
  
ASB	
  	
  	
  ffixed	
  
ixed	
  ppenalty	
  
enalty	
  	
  	
  
Police	
  
d
iversion	
  
Police	
  diversion	
  EEarly	
  
arly	
  aand	
  
nd	
  EEffective	
  
ffective	
  
Intervention	
  
Intervention	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Procurator	
  
Procurator	
  FFiscal	
  
iscal	
  aaction:	
  
ction:	
  
•• Fiscal	
  
Fiscal	
  ffines	
  
ines	
  
•• Fiscal	
  
Fiscal	
  w
work	
  
ork	
  o
orders	
  
rders	
  
•• Fiscal	
  
c
ompensation	
  
Fiscal	
  compensation	
  o
order	
  
rder	
  
f
ixed	
  
p
enalties	
  
•• Fiscal	
  
Fiscal	
  fixed	
  penalties	
  
•• Fiscal	
  
Fiscal	
  d
diversion	
  
iversion	
  tto	
  
o	
  ssocial	
  
ocial	
  w
work	
  
ork	
  
f
iscal	
  
f
ines/compensation	
  
•• Combined	
  
Combined	
  fiscal	
  fines/compensation	
  
orders	
  
orders	
  
Improvement	
  
Improvement	
  iin	
  
n	
  sself-‐reported	
  
elf-‐reported	
  ooffending	
  
ffending	
  sstatus	
  
tatus	
  
via	
  
a
lcohol	
  
a
nd	
  
d
rugs	
  
o
utcome	
  
t
ool	
  
	
  
	
  
via	
  alcohol	
  and	
  drugs	
  outcome	
  tool	
  	
  	
  
	
  	
  
	
  	
  
Evidence	
  from	
  service	
  user	
  questionnaires	
  
used	
  at	
  the	
  conclusion	
  of	
  Criminal	
  Justice	
  
Social	
  Work	
  supervision	
  or	
  an	
  order	
  to	
  
measure	
  improvement	
  
	
  	
  
	
  

Number	
  of	
  women	
  participating	
  in	
  ReConnect	
  	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
Number	
  of	
  referrals	
  to	
  PSP	
  Shine	
  mentoring	
  
service	
  	
  
	
  
• Prison	
  
• Community	
  
Number	
  of	
  women	
  participating	
  in	
  Public	
  
Social	
  Partnership	
  Shine	
  mentoring	
  service	
  
(This	
  will	
  include	
  women	
  referred	
  in	
  different	
  
years)	
  	
  	
  
	
  
Number	
  of	
  young	
  people	
  from	
  the	
  Borders	
  
participating	
  in	
  the	
  SFRS	
  Youth	
  Engagement	
  
Projects,	
  including	
  community	
  based	
  at	
  
Polmont	
  	
  	
  

••
••
••
••

21	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
8	
  
	
  
	
  
3	
  
5	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
15	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

Qualitative	
  
measure	
  	
  

New	
  
New	
  IIndicator	
  
ndicator	
  

64	
  
64	
  
65	
  
65	
  
209	
  
209	
  
N/A	
  
N/A	
  
	
  	
  
	
  	
  
269	
  
269	
  
N/A	
  
N/A	
  
9	
  
9	
  
127	
  
127	
  
N/A	
  
N/A	
  
	
  44
	
  
25	
  
25	
  

Criminal	
  Justice	
  
Social	
  Work	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
SACRO	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
Scottish	
  Fire	
  and	
  
Rescue	
  Service	
  
2015/16	
  
	
  

Alcohol	
  
Alcohol	
  aand	
  
nd	
  D
Drugs	
  
rugs	
  
Partnership	
  
Partnership	
  
2015/16	
  
2015/16	
  
	
  	
  
Criminal	
  Justice	
  
Social	
  Work	
  
39	
  
39	
  
2014/15	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

Government,	
  
Government,	
  
Criminal	
  
Criminal	
  
Proceedings	
  
Proceedings	
  iin	
  
n	
  
Scotland	
  
2
015-‐16	
  
Scotland	
  2015-‐16	
  
Experimental	
  
Experimental	
  
Statistics	
  
Statistics	
  LLocal	
  
ocal	
  
Authority	
  
Authority	
  LLevel	
  
evel	
  	
  	
  
	
  	
  
	
  	
  
	
  	
  

Page 95
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 35

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

Number	
  of	
  women	
  participating	
  in	
  Public	
  
Social	
  Partnership	
  Shine	
  mentoring	
  service	
  
(This	
  will	
  include	
  women	
  referred	
  in	
  different	
  
years)	
  	
  	
  
	
  
Number	
  of	
  young	
  people	
  from	
  the	
  Borders	
  
participating	
  in	
  the	
  SFRS	
  Youth	
  Engagement	
  
Projects,	
  including	
  community	
  based	
  at	
  
Polmont	
  	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
Caledonian	
  System	
  
• Male	
  participation	
  
	
  
	
  
Participation	
  on	
  New	
  Routes	
  Partnership	
  	
  
(June	
  2013-‐April	
  2017)	
  
	
  

29

16

	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
15	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
Scottish	
  Fire	
  and	
  
Rescue	
  Service	
  
2015/16	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
Criminal	
  Justice	
  
Social	
  Work	
  
40	
  
2014/15	
  
	
  
SACRO	
  	
  

PARTICIPATION STATEMENT:
ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

During the preparation of this plan all statutory community justice partners were consulted and
participated in its development.
Community justice partners recognise that success in reducing reoffending will require a broad
contribution by a range of individuals and organisations that are not specified in legislation. While
different community justice partners will have different engagement and consultation processes some
specific activity was undertaken that has contributed to the development of this plan.
Two stakeholder community justice mapping events were held to consider a holistic approach to reducing
reoffending. The first, a community mapping event examined the coordination of services, prevention and
early intervention opportunities and pathways to access services. A request for information preceded the
second stakeholder event to capture activity that was already being undertaken which linked to the seven
common Community Justice Outcomes. This was followed by an event consisting of presentations and a
workshop to provide information to attendees and capture a range of viewpoints and ideas.
An article was included in Scottish Borders Council’s spring 2016 internal publication to raise awareness
and solicit feedback.
A literature review has been undertaken to inform the Scottish Borders context and needs assessment.
In order to capture a broader range of opinion a Scottish Borders wide engagement exercise was
undertaken over an eight week period. A questionnaire was prepared and published on the Scottish
Borders Council web-site, printed copies were available upon request. A media release was prepared
for local newspapers, radio and television. A link to the questionnaire was sent directly to specific
community justice stakeholders, including all community councils, to encourage participation. It was
publicised on the Scottish Borders Council website and social media channels. During the last 4 weeks
of the engagement exercise a weekly message was sent out to encourage completion of the survey.
Information about community justice, and what it is trying to achieve, accompanied the questionnaire.
Responses have been considered and incorporated within the plan.
This plan has been considered by the Scottish Borders Community Planning Partnership and a three
month consultation exercise undertaken on the draft proposal. Staff awareness across partner and
stakeholder agencies has been increased through presentations and meetings.
On advice from Positive Prison? Positive Futures… the plan was validated using a focus group of Scottish
Borders prisoners supported by the Scottish Prison Service to provide a perspective through lived
experience to match against partnership understanding. Families Outside contributed through their
involvement in supporting the families of people affected by imprisonment.
The plan chart on page 37 was developed to support understanding all key intervention points along the
Justice Journey.

Page
96 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
36 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

Page 97IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 37
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES

	
  

Adjourned	
  for	
  
sentence
	
  

Police	
  issue	
  direct	
  
measure	
  such	
  as	
  
formal	
  warning	
  or	
  
fixed	
  penalty	
  notice
	
  

Police	
  use	
  discretion	
  
and	
  take	
  no	
  further	
  
action
	
  

Police	
  release	
  
accused	
  for	
  
summons	
  or	
  keep	
  in	
  
custody	
  for	
  court	
  
	
  

Accused	
  sentenced
	
  

Crime	
  committed	
  &	
  
detected	
  
	
  

CJSW	
  prepare	
  report	
  
or	
  other	
  information	
  
sought	
  	
  
	
  

Fail	
  to	
  pay	
  fixed	
  
penalty	
  notice
	
  

Police	
  send	
  report	
  
to	
  COPFS
	
  

THE
JOURNEY
	
  	
  	
  	
  THE	
  JUSTICE
JUSTICE	
  JOURNEY	
  
	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

	
  

Admonished
	
  

Fine	
  or	
  other	
  
measure
	
  

Community	
  Payback	
  
Order
	
  

Prison	
  sentence
	
  

Accused	
  pleads	
  not	
  
guilty
	
  

COPFS	
  issues	
  a	
  fixed	
  
penalty,	
  a	
  fine,	
  a	
  
warning,	
  or	
  
alternative	
  to	
  
prosecution	
  	
  
	
  

Sentenced	
  
	
  

Accused	
  pleads	
  
guilty
(Await	
  sentence)
	
  

Accused	
  appears	
  at	
  
court	
  to	
  plead	
  
	
  

Sentence	
  deferred
	
  

COPFS	
  insufficient	
  
evidence	
  for	
  case	
  to	
  
proceed	
  
	
  

COPFS	
  decides	
  case	
  
will	
  be	
  disposed	
  of	
  	
  
out	
  of	
  court
	
  

COPFS	
  decide	
  
whether	
  case	
  will	
  
proceed	
  to	
  court
	
  

Plea	
  accepted	
  no	
  
further	
  proceedings	
  
	
  

Plea	
  not	
  accepted	
  
moves	
  to	
  
intermediate	
  
pleading	
  diet	
  
	
  

	
  

One	
  or	
  more	
  of;
	
  
Unpaid	
  Work,
Supervision,
Compensation,
Program,
Mental	
  Health/	
  
Alcohol/	
  
Residence/	
  
Conduct	
  
requirement.

Statutory	
  
throughcare
	
  (more	
  than	
  4	
  year	
  
sentence)
	
  

Voluntary	
  
throughcare
(less	
  than	
  4	
  year	
  
sentence)
	
  

Case	
  closed
	
  

Accused	
  pleads	
  
guilty
	
  (Await	
  sentence)

Plea	
  not	
  accepted	
  
proceed	
  to	
  trial	
  
	
  

Court	
  finds	
  accused	
  
not	
  guilty	
  or	
  case	
  
not	
  proven	
  
	
  

Case	
  deserted	
  or	
  not	
  
called
	
  

Court	
  finds	
  accused	
  
guilty	
  
	
  

43	
  

	
  

INFORMING THE SCOTTISH BORDERS
CONTEXT

This plan has been informed by a number of strategies, plans and profiles. All community
justice partners have taken an active role in contributing towards the content of the plan and
arrangements for implementation.

Strategies
Scottish Borders Council Local Housing Strategy 2012 - 2017
Scottish Borders Community Benefit Delivery Strategy 2015
Scottish Government, Preventing Offending, Getting it right for children and young people 2015
Scottish Borders Council Tackling Poverty & Achieving Social Justice 2013 - 2018
Integrated Children and Young People’s Plan in the Scottish Borders 2015 - 2018
Reducing Inequalities in the Scottish Borders 2015 - 2020 Strategic Plan
Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership Strategy 2015 - 2020
Scottish Borders Mental Health Strategy
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care Partnership Strategic Plan 2016 - 2019
The Scottish Government Equally Safe Scotland’s strategy for preventing and eradicating violence
against women and girls 2016
Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy 2016 - 2021
Scottish Borders Local Housing Strategy 2017 - 22 (Consultative Draft)
Justice Digital Strategy

Page
98 | SCOTTISH BORDERS
38 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 - 2020

Plans/Policy
Scottish Borders Council Homeless Delivery Plan 2013 - 2016
Joint protocol between Police Scotland and Crown Office and Procurator Fiscal Service: In
partnership challenging domestic abuse 2013
Scottish Borders Integrated Children and Young People’s Plan 2015 - 2018
Scottish Borders Work Opportunities Scheme - Policy 2016
Scottish Borders Health and Social Care Strategic Plan 2016 - 2019
Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership (ADP) Delivery Plan 2015 - 2018
Scottish Borders Council / NHS Borders Joint Health Improvement Business Plan 2016/17 - 2018/19

Profiles
Scottish Borders Council Household Survey 2010
Scottish Borders Health Needs Assessment for Offenders 2011, Lothian and Borders Community
Justice Authority
Scottish Association for Mental Health, Research Briefing Mental Health and Criminal Justice in
Scotland
Audit Scotland, Reducing Reoffending in Scotland, Service Users’ Views 2012
Tackling Poverty and Achieving Social Justice in the Scottish Borders
The delivery of Justice Services in the Scottish Borders - Report on the joint feasibility study 2014
Scottish Borders Mental Health Needs Assessment 2014, report prepared for Scottish Borders
Council and NHS Borders
Scottish Borders Labour Market Profile 2014 - Office for National Statistics
Scottish Public Health Observatory - Health and Wellbeing Profile (Scottish Borders) 2016
Scottish Borders Local Licensing Forum Alcohol Profile 2014/15
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care Partnership Engagement Report 2015
Scottish Borders Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2015
Scottish Borders Community Planning Partnership Strategic Assessment 2016
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care Partnership Housing Contribution Statement 2016
NHS Health Scotland, Reducing Offending, Reducing Inequalities, Achieving ‘Better Health Lives’
through community Justice 2016 (draft pending publication)

Page 99
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 39

Legislation
The Management of Offenders, etc. (Scotland) Act 2005
Victim and Witness (Scotland) Act 2014
Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act (Health and Social Care Integration) 2014
Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015
Vulnerable Witnesses (Scotland) Act 2015
Victims’ Rights (Scotland) Regulations 2015
Prisoner (Control and Release) (Scotland) Act 2015
Community Justice (Scotland) Act 2016

References
Victim Notification Scheme, Scottish Prison Service 2004
Scottish Government, Justice Analytical Services, Crime and Justice Statistics
Audit Scotland, Reducing Reoffending in Scotland, Service Users’ Views 2012
Scottish Prison Service, Standards for Encouraging Family Contact 2013
Ministry of Justice, The factors associated with proven re-offending following release from prison 2013
Risk Management Authority Level of Service / Case Management Inventory in Practice National
Report, Criminal Justice Social Work Services 2014
Scottish Government Scottish Welfare Fund Statistics: 2014/15
Accommodation Protocol - Preventing Homelessness on release from Custody Protocol, Lothian and
Borders Community Justice Authority 2015
Commission on Housing & Wellbeing - A blueprint for Scotland’s future 2015
The Scottish Government Designing and Evaluating Interventions to Reduce Crime and Reoffending
2015
Scottish Prison Service Prisoner Survey 2015 15th Series
Youth Crime and Justice: Key messages from the Edinburgh Study of Youth Transitions and Crime
(ESYTC) 2010
Framework for the support of families affected by the Criminal Justice System, Lothian and Borders
Community Justice Authority 2015
Families Outside, Support and Information Helpline Team Report 2015/16
The Scottish Children’s Reporters Administration statistical information 2015/16

Page
40 | COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2017 100
- 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS

Health Needs Assessment of the Scottish Borders Offender Population, report prepared for the
Lothian & Borders Community Justice Authority
Welfare Aware Borders - Financial help in the early years 2016
Child Poverty Action Group in Scotland - Financial help for families affected by imprisonment 2016
Scottish Prison Service Standards for Encouraging Family Contact 2016
National Standards for Community Engagement
Scottish Borders Council Community Engagement Toolkit 2015 – 2018
An Introduction to Co-Production, Scottish Borders Council 2016
Police Scotland Management Information Council Area Report Quarter 4 2015/16
Labour Market Profile, nomis Official Labour Market Statistics, Office for National Statistics
Skills Development Scotland, Labour Market Information, Local Authority Profiles:
Scottish Borders June 2016
Skills Development Scotland, Borders Skills Assessment January 2016
Violence Against Women Partnership Guidance, Scottish Government 2016
An Inspection of Through the Gate Resettlement Services for Short-Term Prisoners,
A joint inspection by HM Inspectorate of Probation and HM Inspectorate of Prisons 2016
HM Chief Inspector of Prisons for Scotland Annual Report 2015 - 2016

COUNCIL

Page 101
COMMUNITY JUSTICE OUTCOMES
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2017 - 2020 | SCOTTISH BORDERS | 41

You can get this document on audio CD, in large print, and various other formats by contacting
us at the address below. In addition, contact the address below for information on language
translations, additional copies, or to arrange for an officer to meet with you to explain any areas
of the publication that you would like clarified.
COMMUNITY JUSTICE
Scottish Borders Council| Council Headquarters | Newtown St Boswells | MELROSE | TD6 0SA
tel: 01835 824000 | email: PeopleInfoMgt@scotborders.gov.uk

Printed in the Scottish Borders. Designed by Scottish Borders Council Graphic Design Section. JD April 2017

Page 102

Agenda Item 7

SCOTTISH BORDERS EQUALLY SAFE STRATEGY 2016 - 21
Report by Chief Social Work Officer
COMMUNITY PLANNING STRATEGIC BOARD
22 June 2017

1

PURPOSE AND SUMMARY
This report proposes that representatives of the Community
1.1
Planning Partnership publicly endorse the Scottish Borders Equally
Safe Strategy 2016 – 2021 for preventing and eradicating violence
against women and girls.
1.2

Equally Safe is also the title of Scotland’s Strategy to eradicate and prevent
Violence Against Women and Girls, launched by the Scottish Government
in 2014, (revised in 2015). It details the direction of travel to tackle gender
based violence and wider gender inequalities in Scotland.

1.3

The Equally Safe vision is “a strong and flourishing Scotland where all
individuals are equally safe and respected, and where women and girls live
free from all forms of violence and abuse – and the attitudes that help
perpetuate it. Specifically, the Scottish Borders Equally Safe strategy aims
to “work together to ensure that all women and girls in the Scottish
Borders are equally safe at home, at work and in the community”.
The Strategy has four priorities underpinned by partnership activity
designed to achieve the change required, namely:
1. Scottish society embraces equality and mutual respect, and rejects all
forms of violence against women and girls
2. Women and girls thrive as equal citizens – socially, culturally,
economically and politically
3. Interventions are early and effective, preventing violence and
maximizing the safety and wellbeing of women, children and young
people
4. Men desist from all forms of violence against women and girls and
perpetrators of such violence receive a robust and effective response.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
I recommend that the Community Planning Partnership endorses
2.1
“Equally Safe 2016 - 21” - the Scottish Borders Strategy for
preventing and eradicating violence against women and girls – for
implementation.

3

Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy 2016-21

Page 103

Community Planning Partnership Strategic Board 22 June 2017

1

4

3.1

Scottish Borders Violence Against Women (VAW) Partnership is a tasking
group of Safer Communities and takes a partnership approach to
addressing all forms of gender based violence. Members include: Scottish
Borders Council, NHS Borders, Police Scotland, Crown Office, Border
Women’s Aid, Scottish Borders LGBT Equality, Alcohol and Drugs
Partnership, Safer Communities, Children1st, Scottish Borders Rape Crisis
Service, Adult Protection. The VAW Partnership is chaired by a volunteer
independent chair, and reports to the Police, Fire and Rescue and Safer
Communities Board.

3.2

The Scottish Borders VAW Partnership is delivering the Scottish
Government priorities on gender based violence and have developed the
Scottish Borders Equally Safe strategy to reflect the Scottish Borders
situation.

3.3

The strategy has been developed in partnership with key stakeholders
including service users, and victims of gender based violence. There was a
public consultation July- Sept 2016 and responses have been considered
and reflected in the final version. A gender based violence strategic
assessment conducted by Safer Communities in 2015 provided the
baseline for the Equally Safe Delivery Plan, the tool by which action and
progress of Equally Safe is managed.

3.4

There will be an annual report published by the VAW Partnership detailing
progress of Equally Safe and priorities for the forthcoming year.

IMPLICATIONS
4.1

Financial
There are no costs attached to any of the recommendations contained in
this report.

4.2

Risk and Mitigations
Feedback from partner agencies and victims of gender based violence
suggested that a public endorsement of the strategy would increase
confidence as to the success of the Strategy and demonstrate commitment
to working in partnership to achieve the aims of Equally Safe.

4.3

Equalities
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out on this
(a)
proposal and it is anticipated that there are no adverse equality
implications.
(b)

4.4

It is anticipated that there are no adverse impact due to race,
disability, gender, age, sexual orientation or religion/belief arising
from the proposals in this report.

Acting Sustainably
There are no significant impacts on the economy, community or
environment arising from the proposals contained in this report.

4.5

Carbon Management
There are no significant effects on carbon emissions arising from the
proposals contained in this report.

Page 104

Community Planning Partnership Strategic Board 22 June 2017

2

4.6

Rural Proofing
This report does not relate to new or amended policy or strategy and as a
result rural proofing is not an applicable consideration.

4.7

Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation
There are no changes to be made to either the Scheme of Administration
or the Scheme of Delegation as a result of the proposals contained in this
report.

5

CONSULTATION
The Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy has been discussed by Police,
5.1
Fire and Rescue and Safer Communities Board and presented to the
Community Planning Partnership Reducing Inequalities Delivery Team and
Joint Delivery Team and comments incorporated into the strategy.
Approved by

Name

Elaine Torrance

Author(s)
Name
Andrea Beavon

Chief Social Work Officer

Designation and Contact Number
VAW Coordinator, Safer Communities, Ext 8242

Background Papers: Nil
Previous Minute Reference: Nil
Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various
computer formats by contacting the address below. Andrea Beavon can also give
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.
Contact us at Andrea Beavon, Violence Against Women Co-ordinator, Safer
Communities, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells. Tel: 01835 824000 ext
8242, Email: andrea.beavon@scotborders.gcsx.gov.uk

Page 105

Community Planning Partnership Strategic Board 22 June 2017

3

This page is intentionally left blank

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

EQUALLY SAFE

1

Scottish Borders Strategy for preventing and eradicating
violence against women and girls

2016 - 21

“We aim to work together to
ensure that women and girls in
the Scottish Borders are equally
safe at home, at work and in
the community”

Page 107

2
CONTENTS
Foreword									p3
Introduction									p4
Where are we now								p9
Where do we want to go							p13
How will we get there								p14
Equally Safe priorities							p15
How will we monitor progress						p20
Scottish Borders Violence Against Women (VAW) Terms of Reference

p21

Gender based violence is a function of gender inequality, and abuse of male power and
privilege. It takes the form of actions that result in physical, sexual and psychological harm
or suffering to women and children, or affront their human dignity, including threats of such
acts, coercion or arbitrary deprivation of liberty, whether occurring in the public or private
life. It is men who predominantly or exclusively carry out such violence, and women who are
predominantly the victims of such violence.
Accordingly, violence against women encompasses but is not limited to the following:
• Physical, sexual and psychological violence occurring in the family, within 				
the general community, or in institutions including: domestic abuse, rape, incest 			
and child sexual abuse
• Sexual harassment and intimidation at work and in the public sphere; commercial 			
sexual exploitation including prostitution, pornography and trafficking
• Dowry related violence, female genital mutilation, forced and child marriages, 			
honour crimes.
(Scottish Government 2009)

Page 108

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

3

FOREWORD
Tackling violence against women and girls
remains a priority for Scottish Borders
Council, and the partner agencies it works
with, to ensure that women and girls in the
Scottish Borders are equally safe at home,
at work and in the community.
Much has been achieved in the last five
years; an increase in services for victims of
gender based violence, as well as increased
awareness in our communities of the support
that is available. But, like the rest of Scotland,
we see an increase in the levels of reporting
of gender based violence and women/girls
being abused in their own homes and
communities - there is still much work to
be done.
Equally Safe gives us the way forward to
tackle gender based violence, shows how we
can take direct action over the short, medium

and long term, and shapes our thinking to
prevent the long and enduring effects on our
children and young people.
Violence against women and girls is a tangible
indicator of gender inequality, and we have to
take the long term view that tackling gender
inequality will make our women and girls
safer, stronger and more able to thrive.
The Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy is
our first strategy on violence against women
and girls that asks us to look at the drivers
for violence, the evidence of “what works”,
and resources required to achieve an “equally
safe” society in the Scottish Borders.
Cllr Donald Moffat
Chair, Police, Fire & Rescue and Safer
Communities Board

SURVIVORS SAY?
Quotes and feedback from survivors on Equally Safe 2016 - 21

Equally safe have a task in front
of them, one I’m sure those
involved will put heart, mind
and soul into.”
Survivor, March 2016

I feel an end to violence or sexually
based/gender based violence for
all is a more inclusive approach.
This would address 100% of the
population, and feels Equally Safe
for everyone.
Survivor, February 2016

Page 109

4
INTRODUCTION
“WORKING TOGETHER TO ENSURE THAT WOMEN
AND GIRLS IN THE SCOTTISH BORDERS ARE EQUALLY
SAFE AT HOME, AT WORK AND IN THE COMMUNITY”
Violence against women and girls, in any form,
has no place in our vision for the Scottish
Borders. It damages health and wellbeing,
limits freedom and potential, and
is a violation of the most fundamental of
human rights.

accountable and addressing the societal
attitudes that perpetuate gender based violence.

This Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy
has been developed by the Scottish Borders
Violence against Women (VAW) Partnership
to enable the prevention and eradication of
violence against women and girls, as per the
Scottish Government’s Equally Safe Strategy
2014. It is designed to provide a strategic
framework and shared understanding of
the issues including a more nuanced view of
violence against women – evidence shows that
the tactics of coercive control (a behaviour that
seeks to strip away the victim’s freedoms and
sense of self) are rooted in gender inequality,
roles and assumptions.

1.

This strategy has been developed in
consultation with VAW Partnership members,
the general public and survivors of gender
based violence and is underpinned by a
strategic assessment conducted in 2015.
It also builds on the excellent partnership
work in the Scottish Borders and a significant
investment in specialist services over the last
five years. However, Equally Safe takes a more
radical approach in that it aims to tackle the
causes and consequences of gender based
violence, such as gender inequality in
its widest sense, holding perpetrators more

The four main aims of the Scottish Borders
Equally Safe Strategy will be working in
partnership to ensure:

2.

3.

4.

Scottish Borders’ society embraces 		
equality and mutual respect, and rejects
all forms of violence against women and
girls.
Women and girls in the Scottish Borders
thrive as equal citizens: socially, 			
culturally, economically and politically.
Interventions are early and effective, 		
preventing violence and promoting 		
women’s safety and wellbeing in the 		
Scottish Borders.
Men in the Scottish Borders desist from
all forms of violence against women and
girls, and perpetrators of such violence 		
receive a robust and effective response.

This is a long term strategy requiring a
phased approach. A Scottish Borders Equally
Safe Delivery Plan will set out the short,
medium and long term outcomes, directing
the work and resources of partner agencies
and maintaining gender based violence
as a priority strategically and politically.
Additionally, a gender based violence data
set will be developed to ensure the local
response is based on good evidence and can
demonstrate step-changes in addressing
violence against women and girls.

Note: reference to women includes transgender women.

Page 110

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

The focus for Scottish Borders Equally Safe
will continue to be on all forms of violence
against women, acknowledging that women
and girls are at risk of such abuse precisely
because they are female. Clearly boys and
men can also experience violence and there is
no diminution of the seriousness of the harms
they can experience or any proposal to alter
the support offered to them. However, Equally
Safe acknowledges “that being female in
itself can lead to a range of discrimination
and disadvantage, including experience of
male violence”
(Scottish Government Equally Safe 2014).

Gender based violence is a function of gender
inequality, and abuse of male power and
privilege. It takes the form of actions that
result in physical, sexual and psychological
harm or suffering to women and children, or
affront their human dignity, including threats
of such acts, coercion or arbitrary deprivation
of liberty, whether occurring in the public
or private life. It is men who predominantly
or exclusively carry out such violence, and
women who are predominantly the victims of
such violence.
Accordingly, violence against women
encompasses but is not limited to the following:
• Physical, sexual and psychological 		
violence occurring in the family, within 		
the general community, or in institutions
including: domestic abuse, rape, incest 		
and child sexual abuse.
• Sexual harassment and intimidation at 		
work and in the public sphere; commercial
sexual exploitation including prostitution,
pornography and trafficking.
• Dowry related violence, female genital 		
mutilation, forced and child marriages, 		
honour crimes.
(Scottish Government 2009)

5

Children and young people
The definition we have adopted includes
children of all genders as subject to harm
through violence. Violence against women and
girls can have significant consequences on
children and young people’s lives, including
(but not limited to) children and young people
who are directly or indirectly harmed through
violence and abuse perpetrated by adults in
their lives.

Violence against men
The particular approach we are taking
through Equally Safe brings a strategic
focus to the issue of men’s violence against
women and girls, as underpinned by the
definition we have adopted, which is in turn
based on the principles of International Law.
A gendered analysis does not exclude men,
but rather recognises that women and girls
are disproportionately affected by particular
forms of violence that they experience because
they are women and girls. Many men and boys
are victims of violence and abuse. Some boys
experience the forms of abuse outlined already
in relation to children and young people, whilst
some men are victims of domestic abuse,
rape, sexual assault, sexual exploitation
and forced marriage. The prevailing societal
view of what constitutes masculinity makes
it difficult for men to identify themselves as
experiencing abuse and can prevent them
from seeking help. More fundamentally,
masculinity and femininity are part of the
underlying social construct of gender that
contributes to the continuing prevalence of
violence against women and girls in society.
We condemn all forms of violence and abuse,
whilst recognising that particular forms of
violence are disproportionately experienced
by one gender and require a strong strategic

Page 111

6

focus. Men have a critical role in challenging
violence, breaking down gender norms and
in helping to ensure greater gender equality
in society – they are also entitled to support
when they experience violence and abuse.

Scottish Borders Violence
Against Women Partnership
There has been a multi-agency approach
to addressing gender based violence in the
Scottish Borders for over ten years. The
predominant feature of the work has been to
tackle domestic abuse and rape/sexual assault,
but the Scottish Borders VAW Partnership
Strategic Priorities 2012-2015 focussed on all
forms of gender based violence. This mirrored
the Scottish Government’s Safe Lives: Changed
Lives (2009).

VAW Partnership has an independent, volunteer
Chair and reports to the Police, Fire and
Community Safety (PFCS) Board as a tasking
group of Scottish Borders Safer Communities.
The strategic overview of violence against
women lies with the Reducing Inequalities
strand of the Community Planning Partnership.
The VAW Partnership Terms of Reference can
be found in Appendix 1.
Gender based violence is a cross cutting
theme, with the impact and consequences
felt across the public, private and voluntary
sectors. The Scottish Borders Equally Safe
Strategy will link directly to other stakeholder
strategies:

The Scottish Borders VAW Partnership draws
its membership from the wide range of partner
agencies which have a key role to play in
tackling gender based violence – these include:
Scottish Borders Council, NHS Borders, Police
Scotland, Crown Office and Procurator Fiscal
Service, Border Women’s Aid, Children1st,
Scottish Borders Rape Crisis Centre, solicitors
and the Alcohol and Drugs Partnership. The

Page 112

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

7

Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy – Strategic Links

SCOTTISH BORDERS
COUNCIL
LOCAL HOUSING
STRATEGY
2012-17
NHS BORDERS
SEXUAL HEALTH
STRATEGY

SCOTTISH BORDERS
HEALTH AND SOCIAL
CARE STRATEGIC
PLAN
2016-19

SCOTTISH BORDERS
EQUALLY SAFE
STRATEGY
2016-21

INTEGRATED
CHILDREN & YOUNG
PEOPLE’S PLAN IN
THE SCOTTISH
BORDERS
2015-18

REDUCING
INEQUALITIES IN THE
SCOTTISH BORDERS
2015-20 STRATEGIC
PLAN

SCOTTISH BORDERS
MENTAL HEALTH
STRATEGY
SCOTTISH BORDERS
HEALTH AND SOCIAL
CARE PARTNERSHIP
STRATEGIC PLAN
2016-19

Page 113

8
Vision
A strong and flourishing Scotland where all individuals are equally safe and respected, and where women
and girls live free from all forms of violence and abuse – and the attitudes that help perpetuate it.

Aim of Equally Safe
To work collaboratively with key partners in the public, private and third sectors to prevent and eradicate
all forms of violence against women and girls.

Priorities
Scottish society embraces
equality and mutual
respect, and rejects all
forms of violence against
women and girls.

Women and girls thrive
as equal citizens socially, culturally,
economically and
politically.

Interventions are early
and effective, preventing
violence and maximising
the safety and wellbeing
of women, children and
young people.

Men desist from all
forms of violence against
women and girls, and
perpetrators of such
violence receive a robust
and effective response.

Objectives
Positive gender roles are promoted.			
Women and girls are safe, respected and equal
							 in our communities.
People enjoy healthy, positive relationships and
children develop an understanding of safe, healthy,
and positive relationships from an early age.

Individuals and communities recognise and
challenge violent and abusive behaviour.

Women and men have equal access to power and
Justice responses are robust, swift, consistent
resources.						 and coordinated.
Women, children and young people access		
Men who carry out violence against women
relevant, effective and integrated services.		
and girls are identified early and held to
							 account by the justice system.
Service providers competently identify violence
against women and girls, and respond effectively
to women, children and young people affected.

Men who carry out violence against women and
girls change their behaviour and are supported
to do so.

Women, children and young people’s voices are heard and their rights respected.

National Outcomes
We live our lives
free from crime,
disorder and
danger.

We have tackled the
signficant inequalities
in Scottish society.

We have strong, resilient and
supportive communities where
people take responsibility for
their own actions and how they
affect others.

Our children have the
best start in life and
are ready to succeed.

We have improved
the life chances
for children, young
people and families
at risk.

Our public services are
high quality, continually
improving, efficient and
responsive to people’s
needs.

We realise our full economic
potential with more and better
employment opportunities for
our people.

We live longer, healthier
lives.

Page 114

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

9

WHERE ARE WE NOW?
Addressing gender based violence remains
a priority for the Scottish Government,
Scottish Local Authorities, Scottish Health
Boards, Police Scotland, partner agencies and
communities.
Scotland’s National Performance Framework
guides the resources required and the
outcomes desired to ensure:

• We live our lives free from crime, disorder
and danger.
• We have improved the life chances for 		
children, young people and families at risk.
• We have tackled significant inequalities in
Scottish society.
• Our public services are high quality, 		
continually improving, efficient and 		
responsive to people’s needs.
• We have strong resilient communities 		
where people take responsibility for their
own actions and how they affect others.
• Our children have the best start in life and
are ready to succeed.
• We live longer, healthier lives.
In the Scottish Borders this is translated into
the Single Outcome Agreement and is governed
by the Community Planning Partnership
(CPP). Gender based violence is included in the
Reducing Inequalities strand of the CPP.
(See Page 7)
This in turn relates to the outcomes for Safer
Communities. In 2015 gender based violence
was assessed as the top priority in the Safer
Communities Business Plan.
Currently the range of gender based violence
data that is used to demonstrate the extent
to which the Single Outcome Agreement is

achieved is quantitative in nature and drawn
from Police Scotland statistics, service
provider data and statutory recording, eg
Child Protection Registrations. However, such
statistics are useful in monitoring trends/
incidences, but are considered only “part
of the picture” in revealing the true nature
and extent of gender based violence in the
Scottish Borders.
With an increase in service provision, more
people accessing support, and a greater
understanding of the local need, it should
become possible to collate better, more
accurate data to demonstrate the longer term
impact of the Scottish Borders Equally Safe
Strategy.
We are now at the stage of needing to tackle
the root causes of violence against women
and girls with a wider focus on gender
inequality and addressing perpetrator
behaviour whilst maintaining a strong,
effective and sustained service provision for
victims of gender based violence.
Violence against women and girls occurs
across all sections of society, but not all
women and girls are at equal risk. Certain
factors can increase vulnerability to abuse
and keep women trapped such as age,
financial dependence, poverty, disability,
homelessness, insecure immigration status
and ethnicity, mental health, substance
use and offending. Therefore, it is vital that
a partnership approach is maintained to
address violence against women and girls:
there is a cost-benefit to partner agencies
understanding the impact of gender based
violence on their service area.
(Equally Safe, 2014)

Page 115

10

Preventing violence against women and girls
takes a long term approach, challenging the
notion that violence is inevitable or acceptable.
Equally Safe takes an ambitious approach
demanding a determined effort over the long
term. It requires those working in public
service delivery to engage with communities
and those affected by violence and abuse to reimagine services with a renewed and increased
focus on prevention.
In the Scottish Borders over the last five years
there has been a significant improvement in
the funding aligned to providing specialist
services, an increased focus on addressing
perpetrator behaviour, a commitment from
partner agencies to develop a coordinated,
community response to addressing domestic
abuse, and an increase in resources to start
prevention work in schools/colleges.
The policy and practice framework across
Scotland has improved to ensure increased
protection for those at risk of gender based
violence through new legislation, eg Forced
Marriage, Victims and Witnesses Bill,
improved frontline response in universal
services, eg routine enquiry, risk assessment
training, and increased resources to address
the gaps in service provision, eg Rape Crisis
Sexual Violence Advocacy.

A VAW Strategic Assessment conducted in 2015
provided analysis by VAW of data from national
and local organisations, key stakeholders and
service providers in the Scottish Borders.
The aim of the strategic assessment is to
provide clear direction and focus for the VAW
Partnership’s Equally Safe Strategy. The
Strategic Assessment covered the period
2012-15 and highlighted: Prevention, Activity,
Community Engagement, Policy & Practice.

Prevention activity
-

-

-

Community engagement
-

-

Introduced in 2010/11, the Caledonian System
is an integrated approach to address men’s
domestic abuse and to improve the lives of
women, children and men. It does this by
working with men convicted of domestic abuse
related offences on a programme to reduce
their re-offending while offering support and
safety planning to women and children.

A decrease in the capacity to deliver 		
community activity in relation to gender 		
based violence.
An increase in access to survivors of 		
gender based violence.

Policy and practice framework
-

Caledonian System

An increase in the number of young people
taking part in sexual violence prevention
workshops.
An increase in the number of schools 		
implementing Mentors in Violence 		
Prevention.
SHARE continues to be delivered in schools.

-

Routine Enquiry continues in drug and 		
alcohol services, sexual health services.
Disclosure Scheme on Domestic Abuse 		
implemented 2015.
Establishment of Survivors Unite group for
adult survivors of childhood sexual abuse.
Establishment of Reconnect Group for 		
women at risk of offending.
Establishment of a Scottish Borders Rape
Crisis Support and Advocacy Service.

Page 116

GENDER BASED VIOLENCE:
SCOTTISH BORDERS

Berwickshi
TT

2013-16
Teviot and
Liddesdale

Victims of gender AN INCREASE
based violence
IN REPORTED

sexual assault.

AN INCREASE in the

AN INCREASE in the

Number of

number of high risk 		
victims of domestic
abuse discussed
at a Multi Agency
Risk Assessment
Conference (MARAC).

number of prolific
repeat domestic abuse
offenders referred
to the Multi Agency

AN INCREASE
IN THE NUMBER
OF DOMESTIC
ABUSE VICTIMS

AN INCREASE in the

95% female
5% male

An overall
increase in the

		

AN INCREASE in
the number of people
accessing safer
housing options in
relation to domestic
abuse.

reported incidents
of rape and

who received intensive
outreach advocacy
support.

Tasking and
Coordinating
(MATAC) meeting

NUMBER OF ADULTS
AND CHILDREN
needing statutory
protection as a result
of domestic abuse.

		

AN INCREASE
IN THE NUMBER OF
ADULTS presenting
to homelessness as
a result of domestic
abuse.
		

A SMALL
DECREASE in the
number of domestic
abuse incidents
resulting in a
criminal offence.

INCIDENTS OF
DOMESTIC ABUSE
AND STALKING

numbers of adults
and children receiving
support for
domestic abuse/rape
and sexual assault.

A DECREASE IN

0 Reports of

Female Genital
Mutilation

5

Honour Based
Violence cases
(HBV)

		

Page 117

women

accessing refuge
2012/13 11 women
2013/14 15 women
2014/15 10 women

AN INCREASE
in the number
of routine

enquiries

returning
disclosures in
addictions
services.

0 Number of

reports of human
trafficking
		

re

12

However, in the Scottish Borders there are
still gaps in service provision for victims of
gender based violence, evidence of continued
un-met need, and evidence of inconsistency in
relation to victim’s experience of help-seeking.
This has been evidenced by the Strategic
Assessment (2015), an independent evaluation
of the Pathway Project, victim feedback and
discussions with stakeholders.

-

A summary of gaps identified or where data
reveals the need for improvement include:

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Evidence of only one key partner agency 		
having a Workplace Policy on gender based
violence.
There is no policy or protocol framework 		
developed for FGM, Forced Marriage or 		
Trafficking despite new legislation.
No recorded data or evidence for 			
commercial sexual exploitation in the 		
Scottish Borders.
Lack of a coherent funding strategy in the 		
Scottish Borders for gender based violence.

A considerable number of stalking 		
harassment incidents that do not receive 		
a consistent response in relation to victim
impact.
A low conversion rate of incidents to 		
crimes, and a resulting low conviction rate
for domestic abuse and sexual violence.
Sexual violence prevention work not 		
available across primary, secondary 		
schools.
Specific groups of victims, eg those from 		
the LGBT or ethnic minority communities 		
are under-represented in specialist 		
services.
Low numbers of people using national 		
helplines.
Reduction in capacity and resources to 		
support front line staff to effectively 		
respond to gender based violence.
No coherent service user involvement 		
(adults and children) across the violence 		
against women agenda in the Scottish
Borders.

Page 118

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

13

WHERE DO WE WANT TO GO?
In responding to gender based violence under
the guidance of Equally Safe –Scotland’s
Strategy for preventing and eradicating
violence against women and girls (2014) we
want to work towards:
1. A Scottish society that embraces equality
and mutual respect, and rejects all 		
forms of violence against women and 		
girls by ensuring that:
l
Positive gender roles are promoted.
l
People enjoy healthy positive relations.
l
Individuals and communities 			
		 recognise and challenge violent and 		
		 abusive behaviour.
2. Women and girls who thrive as equal 		
citizens; socially, culturally, economically
and politically by ensuring that:
l
Women and girls feel safe, respected
		 and equal in our communities.
l
Women and men have equality of 		
		 opportunity, particularly with regards
		 to access to power and resources.

l
Men who carry out violence against 		
		 women and girls are held to account by
			the criminal justice system.
l
Men who carry out violence against 		
		 women and girls are identified early 		
		 and held to account by the criminal
		 justice system.

In taking action to achieve the aims of Equally
Safe, the Scottish Borders Violence against
Women Partnership will create a strategic
and operational framework under the four
priorities listed above. Notwithstanding
these, the Scottish Borders Violence against
Women Partnership will commit to ensuring
the following principle: “to promote and
coordinate an effective multi-agency
approach to gender based violence in line
with efforts to Protect, Prevent, and Provide
whilst supporting effective Participation”.

3. Maintain interventions that are early and
effective, preventing violence and
promoting women’s safety and wellbeing
by ensuring that:
l
Justice responses are robust, swift 		
		 consistent and coordinated.
l
Women and girls access relevant, 		
		 effective and integrated services.
4. Encouraging men to desist from all 		
forms of violence against women and
girls and ensure that perpetrators of 		
such violence receive a robust and
effective response by ensuring that:
l
Justice responses are robust, swift, 		
		 consistent and coordinated.

Page 119

14
HOW WILL WE GET THERE?
The Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy
(2016-2021) will only succeed in the short,
medium and long term aims if partner
agencies, stakeholders and communities
collaborate in taking the range of actions
required to address gender based violence
at all levels – individual, community and
societal.

Community Planning
Partnership
Reducing Inequalities

This requires strong leadership at both
strategic and operational level, underpinned
by a shared understanding of gender based
violence, sustained funding for specialist
services, and a willingness to learn and
improve our response according to the
experience of those who need us to take
action to end violence against women.
A shared vision to prevent and eradicate
violence against women and girls requires
concerted effort from service providers,
commissioners, planners, funders and
partnerships, but with an acknowledgement
that this will be a long term commitment
which will return considerable benefit to
Scottish Borders society.
Scotland’s Equally Safe Strategy to prevent
and eradicate violence against women and
girls gives the Scottish Borders a clear
mandate to adopt the key priorities and
establish the mechanisms to deliver key
outcomes/activities.

Police, Fire & Rescue and Safer
Communities Board

VAW Partnership Executive
Group

Equally Safe
Strategy

Equally Safe
Delivery Plan

VAW Partnership Delivery Group

Short Life Working Groups

Page 120

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

15

The following represents the high-level activities proposed to deliver on each
Equally Safe Priority:

Priority 1

A Scottish society that embraces equality
and mutual respect, and rejects all forms
of violence against women and girls by
ensuring that:
Positive gender roles are promoted.
l
People enjoy healthy positive relations.
l
Individuals and communities recognise
		 and challenge violent and abusive 		
		behaviour.
l

Research shows that community attitudes
to violence against women and girls are a
key predictor of perpetration of such abuse
and can influence how victims feel about
their experiences, in turn influencing how
they get help. It is therefore imperative that
communities are supported to understand
better the drivers for violence against
women and girls and how societal and
personal responses to victims can impact
on help-seeking.
For example, in 2013 Household Survey in the
Scottish Borders 76% of respondents believed
alcohol and drugs “cause men to be violent
to their partners”, the Safer Communities
Strategic Assessment (2015) revealed that
alcohol was a contributing factor in only 22%
of all domestic incidents reported to the
police, thus supporting the understanding that
alcohol does not cause gender based violence.

activity in the heart of our communities, and
by survivors themselves through support to
have their voices heard.
We will work towards achieving Priority 1 by:
Working with media colleagues to 		
		 challenge attitudes and norms that 		
		 contribute to violence against women 		
		 and girls.
l
Increasing awareness amongst 		
		 children/young people of gender based
		 violence and improving access to 		
		support.
l
Increasing the opportunities for children
		 and young people to actively be involved
		 in tackling gender based violence.
l
Ensuring community engagement is 		
		 meaningful and inclusive, that
		 communities have increased 			
		 opportunity to be involved in addressing
		 gender based violence.
l
Providing support for survivors of 		
		 gender based violence to have their 		
		 voices heard and be actively involved in
		 decision making.

Supporting communities to be more aware
and develop a more inclusive approach to
gender based violence can be achieved by
services and the media working together, by
gender stereotyping being challenged at the
individual, community and societal levels, by
more effective legal sanctions, by grassroots

Page 121

l

16

Priority 2

Women and girls who thrive as equal
citizens; socially, culturally, economically
and politically by ensuring that:
l

		
l

		
		

Women and girls feel safe, respected 		
and equal in our communities.
Women and men have equality of 		
opportunity, particularly with regard
to access to power and resources.

We want women in the Scottish Borders
to enjoy the same opportunities as men.
This includes being more economically
independent with equal opportunity to
achieve their full potential in all sectors and
at all levels. This requires action to tackle
the barriers that women face in relation to
employment, elimination of the gender pay
gap, and the representation of women both
in low paid jobs and in senior positions. The
impact of welfare reform in Scotland is borne
disproportionately by women and poverty is a
key factor in preventing women and children
finding safety and recovering from their
experience of domestic abuse.
Living in fear, being abused, and recovery
from the long term consequences of gender
based violence, all impact on a woman’s
opportunity to achieve her full potential.
Employers across the public and private
sector in the Scottish Borders employ
a significant number of women, eg NHS
Borders employs over 3000 staff, 82% of
whom are women. However, the use of
Employee or Workplace Policies to address
gender based violence is inconsistent in the
public and private sector.

Adopting a joint approach to workplace
policies would enable a wider range of
women to seek support and maintain gainful
employment as well as their economic
independence. Gender based violence
produces a significant cost in relation to
absence management for employers.
We will work towards achieving Priority 2 by:
l

		
		
		
		
		
		
l

		
		
l

		
		
l

		
		
		
		
		
l

		
		

Page 122

Working with partners in Corporate 		
Equality groups to ensure that Equality
Impact Assessments are conducted 		
on all activities that could 			
disproportionately affect women
generally but more specifically victims
of gender based violence.
Supporting efforts to tackling poverty 		
in relation to gender based violence in
collaboration with partners.
Addressing the need for an effective 		
response to women who have “no 		
recourse to public funds.”
Working in collaboration with partners
to increase the mobility of women, 		
decrease rural isolation, and improve 		
access to public transport by ensuring
their needs are considered in planning
and public transport strategies.
Working with partners in the public and
private sectors to develop gender based
violence workplace policies.

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

Priority 3

l

Maintain interventions that are early and
effective, preventing violence and promoting
women’s safety and wellbeing by ensuring
that:
l

		
l

		
l

		
		

Justice responses are robust, swift , 		
consistent and coordinated.
Women and girls access relevant, 		
effective and integrated services.
Service providers competently identify
violence against women and girls and 		
respond effectively.

The provision of effective and accessible
services is vital to the support needed for
victims and survivors of gender based
violence – both adults and children.
Service provision ranges from direct
protection of adults and children at risk
of gender based violence through to
support for families to recover from their
experiences. Partnership working is essential
as the capacity to provide such support is
compromised - funding is predominantly
short term, staff retention is challenged,
rural delivery of services is expensive, and
a reduced capacity to enable universal
services to adequately respond to gender
based violence.
In the Scottish Borders there has been a
significant increase in funding for specialist
services over the last five years, resulting in
a corresponding increase in the numbers of
adults and children receiving support. This
increase in funding has meant:
l
increased capacity to respond to
		 domestic abuse/rape and sexual 		
		 assualt.

		
		
l

		
		
l

		
		
l

		
		

17

improved outcomes for victims and 		
their children in relation to risk, safety
and recovery from their experiences.
increased capacity to enable victims and
their children to have a better range of
safe housing options.
increased capacity to respond to victims
living in rural isolation, or who
experience specific barriers to services.
increased numbers of high tariff.		
prolific offenders targeted in relation to
domestic abuse/sexual violence.

However, there still remains a need to ensure
that all victims/survivors have equitable
access to services that meet their specific
needs. For example, those experiencing
stalking and harassment are reluctant to
report and services have an inconsistent
response to stalking with no agreed risk
assessment tool or victim impact toolkit
established in the Scottish Borders. Those
who find accessing mainstream services
challenging and have increased risk of abuse,
eg LGBT community, and ethnic minority
communities, require barrier-free services to
improve the equity of access to support.
The role of universal services in enabling
a greater “reach” and increased access to
support is key as these services eg health,
social care, and community services are
much more likely to be used by victims
of gender based violence than specialist
services. Additionally, close partnership
working between specialist services and
mental health, criminal justice, substance
misuse services, homelessness, child and
adult protection will enhance the response to
those with a range of support needs, –

Page 123

18

in many cases driven by their experience of
gender based violence.

l

Early identification is essential in eliminating
violence and the risk of further harm - we
know that only a small minority of those
affected by violence report it to the police or
seek help from specialist services, and this
remains an issue across Scotland. A move
to a more integrated, coordinated approach
affords us the best chance of meeting the
needs of those experiencing gender based
violence in the Scottish Borders. A small
step-change, for example, would be an agreed
Information Sharing Protocol adopted by all
specialist agencies to reduce the requirement
for victims to re-tell their story, decrease the
length of time to access services and reduce
the potential for service generated risks.

		
		
l

		
l

		
		
l

		
		
l

		
		

We will work towards achieving Priority 3 by:
Working collaboratively to improve the
		 sustainability of specialist violence 		
		 against women services.
l
Collaborating with funders and 		
		 planners to embed a coordinated
		 community response to gender based
		 violence in the Scottish Borders.
l
Providing support to universal services
		 to enable frontline staff to be more
		 confident/competent to respond safely
		 and effectively to all forms of gender 		
		 based violence.
l
Developing a common, shared 			
		 understanding of risk assessment and
		 safety planning in relation to domestic
		abuse.
l
Promoting a multi-agency approach to
		 tackling high risk cases of domestic 		
		 abuse, thus improving the effectiveness
		 of scarce resources.
l

Page 124

Developing a policy/protocol framework
for Female Genital Mutilation, Forced 		
Marriage, and Trafficking.
Developing and implementing a “first 		
line response” to stalking.
Undertaking a scoping exercise in 		
relation to prostitution to inform a 		
better understanding and response.
Supporting the development of new 		
initiatives such as the Reconnect Group,
Survive and Thrive, Survivors Unite.
Providing a mechanism for service 		
user experience to shape the 			
coordinated community response.

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

Priority 4

l

Encouraging men to desist from all forms
of violence against women and girls and
ensuring that perpetrators of such violence
receive a robust and effective response by
ensuring that:
Justice responses are robust, swift, 		
consistent and coordinated.
l
Men who carry out violence against 		
		 women and girls are held to account by
		 the criminal justice system.
l
Men who carry out violence against 		
		 women and girls are identified early and
		 held to account by the criminal justice
		 system.
l

		

		
		
l

		
		
		
l

		
		
		
		
l

		
		
		

Globally there is a growing consensus that
prosecution alone is not enough to eradicate
the problem of violence against women and
girls. Early identification of perpetrators
and the opportunity for them to change their
behaviour is key to more effective outcomes.
Prosecution is important to victims in relation
to the crime they have experienced and the
psychological recovery by acknowledging
their status as victims. Unfortunately, there
are still barriers to prosecution that are well
evidenced, and attrition rates are higher than
we would hope them to be. Support for victims
to engage with and navigate through the court
process is vital.

We will work towards achieving Priority
4 by:
l

		
		

Engaging with partners to improve the
court outcomes for victims of gender 		
based violence.

Page 125

19

Engaging with partners in the court 		
system to enable children’s views to be
considered in contact cases.
Enabling partners in the legal 			
profession the opportunity to be better
equipped to represent gender based 		
violence victims in court.
Working with partner agencies 		
who have responsibility for early 		
identification of men who carry out
violence in order that current/future 		
victims are protected.
Working in partnership to ensure better
information is shared with Courts in 		
relation to risk of further harm and/or
the victim impact.

20
HOW WILL WE MONITOR PROGRESS?
Governance and Reporting
The Scottish Borders Equally Safe Strategy
(2016-21) will be the responsibility of the
Police, Fire & Rescue and Safer Communities
Board in relation to governance. A set of
key performance indicators that will track
progress of Equally Safe will be agreed by
the PFCS Board. These are also required
to support the outcomes associated with
the Reducing Inequalities strand of the
Community Planning Partnership.
Operationally, the Equally Safe Strategy
(2016-2021) will be managed by the Violence
against Women Partnership Executive. The
VAW Partnership Executive will produce an
Equally Safe Annual Report to demonstrate
progress, as well as reporting to the Police,
Fire & Rescue and Safer Communities Board
twice yearly detailing progress against the
agreed key performance indicators.
The delivery of outcomes associated with the
Strategy will be the responsibility of a Violence
Against Women Partnership Delivery Group.
There will be some Short Life Working Groups
established to take forward specific areas eg
Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) Protocol. This
work will be driven by an Equally Safe Strategy
Delivery Plan (2016-19). The Delivery Plan will
detail the actions, outcomes, performance data,
lead agencies and timelines for completion. The
VAW Partnership Delivery Group will report
to the VAW Partnership Executive Group twice
yearly on progress of the Delivery Plan.

agreed by the Delivery Group. The Chair of
the VAW Delivery Group will be a member of
the VAW Executive. The VAW Coordinator will
report to the VAW Executive and be a member
of the VAW Delivery Group.
Membership of both the VAW Executive and
the VAW Delivery Group will be drawn from
the key partner agencies. Members will be
required to represent their agency at the
appropriate level, but it is expected that the
VAW Executive will consist of senior members
of the key public and voluntary agencies
responsible for tackling violence against
women and girls in the Scottish Borders.
The Equally Safe Strategy Delivery Plan
(2016-19) will detail reporting timelines and
key performance indicators evidencing the
progress of the Equally Safe Strategy.

Further information on specialist
services can be found on
www.scotborders.gov.uk/domesticabuse

The Violence Against Women Executive will
be chaired by an independent Chair and the
Violence Against Women Delivery Group
will be chaired by a volunteer from the
membership, and will rotate over a timeframe

Page 126

SB STRATEGY FOR PREVENTING AND ERADICATING
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS

21

SCOTTISH BORDERS VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN
(VAW) PARTNERSHIP TERMS OF REFERENCE
Aims:

l

The Scottish Borders Violence against Women
(VAW) Partnership will raise awareness and
increase the understanding of the impact
of violence against women (including trans
women), young people and children across the
Scottish Borders.
We aim to work with our partners and
stakeholders in an integrated way to prevent
violence against women and improve on the
range of services and provision available
to women, young people and children. This
approach will take into account the challenges
of addressing violence against women in a
rural setting and acknowledging the work
needed to address the perpetrators of violence
against women and girls.

The role of the partnership member:
l

l

l

l

What the partnership will do:
l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Provide leadership and set the strategic 		
direction for the Scottish Borders Equally 		
Safe strategy (2016-2021).
Provide expertise, knowledge, research and
resources on violence against women and 		
girls.
Monitor local activity, interpret the data 		
available and address the gaps identified.
Provide data for annual reports as required
by governance structures.

Raise the profile of violence against women
in the Scottish Borders, maintaining visibility
and presence within the structures of 		
community planning.

l

l

l

l

Work together on prevention strategies and
foster/influence a more positive media
reporting at a local level.
Work together to ensure that the provision in
the Scottish Borders remains of high quality
and is accessible to those in need.
Maintain an overview of budget constraints 		
and work with partners to build resilience 		
and sustainability of services and provision.

Page 127

To participate in every meeting of the VAW 		
Partnership and delegate where possible.
To ensure that the experiences of survivors
are fed into service and policy development
for the Scottish Borders.
To influence their peers and partners to 		
address the impact of violence against 		
women and girls in the Scottish Borders at 		
all levels.
To contribute to the partnership meetings 		
and engage with the discussion and cascade
back into their respective organisations.
To contribute to consultations both local and
national.
To contribute to the short life working 		
groups as agreed by the VAW Partnership.
To support the Chair and the Violence 		
Against Women Coordinator to achieve the 		
aims of the VAW Partnership.
To ensure the Scottish Borders Equally Safe
Strategy (2016-2021) is effective in 			
addressing violence against women and 		
girls in the Scottish Borders.

22

You can get this document on audio CD, in large print, and various other formats by
contacting us at the address below. In addition, contact the address below for information
on language translations, additional copies, or to arrange for an officer to meet with you to
explain any areas of the publication that you would like clarified.
Safer Communities Team
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
TD6 0SA
safercommunities@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 128

